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ARPU
CLEC
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DVR
EBITDA
ETFL
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Acronyms Used in this Annual Report on Form 16K
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TXU Communications Ventures Compa
Unbundled network eleme

Unbundled network element platfol
Voice over Internet Protoc
Weightec-average cost of capit
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Terminology Used in this Annual Report on Form 16K

Access line equivalentrepresent a combination of voice services and dataits. The calculations represent a conversit
data circuits to an access line basis. Equivalargscalculated by converting data circuits (baate interface (BRI), prima
rate interface (PRI), DSL, DS-1, DS-3, and Etheraetd SONET-based (optical) services (OC-3 and48¥Cto the equivale
of an access line.

Competitive local exchange carrierd"CLECs”) are telecommunications providers formed after enant of th
Telecommunications Act of 1996 to provide localleetge service that competes with ILECs and othtabkshed carriers.

Digital telephone or VOIP servicinvolves the routing of voice calls, at least intpaver the Internet through packets of
instead of transmitting the calls over the teleghsystem.

An exchangeis a geographic area established for administrati@hpricing of telecommunications services.

Hosted VOIPis our broadband phone product that utilizes ofirseitch to provide an Internet Protocol basedcedervice t
business and residential customers. The productige® the flexibility of utilizing new telephone denology and featur
provided by our hosted soft switch but does notiiregan investment in a new telephone system tdhesadvanced features.

Incumbent local exchange telephone compani(“ILECs”) are the local telephone companies that provided! lzdephon
exchange service on the effective date of the Dehmcunications Act of 1996, or their predecessotss Tesignation
important because ILECs have statutory obligatithreg other telephone companies do not have. Fompbe ILECs ar
required to give other carriers access to certginpenent (known as unbundled network elementspdrause equipment {
other carriers (known as collocation), on reasamand nondiscriminatory terms. For more informatisee Part |—Item-3-
“Business—Regulatory Environment.”

Metro Ethernetis the use of carrier Ethernet technology in meilitgn area networks. Metro Ethernet services aowigec
over a standard, widely used Ethernet interface aamdconnect business local area networks to wiea aetworks or to tl
Internet. Metro Ethernet offers casffectiveness, reliability, scalability and bandthisdnanagement superior to most proprie
networks.

MPLS or Multiprotocol Label Switchincrefers to a highly scalable datarrying mechanism in which data packets are ase
labels. Packetsrwarding decisions are made solely on the contehthis label, without the need to examine thekpaitself
This allows for end-to-end circuits across any tgpgansport medium, using any protocol.

Rural telephone companieprovide communications services to geographic atbas are not heavily populated. T
designation is important because rural telephomepamies are eligible to receive government subsittiecompensate for t
disproportionate cost of providing service in loendity areas. In addition, ILECs that are statutarpl telephone compani
as defined in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, ,exempt from some obligations to provide acces®mpetitors.

Unified messagings the integration of multiple messaging technadggnto a single system. With this application,ceomail
fax, cellular and other messages are sent to thal enbox. From the email system, the messageshbeameard, read
forwarded to others.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Any statements contained in this report that atestadements of historical fact, including statetaeabout our beliefs a
expectations, are forward-looking statements. Weewasrds like “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “tand,” “plan,” “estimate,”
“target,” “project,” “should,” “may,” and “will” toidentify forward-looking statements throughousthéport.

Forwardiooking statements reflect, among other things,courent expectations, plans, strategies, andipated financie
results. There are a number of risks, uncertaindied conditions that may cause our actual resuliffer materially from thos
expressed or implied by these forwdndking statements. Many of these circumstancesbay®nd our ability to control
predict. Moreover, forward-looking statements neaefy involve assumptions on our part.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persotis@on our behalf are expressly qualified in theitirety by
the cautionary statements that appear through@teaport. Furthermore, forwaldeking statements speak only as of the
they are made. Except as required under the fedecalrities laws or the rules and regulations efSkecurities and Exchar
Commission, we are not under any obligation to tedany forward-looking informationwhether as a result of n
information, future events, or otherwise. You slioubt place undue reliance on forward-looking stestets.

Please see Part I—Item 1A—"Risk Factodd"this report, as well as the other documents weafile with the SEC froi
time to time, for important factors that could cawsir actual results to differ from current expgotes and from the forward-
looking statements discussed in this report.

MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

Market and industry data and other information usedughout this report are based on independeluisiny publication:
government publications, publicly available infotioa, reports by market research firms, or otheblighed independe
sources. Although we believe these sources arabteliwe have not verified the information. Somé¢ada also based
estimates that members of management derive fremitidustry knowledge and review of internal sye

We cannot know, or reasonably determine, our magkate in each of our markets or for our servicasabse there
significant overlap in the telecommunications indysit is difficult to isolate information reganaj individual services. F
example, wireless providers both compete with ardgement our local telephone services.
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Iltem 1. Business
General

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. andsitbsidiaries, (“Consolidated”, the “Company”, “wétur” or “us”)
operates its businesses under the name Consoli@datimunications. We are an established rural les@hange carri
(“RLEC”) providing communications services to residentiad &nsiness customers in lllinois, Texas and Penasjd. Wit
247,235 local access lines, an estimated 72,681p€titiwe Local Exchange Carrier (“CLEC&ccess line equivalents, 100,
digital subscriber lines (“DSL") and 23,127 Interi&otocol digital television (“IPTV"subscribers at December 31, 2009
believe that we are one of the largest pure plajg® in the United States. The Company offers a walegye ¢
telecommunications services, including local andgldlistance service, digital telephone service (IRQ) custom callini
features, private line services, dial-up and tegked broadband Internet access, IPTV, carriesa@@vices, network capat
services over our regional fiber optic network,edtory publishing and CLEC calling services. Weoakperate a number
non-core complementary businesses, including providéigphone services to county jails and state psisomd equipme
sales. See “ltem 7—Management’s Discussion andyAisabf Financial Condition and Results of OperatieSubsequel
Events”.

Founded in 1894 as the Mattoon Telephone Companyhéygreagrandfather of our current Chairman, Richarc
Lumpkin, we began as one of the nat®riirst independent telephone companies. After regvacquisitions, the Matto
Telephone Company was incorporated as the llli@mesolidated Telephone Company (“ICT@H April 10, 1924. In 199
McLeodUSA acquired ICTC and all related busine$s@s the Lumpkin family. In 2002, Mr. Lumpkin andid private equit
firms, Spectrum Equity and Providence Equity, repased ICTC and several related businesses.

On April 14, 2004, we acquired TXU Communicationsntures Company (“TXUCV"jrom TXU Corporation. TXUC)
owned rural telephone operations in Lufkin, Conraed Katy, Texas, which had been operating in thuaekets for ove
90 years. This acquisition approximately tripled #ize of the Company.

On July 27, 2005, we completed an initial publiteahg of our common stock. At the same time, SpectEquity sold it
entire investment and Providence Equity sold 50%soinvestment. In July 2006, we repurchased #émeaining shares own
by Providence Equity.

On December 31, 2007, we acquired all of the chpitack of North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (“Northtt$burgh”).
Through its subsidiaries, North Pittsburgh providesanced communication services to residentialtarsiness customers
several counties in western Pennsylvania and ggeeCLEC in the Pittsburgh metropolitan area. rHselts of operations f
North Pittsburgh are included in the Comg’s Telephone Operations segment beginning Jany&98 and thereafter.

We are a Delaware corporation organized in 2002 are the successor to businesses engaged in ipng
telecommunications services since 1894,




Table of Contents

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly RepomsForm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK&nd amendments
those reports are available on our website, athsyge, at www.consolidated.copas soon as reasonably practicable
electronic filing or furnishing such information tiee U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SE&S0 available on ot
website, or in print upon written request at norgka are our corporate governance guidelines, hasters of our aud
compensation and corporate governance committedsa @opy of our code of business conduct and ethit applies to o
directors, officers and employees, including ouetlkexecutive officer, principal financial officeprincipal accounting office
controller or other persons performing similar ftimes. Information on our website should not besidered to be part of tt
annual report on Form 10-K.

Business Overview

We derive our revenue principally from the saléedécommunication services, including local andgldistance telephol
(both traditional telephone service and VOIP), higieed broadband Internet, and standard anddgdihition IPTV services 1
residential and business customers in lllinois, aBexand Pennsylvania. We also derive revenues fromuraber @
complementary nogere businesses, including telephone servicesuntgqails and state prisons; equipment sales;paitd tc
2010, telemarketing and order fulfillment and operaervices. We operate in two reportable segmémiephone Operatio
and Other Operations. Our Telephone Operations eegenerates the substantial majority of our regeand operatir
income and substantially all of our cash flow froperations.

Sources of Revenue

The following chart summarizes our sources of reregfor the last three years:

2009 2008 2007
% of % of % of

(in millions, except for percentage $ Revenue $ Revenue $ Revenue
Telephone operation

Local calling service 97.2 23.¢ 104.€ 25.C 82.¢ 25.2

Network access servic 86.2 21.c 95.c 22.¢ 70.¢ 21t

Subsidies 56.C 13.€ 55.2 13.2 46.C 14.C

Long-distance service 20.4 5.C 24.1 5.7 14.2 4.3

Data and Internet servic 68.1 16.¢ 62.7 15.C 38.C 115

Other service 36.€ 9.C 37.1 8.¢ 36.8 11.C
Total telephone operatiol 364.¢ 89.¢ 379.( 90.¢€ 288.2 87.t
Other operation 41.€ 10.z 39.4 9.4 41.C 12.5
Total operating revent 406.2 100.( 418. 100.( 329.2 100.(




Table of Contents

Telephone Operations

Our Telephone Operations segment consists of loallihg services, network access services, sulssidamgédistanc
services, data and Internet services (including D8IV and VOIP), and other services. Our Teleph@perations segme
had the following service lines as of December 31:

December 31

2009 2008 2007
Residential access lines in serv 146,76¢ 162,06 183,07(
Business access lines in serv 100,46¢ 102,25t 103,11¢
Total local access lines in servi 247,23! 264,32: 286,18t
VOIP telephone subscribe 8,66¢ 6,51( 2,49
IPTV subscriber: 23,127 16,66¢ 12,241
ILEC DSL subscriber 100,12: 91,81° 81,331
Total broadband connectio 131,91 114,99 96,07z
CLEC access line equivaler® 72,68 74,687 70,06:
Total connection 451,83( 454,00 452,32:
Long-distance line? 165,71: 165,95: 166,59¢
Dial-up subscriber 2,371 3,95 5,57¢

(1) CLEC access line equivalents represent a combimatfovoice services and data circuits. The caloutst represent
conversion of data circuits to an access line bdstpiivalents are calculated by converting dataudis (basic ra
interface, primary rate interface, DSL, DS-1, D&r@l Ethernet) and SONET-based (optical) servic€s3@nd OC48) tc
the equivalent of an access lil

(2) Reflects the inclusion of long-distance segvprovided as part of our VOIP offering while axdihg CLEC longdistanc
subscribers

Our Telephone Operations segment generated appatedin$115.8 million and $91.9 million of cash flefirom operatin
activities for the years ended December 31, 20@P20008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, Telephone Operatio
had total assets of approximately $1.2 billion.

Local calling services

These services include dial tone and other basidces. We generally charge residential and busimestomers a fixe
monthly rate for access to the network and forinating and receiving telephone calls within tHeaal calling area.

Custom calling features include caller name and bmmidentification, call forwarding, and call waigj. Valueadde:
services include teleconferencing and voice mai Wgually charge a flat monthly fee for custominglfeatures and value-
added services. Otherwise, we bundle the seleet@ites with local calling services at a discourrese.
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We offer private lines that provide direct connect between two or more local locationgrimarily to busines
customers—at flat monthly rates. In our Pennsylamd Texas markets, we offer small- and mediizad businesses a hos
VOIP package, which utilizes our current switch atidws the customer the flexibility of utilizingew telephone technolo
and features without investing in a new telephorstesn to get the features. The package bundlesdecace, calling feature
IP business telephones, and unified messaging,hwhtegrates multiple messaging technologies insingle system, such
allowing the customer to receive and listen to gaicessages through email. We also offer a similaglyrt to our residenti
customers in Texas, Pennsylvania and lllinois.

Network access servic

A significant portion of our revenue comes fromwatk access charges paid by lodigiance and other carriers
originating or terminating calls within our serviaeeas. These services allow customers to makeceive calls in our servi
area. Our longlistance customers typically pay a monthly feetkis service. In addition, other carriers pay netwacces
charges for originating or terminating calls witloar service areas. These charges, which are tedulalso apply to prive
lines that connect a customer in one of our serai@@s to a location outside of our service arBaswork access charg
include subscriber line charges (a fee for beingnected to the telephone network), local numbetapdity fees (wherek
consumers can keep their telephone number whergititanarriers), and universal services surchargesyell as the costs
originating and terminating calls from or to oucéb exchanges. The amount of network access chavgaues we receive
based on rates set or approved by federal andrsguitatory commissions that are subject to changay time.

We record the details of londjstance and switched access calls through ourecaccess billing system and bill
applicable carriers on a monthly basis. The netvemdess charge rates for intrastate Idisance calls and private lines wit
lllinois, Texas, and Pennsylvania are regulated approved by the lllinois Commerce Commission (“lIzGhe Public Utility
Commission of Texas (“PUCT"), and the Pennsylvdpidlic Utility Commission (“PAPUC")respectively. The access che
rates for interstate londistance calls and private lines are regulatedagamtoved by the Federal Communications Commi:
(“FCC"). See “Regulatory Environment—Federal Retjold’ and “Regulatory Environment—Access Charges.”

Subsidies

Subsidies consist of federal and state subsidigigitked to promote widely available, quality telepécervice at affordal
prices in rural areas. Subsidies come from pooleh@h we and other telecommunications providemsiuiding local, long-
distance, and wireless carriers, contribute on athip basis. Subsidies are allocated and distribtiberural carriers month
based upon their respective costs for providinglleervice. Like access charges, subsidies ardateguby federal and st
regulatory commissions. In lllinois, we receive deal but not state subsidies. In Texas and Penasigdy we receive ba
federal and state subsidies.

Long-distance services

Long-distance services enable customers to make caligaiminate outside their local calling area. Viferoa variety o
long-distance plans, including an unlimited callipign, and offer a combination of subscription asdge fees.
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Data and Internet services

Data and Internet services include revenues fromlocal private lines (typically intecity) and for providing access to-
Internet and IPTV. We also offer a variety of datmnectivity services, including Asynchronous TfandMode and gigak
Ethernet products and frame relay networks. InRemnsylvania markets, we also provide virtual mgsservices, collocatic
services and e-commerce enabling technologies.

Other services

Other services include revenues from telephonectding publishing, wholesale transport services am fiber-optic
network in Texas, billing and collection serviceside wiring service, and maintenance.

Other Operations

Prior to 2010, our Other Operations segment casisif Public Services, Business Systems, Marketpétes
(telemarketing and order fulfilment) (“CMR”gand Operator Services. In early 2010, we sold CKRo in early 2010, w
made a decision to exit the Operator Services basinwhich we expect to be completed during tis fialf of 2010. Our on-
going Other Operations segment consists of two ¢eme@ntary non-core businesses:

«  Public Serviceprovides local and lor-distance service and automated calling servicedarectional facilities

e Business Systensells and installs telecommunications equipmerthsas key, private branch exchange (PBX),
IP-based telephone systems, to business customeexas &nd lllinois

Our Other Operations segment generated approxiyndfeb million of cash flows from operating actieg for the yea
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. As of DecemheRB@9, Other Operations had total assets of appsirly
$12.3 million.

Wireless partnerships

Wireless partnership investment income is include@ component of other income. This includes imitdd partnershi
interests in Boulevard Communications, a competiaiecess provider, and five cellular partnersh@BE Mobilnet of Sout
Texas, GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17, PittsburghS®Pennsylvania RSA 6(1), and Pennsylvania RSA.6(]

We own 2.34% of GTE Mobilnet of South Texas LimitBdrtnership (“Mobilnet South PartnershipThe principa
activity of the Mobilnet South Partnership is pming cellular service in the Houston, Galvestond &eaumont, Texi
metropolitan areas. Because we have a minor owipargierest and cannot influence operations, weuaccfor this investme
using the cost basis; income is recognized onlycash distributions paid to us up to our proportienaarnings in tt
partnership. We recognized income on cash distdbatof $5.7 million from this partnership for thiear ended December
2009, and $4.1 million for the year ended Decenie2008.
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We own 17.02% of GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17, ebhserves areas in and around Conroe, Texas. Beeaibav
some influence over the operating and financialcpes of this partnership, we account for the inrest under the equ
method, recognizing income based on the propordfdhe earnings generated by the partnership tatdve allocated to t
Cash distributions are recorded as a reductioruinrvestment amount. For the years ended DeceBhe2009 and 2008, \
recognized income from this partnership of $4.0iaml and $2.6 million, respectively and receivedstcalistributions ¢
$2.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

San Antonio MTA, L.P., a wholly owned partnershipQellco Partnership (doing business as Verizonelgss), is th
general partner for both GTE Mobilnet of South Tegad GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17.

We own 3.6% of Pittsburgh SMSA, 16.6725% of Penvayia RSA 6(1), and 23.67% of Pennsylvania RSA)6f{lireles:
partnerships, all of which are majority owned apeérated by Verizon Wireless. These partnershiperctarritories that almc
entirely overlap the markets served by our Penasydy ILEC and CLEC operations. Because of our édhiinfluence ove
Pittsburgh SMSA, we account for the investment gighre cost basis. For the years ended Decemb&0®B, and 2008, v
recognized income on cash distributions from Ritgh SMSA of $6.3 million and $5.6 million, respeety. The Pennsylvan
RSA 6(l) and RSA 6(ll) partnerships are accountmduinder the equity method. For the years endecmber 31, 2009 al
2008, we recognized income of $9.1 million and $vilion, respectively, and received cash distribog of $8.3 million an
$7.0 million, respectively, from these partnerships

Boulevard Communications, L.L.P. is a Pennsylvdinigted liability partnership equally owned by usdaa company
the Armstrong Holdings, Inc. group of companiesulBward provides point-tpeint data services to businesses in we
Pennsylvania, including access to ISPs, connectmitger-exchange carriers, and higjeed data transmission. We accour
the Boulevard investment under the equity methodr @vestment in this partnership and the inconss/lgenerated
immaterial.

Customers and Markets

Our lllinois local telephone markets consist ofd@®graphically contiguous exchanges serving predantiy small town
and rural areas. We cover an area of approxima&@@l square miles, primarily in five central 1bis counties: Cole
Christian, Montgomery, Effingham, and Shelby. Wewide basic telephone services in this territorithvé3,866 local acce
lines, or 23.8 lines per square mile, as of Decerihe2009. Approximately 55.2% of our local acchses serve resident
customers, with the remainder serving businessomests. Our lllinois business customers are predantiy small retai
commercial, light manufacturing, and service induatccounts, as well as universities and hospitals.

Our 21 exchanges in Texas serve three principagrgpbic markets—Lufkin, Conroe, and Katya—an approximate
2,054 square mile area. We provide basic telepkendces in this territory, with 128,591 local asgdines, or approximate
62.6 lines per square mile, as of December 31, 28P8roximately 64.5% of our Texas local accessdiserve resident
customers, with the remainder serving businesomests. Our Texas business customers are predotyimamufacturing ar
retail industries; our largest business customeraspitals, local governments, and school distric
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The Lufkin market is centered primarily in Angeli@aunty in east Texas, approximately 120 mileshe@st of Housto
and extends into three neighboring counties. Tha & a center for the lumber industry and incluatesr significant industris
such as education, healthcare, manufacturing),ratad social services.

The Conroe market is located primarily in Montgoyn€ounty and is centered approximately 40 milesmof Houstor
Parts of the Conroe operating territory extend lsdatwithin 28 miles of downtown Houston, includipgrts of the affluel
suburb of The Woodlands. Major industries in thiarket include education, healthcare, manufacturietgil, and socii
services.

The Katy market is located in parts of Fort Bendyri$, Waller, and Brazoria Counties and is ceteqgproximately 3
miles west of downtown Houston along the busy axgheding 140 corridor. Most of the Katy market is considepatt o
metropolitan Houston, with major industries inclugliadministrative, education, healthcare, managenpeofessional, reta
scientific and waste management services.

The Pennsylvania ILEC territory covers 285 squaitegnand serves portions of Allegheny, Armstrongitl®&, ant
Westmorland Counties in western Pennsylvania. Tuthgrnmost point of the ILEC territory is 12 milesrth of the city ¢
Pittsburgh. We provide basic telephone servicahimterritory, with approximately 54,778 local ass lines, or approximatt
192.2 lines per square mile, as of December 319.28@proximately 52.2% of our local access lineghis territory serv
residential customers and the remainder servicenéss customers. The CLEC operations expand sousierve the city «
Pittsburgh and north to serve the city of ButleheTCLEC primarily targets small to mgized businesses, educatic
institutions, and healthcare facilities.

Sales and Marketing

Telephone Operations

The key components of our overall marketing stnaieghe Telephone Operations segment include:
< Positioning ourselves as a single point of confiacour customer communications need
e Providing customers with a broad array of voice data services, and bundling these services whepesgsible

. Providing excellent customer service, includinztbur, 7days a week centralized customer support to coats
installation of new services, repair and mainteedooctions;

« Developing and delivering new services to meet\graglcustomer needs and market demands

. Leveraging our history and involvement with locammunities and expanding “Consolidated Commuitinat anc
“Consolidate” brand recognitior

Our consumer sales strategy is focused on incrgasin penetration of broadband services, includd®l, IPTV an
VOIP, in all of our service areas. We are also $eclion crosselling our services, developing additional sersite maximiz
revenues and increase revenues per user, and simgeaustomer loyalty through superior service,alopresence, al
compelling product offerings.

10
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Our Telephone Operations segment currently hasetlwa@es channels: call centers, communication Engmn!
commissioned sales people. Our customer servidecenters serve as the primary sales channelsegdential and sm:
business customers. We also have a group of conoméss sales people, called our “Feet on the Strstin. This tea
canvasses our territories offering residential @ugrs our full suite of products, leading with driple-play bundled offering «
voice, DSL, and IPTV services. In addition to beingtrong sales point of contact, this sales e#flsd helps us to identify a
address customer service issues, if any, on a fiweatace-toface basis. This team of individuals can be scajedr down t
match our business needs, including, for examplee ilaunch a new product.

In both the ILEC and CLEC markets, we have salameled by a manager who has geographic markebnsiyility.
Sales representatives/account managers suppoexibing base of larger business customers and pregpects. Individu
sales representatives are responsible for theediefiecom product set, customize proposals to theetustomer needs (acc
lines, long-distance, MetrBthernet circuits, data connectivity, hosted VOIRI @usiness systems) and in most case
charged with retaining and growing the telecom ises/within their account base.

Our customers also can visit one of our commurocatcenters to address various communications neetlsding payin
bills or ordering new service. We believe that oostr availability to communication centers has edldecrease late payme
and bad debt, and reinforces our local presence.

Our Telephone Operations sales efforts are suppdagedirect mail, bill inserts, newspaper adventisipublic relatior
activities, sponsorship of community events, anfisite promotions.

Our Directory Publishing business is supported bgedicated sales force, which is focused on eacthefdirector
markets in order to maximize sales with both tiaddl print and online advertising products. Weidad the directory busine
has been an efficient tool for marketing our otsenvices and for promoting brand development aratemess.

Our Transport Services business has a sales fdrammmissioned sales people specializing in whddesaanspol
products.

Other Operations

Each of our Other Operations businesses executesates and marketing strategy primarily throughralependent sal
and marketing team comprised of dedicated fiel&éssalccount managers, management, and service eef@atdges. Ol
executives enhance these efforts by attending tndtrmde shows and assuming leadership rolesdusitny groups includir
the U.S. Telecom Association, the Associated Conications Companies of America, and the Independetephone ar
Telecommunications Alliance.

Information Technology and Support Systi

Our information technology and support systemsf $$ad seasoned organization that supports daijayoeperations ai
develops system enhancements. The technology dimpaur Telephone Operations segment is centereda @ore
commercially available and internally maintainedtsyns.

We have successfully migrated most of the key mssinprocesses from all of our previous acquisitiots a singl
companywide system and platform, which includes commonwoet provisioning, network management, workfc
management systems, and financial systems. Oursgstems and hardware platforms are readily exgdeda
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Network Architecture and Technolo

All of our local networks are based on Carrier SggvArea (“CSA”) architecture. CSA architecture allows ac
equipment to be placed closer to customer premisbigh means customers can be connected to thg@ragot over short
copper loops than would be possible if all custaweere connected directly to the carsemain switch. The access equipn
is connected back to the main switch on a high @gpdéiber circuit, resulting in extensive fiber gleyment throughout o
network, which enables us to provide broadbandaesn excess of 20 megabits per second (“mbpsSut customers.

A single engineering team is responsible for theralW architecture and inteperability of the various elements in
combined network of our lllinois, Texas, and Pervesyia telephone operations. Our combined netwqrkrations cent
(“NOC") in Mattoon, lllinois, monitors the performae of our enterprise#sde communications network around the clock
deals with customespecific issues. We believe our NOC allows our fleme Operations to maintain superior net
performance standards using common network syséemmhplatforms, which allows us to efficiently hamdieekend and after-
hours coverage amongst all of our markets and raffieiently allocate personnel to manage fluctuasian our workloa
volumes.

Our network is supported by advanced 100% digitatches, with a fiber network connecting 64 of @& exchange
These switches provide all of our local telephonst@mers with access to custom calling featurelsievadded services, a
dial-up Internet access. We have four additionatches: one that supports feature-rich VOIP, twdickted to longdistanc:
service, and one that supports our Public SenaodsOperator Services businesses.

In the past 10 years, we have invested over $40mito develop a highyuality 100% digital switching netwol
comprising 65 central offices and 482 CSAs. The G®#hitecture has enabled us to provide DSL serwiith speeds up to
mbps, to over 95% of our access lines. In additiwa,have deployed fibarptic cable extensively throughout our netw
resulting in a 100% Synchronous Optical Network KEED) that supports all of the inter-office and hoetote links, as well .
the majority of business parks within our ILEC Seevarea.

As a result of our advanced network, we introdulf€TlV service in selected lllinois markets in 200%xas markets
2006, and Pennsylvania markets in 2008. As of Déeerdl, 2009, IPTV was available to approximated,000 homes in o
markets. Our IPTV subscriber base continues to grod now totals 23,127 subscribers as of Decenthe?(®9. We do n
anticipate having to make any material capital aggs to our network infrastructure in connectiothulie continued growth
our IPTV product except for providing set-top boxeduture subscribers and adding headt equipment and capacity as
further increase our high-definition channel ofifigys.

We also operate a 2,000 mile fiber network in tha&teSof Texas. Approximately 52% of this networlsists of cabl
sheath that we own, either directly or through majority-owned subsidiary East Texas Fiber Line, ({ETFL"). For most a
the remaining route-miles of the network, we udéiligtrands on thirgharty fiber networks under contracts commonly knas
indefeasible rights of use. We sell competitive igsale capacity on this network to other carrieniseless providers, CLE(
and large commercial customers. In addition, thterf infrastructure provides the connectivity reqdi to provide IPT\
Internet and long-distance services to all Constdid residential and enterprise customers.
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In Pennsylvania, we operate a CLEC with an extensatwork consisting of over 557 route miles oéfibptic facilities ir
the Pittsburgh metropolitan area. The CLEC hasegulamuipment in 27 Verizon central offices and Bngbarq central offic
and primarily serves its customers using UNE lodpghe Pittsburgh market, the CLEC operates aaranotel that serves
the hub for its fiber-optic network. We offer spanethis carrier hotel to ISPs, lordistance carriers, other CLECs, and ¢
customers who need a carrigass location to house voice and data equipmehtaaness to a number of networks, inclu
ours.

Employee:

At December 31 2009, we had 1,095 full-time and pa&time employees. Approximately 52% of our employaes
covered by collective bargaining agreements as showhe table below:

# of Contract

Employees Union Expiration
Location Covered (1) Date
lllinois 34C IBEW 11/15/201.
Lufkin/Conroe, Texa: 181 CWA 10/16/201
Pennsylvania (ILEC 66 CWA 09/30/201:
Katy, Texas 38 CWA 02/28/201.
Pennsylvania (CLEC 11 CWA 02/29/201:
Totals 63€

(1) IBEW — International Brotherhood of Electrical Worke
CWA — Communication Workers of Americ

As a whole, we believe our relations with our enyples are good.

We expect the number of employees to be reduceappyoximately 75 full-time and 90 pantre positions as a result
the sale of CMR and our exit of the Operator S@wibusiness. See “ltem 7—Managengmiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Sqgbeat Events”.

Our Strengths
Technologically advanced network

We have made significant investments building eghhologically advanced telecommunications netwAgka result, w
are able to deliver high-quality, reliable videata and voice services in all of the markets weeseOur wideranging networ
and extensive use of fiber provide an easy reatth eéwisting and new areas. By bringing the fibetwoek closer to th
customer premises, we can increase our servicarafe quality and bandwidth services.

Our Internet Protocol (“IP") backbone network pme$ a highguality, flexible platform that allows us to delr
broadband applications to our customers at connpefirices. Approximately 95% of our total localcass lines were DSL-
capable as of December 31, 2009, and approxim@6€&ly of these DSlcapable lines are capable of speeds of 3 mbpsateay
Metro-Ethernet, VOIP services, and other additidRaservices leverage the extensive MPLS (MRtdtocol Label Switchin
core network, making it more efficient and scalal®err existing network can support increased IPTNssribers with limite
additional network preparation thereby driving aiddial revenue growth.

13




Table of Contents

Attractive market:
The geographic areas we serve are characterizadblanced mix of growing suburban areas and stabid territories.

Our Lufkin, Texas, and central lllinois markets baxperienced only nominal population growth ower past decade. .
of December 31, 2009, 99,583, or 40.3%, of ourllacaess lines were located in these markets. Heryéhvis low growth, lo\
customer density and the predominantly rural regidecharacter of these areas have historicaigaliraged competitors fr
making the significant capital investment requiteaffer competing services.

Our Conroe and Katy, Texas markets are suburbseoHbuston metropolitan area. As of December 309262,874, ¢
37.6%, of our local access lines were located @s¢hmarkets. Conroe and Katy have experienced a@rage population a
business employment growth over the past decadmmapared to the remainder of Texas and the Unitate$ as a whol
According to the most recent census, the mediasdtmld income in the primary county in our Conraerkat was $50,000 f
year, and $60,000 per year in our Katy market.dntast, the median annual household income wa®9®39n Texas ar
$42,148 in the United States.

Our Pennsylvania ILEC operates in a territory cowgapproximately 285 square miles, including pors of Allegheny
Armstrong, Butler, and Westmoreland counties in tems Pennsylvania. Over the past decade, our IL&@tdry ha
experienced population growth as the suburban carities in its territory have been expanding (thetsernmost point of th
territory is only 12 miles from Pittsburgh). Fomslar reasons, the ILEC has benefited from growttbusiness activity al
favorable market demographics. As of December 8D92 54,778, or 22.1%, of our local access lines lacated in ot
Pennsylvania ILEC territory.

Our Pennsylvania CLEC assets provide telecommuaitatand broadband services south of our ILEC teeyritc
customers in the metropolitan Pittsburgh area,taride north of the ILECs territory in the City Béitler and surrounding areas.

Broad product offerings and bundling of servi

We are able to leverage our losgnding relationship with our customers by offgrithem a broad suite
telecommunications and information services thatbérs us to pursue increased revenue per accesbyigelling addition
services through a bundling strategy, that inclunlestriple play offering of voice, DSL, and IPT¥rvices. Our residential a
business customers hagecess to a broad array of competitively pricedaaded television programming, data, and v
service choices with a single point of contactadiition to providing local and longdjstance telephone service, customers
choose multiple speeds of DSL service and IPTV gogning with over 230 all-digital channels, 50 hidgfinition (“HD”)
offerings, and digital video recorder (“DVR%ervices. We also offer custom calling servicesti@aaccess services, VC
service to residential and business customersgmeactory publishing.
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By bundling our service offerings, we are able ffieand sell a more complete package of serviadsch we believ
simultaneously increases our average revenue par (1BRPU”) and adds value for the consumer. We also beliesi
bundling leads to increased customer loyalty atehte®n. As of December 31, 2009, we had 56,8560cusrs who subscrib
to service bundles that included local service asélection of other services including customirgifeatures, DSL, and IPT®

Experienced management team with proven track tk

With an average of over 25 years of experienceoith lbegulated and nomegulated telecommunications businesses
management team has demonstrated that it can deligétable growth while providing high levels ofistomer satisfactic
Specifically, our management team has a provek teeord of:

e Providing superior quality services to rural customin a regulated environme
* Implementing successful business acquisitions ardjiations; an

e Launching and growing new services, such as DSL HMiV, along with managing CLEC businesses
complementary services, such as transport, busgys$sms and directory publishir

Generally supportive regulatory environment

As a RLEC, we benefit from federal and Texas anthBglvania state subsidies designed to promoteveusal service”
or widely available quality telephone service dbafable prices in rural areas. For the year endedember 31, 2009, \
received $34.6 million in payments from the fedenailversal service fund, $16.2 million from the &exuniversal service fur
and $5.2 million from the Pennsylvania universav®e fund. In the aggregate, these payments datesi 13.8% of our tot
revenues in 2009. For the year ended December@®8, 2ve received $32.1 million from the federalvamsal service fun
$17.9 million from the Texas universal service fuathd $5.2 million from the Pennsylvania universatvice fund. In tt
aggregate, these payments constituted 13.2% dbtalrevenues in 2008.

Business Strategies
Increase revenues per custor

We continue to focus on increasing our revenue questomer, primarily by improving our DSL and IPTVarke
penetration, increasing the sale of other valuesddervices, and encouraging customers to subgoritng service bundles.

We now provide IPTV service in all of our markefsfter making necessary upgrades to our network @undhasin
programming content, we launched IPTV in our Peluagya markets in April 2008, four months after aicipg the compan'
All of our markets offer HD programming and DVR ek that further increases our ARPU. As of Decendie 2009, ove
93% of our video customers have subscribed toriple tplay offering. At December 31, 2009, we h&J127 video subscribe
and the capability of offering the service to 0¥88,000 households in our territories.
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Improve operating efficienc

Over the years, we have made significant operdtiomgrovements in our business which has resulesignificant cos
savings and reductions in headcount. In particwarhave centralized most of the business and bffide operations from o
acquisitions into one functional organization widbmmon work groups, processes, and systems remagiahgndant cost
During 2009, we completed the conversion of ourrmBglvania ILEC billing system to the common platfoused by ot
lllinois and Texas operations. We have consolidawedt of our principal accounting functions to dilinois corporate office
We also completed combining two separate netwogkaijon centers into one. We are also currentthénprocess of realigni
our customer care centers, decreasing the numisercbfcenters from six to two. When completed, wehave one residenti
customer care center in Texas and one businessnoeistare center in lllinois. Because of theseciefficies, we are better a
to deliver a consistent customer experience andcgeour customers in a more cadfective manner. We have also identi
several “fast track’projects that allowed us to improve our cost strretwhile launching new products and improving
customer experience.

Maintain capital expenditure disciplir

Across all of our territories, we have successfufignaged capital expenditures to optimize retunnsugh discipline
planning and targeted investment of capital. F@ngxe, specific investments in our IP core and sseetworks allow us
continue to have significant flexibility to expamdir new service offerings, such as IPTV and VOIRises in a very cost-
efficient manner while maintaining our reputatianaahigh-quality service provider.

Pursue selective acquisitio

We have in the past taken, and expect to contintake in the future, a disciplined approach inspirrg the acquisition
access lines or operating companies. When we eeghagential transactions, important considerationkide whether or not:

e The market is attractivi

e The network is of appropriate quali

«  We can integrate the acquired company efficiet

«  There are significant potential operating synergies!

e The transaction is cash flow accretive from day.:
Competition

Competition continues to increase for telecommuimoa and information services. Technological adesn hav
expanded the types and uses of services and psodweilable. In addition, lack of or a reduced legk regulation o
comparable alternatives (e.g., cable, wireless @@dP providers) has lowered costs for these altereaacommunicatior
service providers. As a result, we face heightetmdpetition as well as some new opportunities gmificant portions of ot
business. We expect competition to remain a sicaniti factor affecting our operating results in 2@h@ beyond. Sedtem 1A

— Risk Factors — Risks Relating To Our Business The Telecommunications Industry is Constantly Clivagnganc
Competition is Increasing”.

Local telephone marki

In general, telecommunications service in ruralaares more costly to provide than service in urbagas; the low
customer density necessitates higher capital exjpeed on a pecustomer basis. As a result, it generally is nainecnically
viable for new entrants to overlap existing netvgorkrural territories.
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Despite the barriers to entry, rural telephone camigs face some competition for voice services faable provider:
wireless providers, and competitive telephone carigsa Cable providers are upgrading their netwovkh fiber optics an
installing facilities to provide fully interactiveiansmission of broadband voice, data, and videoneconications. Competiti
telephone companies have been granted permissistateyregulators to offer local telephone serincareas already served
a local telephone company.

Industry participants increasingly are embracinglR’ ®ervice, which essentially involves the routidgoice calls, at lea
in part, over the Internet through packets of dlaséead of transmitting the calls over the teleghsystem. While current VO
applications typically complete calls using ILEGrastructure and networks, as VOIP services becomaee widespread a
technology advances, more calls may be placed witheing the telephone system. On March 10, 2082 ,RCC issued
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking with respect t-enabled services. Among other things, the FCC nisidering whether VOI
services are regulated telecommunications sergcesmregulated information services. The FCC hddg/éssue a decision
the matter. We cannot predict the outcome of th€BQulemaking or how it will affect the revenuesair rural telephor
companies. The proliferation of VOIP, particulattythe extent such communications do not utilize retworks, may redu
our customer base and cause us to lose accesani@esher funding.

Mediacom, which serves portions of our lllinoisrteries, offers VOIP that competes with our basiice services. |
2008, NewWave Communications launched a competoigevproduct in the portions of our lllinois teoty not served t
Mediacom. In addition, both Suddenlink and Comoceesble competitors in Texas, launched a competaicevproduct in 200
These companies also compete with us for custoimen®sted in video and DSL services. In our Pelvasya territory, each
the two incumbent cable providers, Armstrong andh€ast, offer a competitive VOIP service. In all ke&is, our competito
offer aggressive triple play packages of voiceguidand broadband service. In general, cable coepaave modern netwol
and the capacity to serve a substantial numbeungitbmers. We estimate that cable companies now 8% of our territory.

Wireless service

Rural telephone companies usually face less wgetmsnpetition than nonsral providers of voice services bece
wireless networks in rural areas generally are dieseloped. Our service areas in Conroe and Katyad are exceptions to t
general rule because they are close to Houstom rksult, we are facing increased competition frgineless service provide
in those markets. Our Pennsylvania markets areeadposed to increased competition from wirelessiceproviders becau
of the concentration of interstate and major higysva the territory. We have experienced the Idsscoess lines by custom
choosing to eliminate their wireline service indawf a wireless provider. We believe that wirelsgbstitution will continue 1
be a competitive threat in the years to come.

Internet service
The Internet services market is highly competitinel there are few barriers to entry. Internet sesA-meaning wired ar
wireless Internet access and online content sesvi@ge provided by cable providers, Internet serpiceviders, longdistanc

carriers, and satellitbased companies. Many of these companies providetdiccess to the Internet and a variety of sujgy
services. In addition, many companies offer actestosed, proprietary information networks.
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Cable providers have aggressively entered the Heteaccess market over the last few years, and babstantia
transmission capabilities, traditionally carry dédalarge numbers of customers, and have a biliygfem infrastructure th
permits them to add new services. Industry souegpect, and we agree, that competition for Inteseetices will continue t
be very competitive.

Long-distance service

The long-distance telecommunications market is lgiglompetitive. Competition in the longdjstance business is bas
primarily on price, although service bundling, kotangy, customer service, billing service, and gyadill influence customers’
choices.

Other competition

Our other lines of business are subject to sulbatanbmpetition from local, regional, and natiormmpetitors. Ir
particular, our directory publishing and transgausinesses operate in competitive markets. We éxipgiccompetition in all ¢
our businesses will continue to intensify as neght®logies and new services are offered. Customettsese businesses ¢
and do change vendors frequently. Ldaghn contracts are unusual, and those that do leaist cancellation clauses that all
quick termination. Where long-term contracts arplacte, customers are renewing them for shorterger

Regulatory Environment

The following summary does not describe all existind proposed legislation and regulations affegtithe
telecommunications industry. Regulation can charagédly, and ongoing proceedings and hearings caltdr the manner il
which the telecommunications industry operates. déienot predict the outcome of any of these devedagsn nor thei
potential impact on us. S“Risk Factors—Regulatory Risks.”

Overview

The telecommunications industry is subject to esitenfederal, state, and local regulation. UnderTklecommunicatior
Act of 1996 (“Telecommunications Act”federal and state regulators share responsibitityifiplementing and enforcir
statutes and regulations designed to encourage atdiop and to preserve and advance widely avalaglality telephon
service at affordable prices.

At the federal level, the FCC generally exercisgsgiction over facilities and services of locatbange carriers, such
our rural telephone companies, to the extent they wsed to provide, originate, or terminate intgestor internatione
communications. The FCC has the authority to casmitmodify, cancel, terminate, or revoke our oiagpauthority for failure
to comply with applicable federal laws or FCC rulesgjulations, and policies. Fines or penalties aiay be imposed for any
these violations.

State regulatory commissions, such as the ICClimois, PAPUC in Pennsylvania, and the PUCT in Egxgenerally
exercise jurisdiction over carrierlcilities and services to the extent they are usegtovide, originate, or terminate intrast
communications. In particular, state regulatoryrmies have substantial oversight over interconoeaind network access
competitors of our rural telephone companies. ditaah, municipalities and other local governmegémncies regulate the pub
rights-ofway necessary to install and operate networkse Stgulators can sanction our rural telephone carepaor revoke
our certifications if we violate relevant laws egulations.
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Federal regulatior

Our rural telephone companies and competitive legghange companies must comply with the CommubpitaitAct o
1934, which requires, among other things, thatctetenunications carriers offer services at just erabonable rates and
nondiscriminatory terms and conditions. The 1996 amests to the Communications Act (contained in
Telecommunications Act discussed below) dramatgicahanged, and likely will continue to change, thadscape of tt
industry.

Removal of entry barrier

The central aim of the Telecommunications Act isojmen local telecommunications markets to competitivhile
enhancing universal service. Before the Telecomoatinins Act was enacted, many states limited tineices that could
offered by a company competing with an incumbeleipteone company. The Telecommunications Act pregerigse state a
local laws.

The Telecommunications Act imposes a number ofréotenection and other requirements on all local roomication
providers. All telecommunications carriers haveutydo interconnect directly or indirectly with tiiacilities and equipment
other telecommunications carriers. Local excharaggears, including our rural telephone companies,raquired to:

* Allow other carriers to resell their servic

«  Provide number portability where feasit

. Ensure dialing parity, meaning that consumers caoose their default local or lorlistance telephone comp:
without having to dial additional digit

. Ensure that competitors’ customers receive disoriminatory access to telephone numbers, opersgovice
directory assistance, and directory listin

*  Afford competitors access to telephone poles, dweotsduits, and righ-of-way; and

e Establish reciprocal compensation arrangements wther carriers for the transport and terminatiof
telecommunications traffic

Furthermore, the Telecommunications Act imposesirmumbent telephone companies (other than ruraphbein
companies that maintain their so-called “rural egéaom” as our subsidiaries do) additional obligatdo:

«  Negotiate interconnection agreements with othetararin good faith

* Interconnect their facilities and equipment witty aaquesting telecommunications carrier, at aninaally feasibl
point, at no-discriminatory rates and on r-discriminatory terms and conditior

. Offer their retail services to other carriers fesale at discounted wholesale ra

*  Provide reasonable notice of changes in the infaomanecessary for transmission and routing of isessover th
incumbent telephone compé' s facilities or in the information necessary faenmoperability; anc

. Provide, at rates, terms, and conditions thajuste reasonable, and ndiscriminatory, for the physical collocation

other carriersequipment necessary for interconnection or acaetB\Es at the premises of the incumbent telep
company.
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Access charge

A significant portion of our rural telephone come revenues come from network access chargeshyaliongdistanc
and other carriers for using our companiesal telephone facilities for originating or temating calls within our service are
The amount of network access charge revenues oal telephone companies receive is based on ratesrsapproved t
federal and state regulatory commissions, and ttase are subject to change at any time.

Intrastate network access charges are regulatestdty commissions. Network access charges in dopid marke
currently mirror interstate charges for everythimgt local switching. Interstate and intrastate mekwaccess charges in
Pennsylvania market also are very similar. In astiras required by Texas regulators, our Texad talephone compani
impose significantly higher network access chafgestrastate calls than for interstate calls.

The FCC regulates the prices we may charge fousleeof our local telephone facilities to originateterminate intersta
and international calls. The FCC has structuredelpgices as a combination of flat monthly chayggd by customers and b
usage-sensitive (per-minute) charges and flat nipctiarges paid by long-distance or other carriers.

The FCC regulates levels of interstate network ssogharges by imposing price caps on Regional Bekrating
Companies, referred to as RBGCand other large incumbent telephone compantessel price caps can be adjusted bas
various formulas, such as inflation and produdtiviand otherwise through regulatory proceedingsunimbent telephoi
companies, such as our local telephone companig,ahect to base network access charges on pnxe bat are not requir
to do so.

Historically, all of our rural telephone compankesd elected not to apply federal price caps. lastdgey employed a rate-
of-return regulation for their network interstate asceharges, whereby they earned a fixed returheain investment over a
above operating costs. In December 2007, we filpdtiion with the FCC seeking to permit our lllis@nd Texas companies
convert to price cap regulation. Our petition wapraved on May 6, 2008, and was effective on JulRQD8. This conversi
gives us greater pricing flexibility for interstagervices, especially the increasingly competitipecial access segment. It i
provides us with the potential to increase ouregahings by becoming more productive and introdyciew services. On t
other hand, we were required to reduce our interstacess charges in lllinois significantly, andaese our lllinois intraste
access charges generally mirror interstate ratesconversion also resulted in lower intrastatengies in lllinois. In additio
we now receive somewhat reduced subsidies frormthestate Universal Service Fund program.

Our Pennsylvania rural telephone company is anageeschedule rate-ogturn company, which means its inters
access revenues are based upon a statistical forewieloped by the National Exchange Carrier Assioci (“NECA”) anc
approved by the FCC, rather than upon its actustisctn its 2006 and 2007 annual revisions of trexage schedule formul
NECA proposed and the FCC approved structural astigat were fully phas-in during 2008, reducing our Pennsylve
rural telephone company’s annual interstate revebyeapproximately $3.7 million compared to peripdsr to the phasé of
the structural changes. The NECA and the FCC ma&serfiither changes to the formulas in future yeatsch could have ¢
additional impact on our revenues. Our Pennsylvauaral telephone company has the option to becontesa compan
meaning its rates would be subject to its own iidliml cost and demand data studies, but this optionld be irrevocable
exercised. We cannot predict whether or when itldibe advantageous to make this conversion.
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Traditionally, regulators have allowed network asceates for rural areas to be set higher thanatiieal cost ¢
terminating or originating longistance calls as an implicit means of subsidizirgghigh cost of providing local service in
areas. Following a series of federal court decsiing that subsidies must be explicit rathemtiaplicit, the FCC adoptt
reforms in 2001 that reduced painute network access charges and shifted a poofi@most recovery, which historically w
imposed on long-distance carriers, to flat-ratenthly subscriber line charges imposed on asdr customers. While the F
also increased explicit subsidies to rural teleghoompanies through the universal service fund,atipgregate amount
interstate network access charges paid by tistance carriers to access providers, such asucairtelephone companies,
decreased and may continue to decrease. The FCBekasconsidering further changes to interstatear&t access charg
since 2001, and has requested public commentsvamnadalifferent approaches to the issue, but hayetotaken action on a
of these proposals. We continue to actively pauéi@ in shaping intercarrier compensation and usaleservice reforn
through our own efforts as well as through indusfsgociations and coalitions.

Unlike the federal system, lllinois does not pravih explicit subsidy in the form of a universatveze fund. Therefor
while subsidies from the federal universal serfiged offset the decrease in revenues resulting fiteenreduction in interste
network access rates in lllinois, there was noesponding offset for the decrease in revenues frenreduction in intraste
network access rates. In Pennsylvania and Texasinthastate network access rate regime applicableur rural telephor
companies does not mirror the FCC regime, so tipaanof the reforms was revenue neutral.

In recent years, carriers have become more agyeessidisputing the FCG’ interstate access charge rates an
application of access charges to their telecomnatioics traffic. We believe these disputes haveeased in part becat
advances in technology have made it more diffitoltdetermine the identity and jurisdiction of tieffgiving carriers a
increased opportunity to challenge access costthéir traffic. For example, in September 2003, &g& Holdings Corporatis
filed a petition with the FCC to preempt an ordértlee Minnesota Public Utilities Commission asswgtijurisdiction ove
Vonage. The FCC determined that it was impossibléitide Vonages VOIP service into interstate and intrastate camept
without negating federal rules and policies. Acéogty, the FCC found it was an interstate servio¢ subject to tradition
state telephone regulation. While the FCC ordemdidspecifically address whether intrastate acckasges were applicable
Vonages VOIP service, the fact that the service was fotnbe solely interstate raises that concern. Waaiapredict wh
other actions other londistance carriers may take before the FCC or Withrtlocal exchange carriers, including our r
telephone companies, to challenge the applicalilitaccess charges. We have not received any dathscto date, but v
cannot guarantee that none will arise. Due to ticeeasing deployment of VOIP services and othéirnelogical changes, \
believe these types of disputes and claims aréyltkeincrease.

Unbundled network element rules

The unbundling requirements have been some of th& oontroversial provisions of the Telecommunaragi Act. In it
initial implementation of the law, the FCC generattquired incumbent telephone companies to leagiel@range of UNES tc
CLEC'’s. Those rules were designed to enable competitodeliver services to their customers in comboratwith thei
existing networks or as recombined service offexing an unbundled network element platform, comgn&nbwn as UNEP,
which allowed competitors with no facilities of th@wn to purchase all the elements of local teteph service from tt
incumbent and resell them to customers. These wlingnrequirements, and the duty to offer UNEs ¢onpetitors, impose
substantial costs on the incumbent telephone corepamd made it easier for customers to shift thesiness to other carrie
After a court challenge and a decision vacatingigos of the UNE rules, the FCC issued revisedsriteFebruary 2005 tF
reinstated some unbundling requirements for incurntedephone companies that are not protected dyutral exemption, b
eliminated the UNE-P option and certain other unling requirements.
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Each of the subsidiaries through which we operatelaral telephone businesses is an incumbenthetegocompany ai
provides service in rural areas. As discussed gbiive Telecommunications Act exempts rural teleghoaompanies fro
certain of the more burdensome interconnectioniregquents. However, the Telecommunications Act piesithat the rur
exemption will cease to apply as to competing caloimpanies if and when the rural carrier introducieieo services in
service area. In that event, a competing cableadpeproviding video programming and seeking toviate telecommunicatiol
services in the area may interconnect. Since ebcohrasubsidiaries now provides video serviced@irtmajor service areas,
rural exemption no longer applies to cable compamypetitors in those service areas. AdditionallyTexas, the PUCT h
removed the rural exemption for our Texas subsEhawith respect to telecommunications servicesistned by Sprir
Communications, L.P. on behalf of cable compariés.believe the benefits of providing video servioesweigh the loss
the rural exemptions to cable operators.

Under its current rules, the FCC has eliminatedunnbing requirements for ILECs providing broadbaedvices over fibt
facilities, but continues to require unbundled asd® massnarket narrowband loops. ILECs are no longer regluio unbundl
packet switching services. In addition, the FCCnfibuhat CLECs generally are not at a disadvantagemain wire cent
locations in regard to high bandwidth (DS-1 and ¥)Seops, dark fiber loops, and dedicated intecafftransport facilitie
However, where a disadvantage persists, ILECs moatio be required to unbundle loops and trangpoailities.

The FCC rules regarding the unbundling of netwdeknents did not have an impact on our lllinois &sthnsylvania ILE!
operations because these ILECs have rural exenspt@uar Pennsylvania CLEC operations were not sitly affected b
the 2005 changes to the UNE rules because thethaseown switching for business customers thatsar@ed by high capac
loops. In July 2008, our Pennsylvania CLEC renevieda threeyear term, a commercial agreement with Verizon eds th
terms of the pricing and provisioning of lines pomsly served utilizing UNER, including Verizon switching service. (
Pennsylvania CLEC currently provisions 3.63% of GWEC access lines utilizing this commercial aremgnt. Although tt
costs for this arrangement will increase over timiesuant to the terms of the agreement, our relgtilow use of Verizore
switching and our ability to migrate some of theeB to alternative provisioning sources will lirttie overall impact on o
current cost structure. The CLEC has experiencedenate increases in the overall cost to provisi@h-bapacity loop:
interoffice transport facilities, and dark fiberasesult of the FCC’s changes to unbundling resmuénts for those facilities.

In 2006, Verizon filed a petition requesting thia¢ =CC to refrain from applying a number of regolad to the Veriza
operations in six major metropolitan markets, idahg the Pittsburgh market area. Among other thiMgsizon urged the FC
to forbear from applying loop and transport unbinglregulations, claiming there was sufficient catijion in the Pittsburc
market to mitigate the need for these rules. Th€ B€nied Verizors petition in December 2007, but a federal coudpdeal
remanded this decision to the FCC for further asialyn 2009. If the FCC grants this remanded petitbr any simile
forbearance petitions in markets in which our CL&@&rates, our cost to obtain access to loop amdpoat facilities coul
increase substantially.
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Promotion of universal servic

In general, telecommunications service in rurabaress more costly to provide than service in urbagas. The low
customer density means that switching and othélitfes serve fewer customers and loops are tyfyidahger, requiring great
expenditures per customer to build and maintainsByporting the high cost of operations in rurakkets, federal univers
service fund subsidies promote widely availablealigy telephone service at affordable prices inatuareas. In 2009, v
received $56.0 million in aggregate payments frown federal universal service fund, the Pennsylvanigersal service fur
and the Texas universal service fund. In 2008, eeeived $55.2 million from the federal universatveee fund, th
Pennsylvania universal service fund and the Teragetsal service fund.

Federal universal service fund subsidies are paliglto carriers that are designated eligible tetecmnications carriers,
ETCs, by a state commission. Each of our rurapted@e companies has been designated an ETC. Haowanger FCC rule
prior to 2008, competitors could obtain the samvellef federal universal service fund subsidiesvaddo, per line served, if t
applicable state regulator determined that grandingh federal universal service fund subsidiesotopetitors would be in tl
public interest and the competitors offer and aftilseicertain services as required by the Teleconwations Act and the FC
The ICC has granted several petitions for ETC degigns, but to date no other ETCs are operatirguinillinois service are
We are not aware that any carriers have filedipastto be designated an ETC in our Pennsylvanibegas service areas.
May 2008, the FCC adopted an interim cap on paysnenETCs that are not incumbent telephone compabised on tl
payments received by such companies in March 200&h reduces (but does not eliminate) the incentor ETCs to seek
compete against our rural telephone companies.

The formula the FCC uses to calculate universafieefund subsidies is in flux. In November 200% Federabtate Joir
Board on Universal Service offered some proposalth¢ FCC to address the long-term reform issuemdathe higheos
universal service support system and to make fuedéathrevisions in the structure of existing unsarservice mechanisms.
November 2008, the FCC declined to adopt any oflttiet Boar’s proposals, but it continues to study universalise reform
It is widely reported that the FCE'National Broadband Plan, to be released on ME8¢t2010, will include proposals -
reforming the universal service fund, which mokely will result in the initiation of new rulemalgnproceedings to impleme
the proposals.

We cannot predict the outcome of any FCC rulemakingimilar proceedings. The outcome of any protegdr othe
legislative or regulatory changes could affectah®unt of universal service support our rural tetae companies receive.

State regulation of CClI lllinois

Our lllinois Telephone Operations’ lordistance, operator services, and payphone sersidesidiary holds the necess
certifications in lllinois (and the other statesvihich it operates). This subsidiary is requiredik tariffs with the ICC, bt
generally can change the prices, terms, and condiitated in its tariffs on one dayiotice, with prior notice of price increa
to affected customers. Our lllinois Telephone Opena’ other services are not subject to any significaatesregulations
lllinois, and our Other lllinois Operations are rsotbject to any significant state regulation owgsid any specific contractua
imposed obligations.
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Our lllinois rural telephone company is certified thhe ICC to provide local telephone services. Tdnisity operates as
distinct company from a regulatory standpoint ancegulated under a rate of return system for stdite revenues. Although,
explained above, the FCC has preempted certaia stgtilations pursuant to the Telecommunications Wois retains th
authority to impose requirements on our lllinoisalitelephone company to preserve universal serpicdect public safety a
welfare, ensure quality of service, and protectscomers. For instance, our lllinois rural teleph@oenpany must file tarif
setting forth the terms, conditions, and pricesiferintrastate services; these tariffs may belehgkd by third parties. C
lllinois rural telephone company has not had a gdrate proceeding before the ICC since 1983.

The ICC has broad authority to impose service gualhd service offering requirements on our llisoural telephor
company, including credit and collection policiegdgoractices, and can require our lllinois rurdépbone company to ta
actions to ensure that it meets its statutory altibgn to provide reliable local exchange servicer Example, as part of
approval of the reorganization we implemented inn&ztion with our 2005 IPO, the ICC imposed varioasditions, includin
(1) prohibitions on payment of dividends or othassle transfers from ICTC to us if ICTC fails to mestexceed agre
benchmarks for a majority of seven service quatigtrics, and (2) the requirement that ICTC havessd¢o $5.0 million or i
currently approved capital expenditure budget (Woi@r is higher) for each calendar year througbrabination of availab
cash and credit facilities. During 2009, we satidfeach of the applicable Illinois regulatory regmients necessary to pet
ICTC to pay dividends to us.

The lllinois General Assembly has made major rewisiand added significant new provisions to théigus of the Illinoi:
Public Utilities Act governing the regulation angligations of telecommunications carriers on asighree occasions sir
1985. Most recently, in 2007, the lllinois legisiet addressed competition for cable and video sesvand authorized statew
licensing by the ICC to replace the existing systérimdividual town franchises. This legislatiorsalimposed substantial state-
mandated consumer service and consumer protec@rrements on providers of cable and video sesvitbe requiremer
generally became applicable to us on January 18,28d we are operating in compliance with the r@w Although we hay
franchise agreements for cable and video servitafl the towns we serve, this statewide franchiginthority will simplify the
process in the future. The lllinois General Assenmdancluded its session in May 2009 and made ndiaddl changes to ti
current state telecommunications law, which cutyehas a sunset date of July 1, 2009. We expetittiealllinois legislatur
will consider additional amendments in 2010.

State regulation of CCI Texas

Our Texas rural telephone companies are eachiedrbf the PUCT to provide local telephone serviogheir respectiv
territories. In addition, our Texas lomistance and transport subsidiaries are registgitbdhe PUCT as interexchange carri
The transport subsidiary also has obtained a seiiovider certificate of operating authority (“SP&") to better assist tl
transport subsidiary with its operations in murétipreas. Recently, to assist with expanding sesvafferings, Consolidat
Communications Enterprise Services, Inc. also abthian SPCOA from the PUCT. While our Texas ruephone compal
services are extensively regulated, our other sesyisuch as longdistance and transport services, are not subjeent
significant state regulation.

Our Texas rural telephone companies operate amalistompanies from a regulatory standpoint. Eaxlséparate
regulated by the PUCT in order to preserve unitessevice, protect public safety and welfare, easyuality of service, al
protect consumers. Each Texas rural telephone coynpaust file and maintain tariffs setting forth tterms, conditions, au
prices for its intrastate services.
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Currently, both of our Texas rural telephone congmmave immunity from adjustments to their raias|uding thei
intrastate network access rates, because theyeélétcentive regulation'under the Texas Public Utilities Regulatory
(“PURA"). In order to qualify for incentive regulation, owrral telephone companies agreed to fulfill certafnastructur:
requirements. In exchange, they are not subjecthtdlenge by the PUCT regarding their rates, oVeealenues, return «
invested capital, or net income.

PURA prescribes two different forms of incentivgutation in Chapter 58 and Chapter 59. Under eighection, the rate
including network access rates, an incumbent telephcompany may charge for basic local serviceergéiy cannot b
increased from the amount(s) on the date of eleatithout PUCT approval. Even with PUCT approvakreases can or
occur in very specific situations. Pricing flexibilunder Chapter 59 is extremely limited. In caisty Chapter 58 allows gree
pricing flexibility on non-basic network servicesjstomer-specific contracts, and new services.

Initially, both of our Texas rural telephone comigsnelected incentive regulation under Chapter 58 fulfilled the
applicable infrastructure requirements, but thegnged their election status to Chapter 58 in 20@8ch gives them son
pricing flexibility for basic services, subject RIJCT approval. The PUCT could impose additionalastructure requiremel
or other restrictions in the future. Any requirertsenr restrictions could limit the amount of caslattis available to |
transferred from our rural telephone companieshto garent entities, and could adversely affectahility to meet our de
service requirements and repayment obligations.

In September 2005, the Texas legislature adoptguifisiant telecommunications legislation. Among ethhings, thi
legislation created a statewide video franchised@communications carriers; established a framlewem deregulate the ret
telecommunications services offered by incumbeaalldéelecommunications carriers, and imposed coentirequirements
reduce intrastate access charges; and directddltfd to initiate a study of the Texas UniversahMBer Fund. The PUCT stu
submitted to the legislature in 2007 recommended tie Small Company Area Higbest Program, which covers our Te
telephone companies, should be reviewed by the Pfo@i a policy perspective regarding basic locdpghone service rat
and lines eligible for support. The PUCT has ordgdrassed the large company fund and has no imneegliabs to conduct
small company review. The Texas legislature mayresidissues of importance to rural telecommunioatiarriers in Texe
including the Texas Universal Service Fund, in2B&1 legislative session.

Texas universal service

The Texas universal service fund is administeredNBYCA. PURA, the governing law, directs the PUCTatiopt an
enforce rules requiring local exchange carriersdatribute to a state universal service fund thapd telecommunicatio
providers offer basic local telecommunications Eenat reasonable rates in high cost rural arelas.Texas universal serv
fund is also used to reimburse telecommunicatiowsigers for revenues lost by providing TAs$sistance and to reimbu
carriers for providing lifeline service. Our Texasal telephone companies receive disbursements tings fund.
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State regulation of CCI Pennsylvania

The PAPUC regulates the rates, the system of finhaccounts for reporting purposes, and certapeets of servic
quality, billing procedures and universal serviemding, among other things, related to our rurépieone company a
CLEC's provision of intrastate services. In additiore #APUC sets the rates and terms for interconmettiween carrie
within the guidelines ordered by the FCC.

Price regulation in Pennsylvan

Pennsylvania intrastate rates are regulated undtatatory framework referred to as Act 183. Urnitiés statute, rates 1
non-competitive intrastate services are allowethtoease based on an index that measures econiaeyprice increases.
return, we have committed to continue to upgradenetwork to ensure that all its customers wouldehaccess to broadbe
services, and to deploy a ubiquitous broadbandineéfas 1.544 mbps) network throughout our entéevise area t
December 31, 2008, which we did.

Pennsylvania universal service and access che

On September 30, 1999, as part of a proceedingréisalved a number of pending issues, the PAPU@reddILECs
including our Pennsylvania property, to rebalaned eeduce intrastate toll and switched access.ratethat same order, t
PAPUC also created a Pennsylvania Universal Seiviged (PAUSF) to help offset the resulting losslldEC revenues. |
2003, the PAPUC ordered ILECs to further rebalaamue reduce intrastate access charges and leftAbSIP in place pendir
further review. In 2008, our Pennsylvania ILECs wairreceipts from and contributions to the PAUSEIt&5.2 million an
$0.3 million, respectively. Our Pennsylvania CLEaives no funding from the PAUSF but currentlytdbotes $0.2 millio
annually. Since Act 183 was adopted in 2004, th®B@ may not require a LEC to reduce intrastate ssccates except or
revenue neutral basis.

In 2004, PAPUC instituted a third review of accebarges. This proceeding may affect access chatge for both ot
Pennsylvania ILEC and CLEC properties, as welllesamount of funding that our ILEC receives frora AUSF and tt
amounts that both companies contribute to that.f@agce 2004, the PAPUC has twice agreed to stasetiproceedings wh
awaiting an FCC ruling in its Unified Compensatibocket. The request for a third stay is now pendiefpre the PAPUC al
is opposed by several parties. Parties have fiestiniony and the PAPUC held the first round of imggr beginning i
February 2009. It is not known when the PAPUC wile. During the period of the stay, the current 5% continues under t
existing regulations.

Local government authorizatiol

In lllinois, we historically have been requireddbtain franchises from each incorporated munidipati which our rure
telephone company operates. An lllinois state s#apuescribes the fees that a municipality may isepfor the privilege ¢
originating and terminating messages and placioijtfas within the municipality. Our lllinois Tefghone Operations also
be required to obtain permits for street openind eonstruction, or for operating franchises toatisind expand fiber op!
facilities. These permits or other licenses or egrents typically require the payment of fees.
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Similarly, Texas incumbent telephone companiehslly had been required to obtain franchisesifelach incorporat:
municipality in which they operate. Texas law nowowpdes that incumbent telephone companies do eedno obtai
franchises or other licenses to use municipal sigtfitway for delivering services. Instead, payméatsunicipalities for rights-
of-way are administered through the PUCT and througéparting process by each telecommunications gesvilncumber
telephone companies still need to obtain permasfmunicipal authorities for street opening andstarction, but most burde
of obtaining municipal authorizations for accessights-of-way have been streamlined or removed.

Our Texas rural telephone companies still operatesyant to the terms of municipal franchise agregmén som
territories served by Consolidated Communicatidnsast Bend Company. As the franchises expire, #reynot being renewe

Like lllinois, Pennsylvania operates under a streein which each municipality may impose variogss.
Broadband and Internet regulatory obligatio

To date, the FCC has treated ISPs as enhancedesgraviders rather than common carriers. As alttdSPs are exem
from most federal and state regulation, includihg tequirement to pay access charges or contributiee federal univers
service fund. Currently, there is a relatively lied body of law and regulation that governs act¢es®r commerce on, t
Internet, including such matters as protectiontolfdeen from exposure to indecent content, andgmtodn of private consum
data. As the Internet usage increases, governmeailt lavels may adopt new rules and regulationggply existing laws at
regulations to the Internet. The FCC is reviewihg appropriate regulatory framework governing hépeed access to -
Internet through telephone and cable providesshmunications networks. We cannot predict the @ute of these proceedin
and they may affect our regulatory obligations #redform of competition for these services.

In 2005, the FCC adopted a comprehensive reguldtarpework for facilitieshased providers of wireline broadbi
Internet access service after determining that sechice is an information service. This decisitercps the federal regulat
treatment of DSL service in parity with the federafjulatory treatment of cable modem service. Easibased wirelin
carriers are permitted to offer broadband Intem@tess transmission arrangements for wireline Haad Internet acce
services on a common carrier basis or a non-comcaorier basis. Revenues from wireline remmmon carrier broadba
Internet access service are not subject to assasfomne¢he federal universal service fund.

VOIP can be used to carry voice communications @véroadband Internet connection. The FCC has rllatdsom
VOIP arrangements are not subject to regulatiotel@phone services. In particular, in 2004, the FGIEd that certain VOI
services are jurisdictionally interstate, which medhat states cannot regulate those applicatiorikeoservice providers.
number of state regulators filed judicial challenge that decision. Expanded use of VOIP technolagyd reduce the acct
revenues received by local exchange carriers likdld=Cs and our CLEC. We cannot predict whethewbenVOIP provider:
may be required to pay or be entitled to receiveess charges, the extent to which users will swibsti/OIP calls for tradition
wireline communications, or the impact of the growft VOIP on our revenues.

Video service over broadband is lightly regulatgdiie FCC and states. Such regulation is limitedotmpany registratio

broadcast signal call sign management, fee catlectiervice and billing requirements and admintisteamatters such as Eq
Employment Opportunity reporting. IPTV rates ar¢ mgulated.
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of .

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 208®RA”) allowed for two major telecommunications activittes
occur, the first is to create $4 billion in graate loans to help build broadband infrastructurecwivill be administered by tt
Department of Agriculture’s Rural Utilities Servi¢(RUS”) and the Commerce Departmenfiational Telecommunicatiol
and Information Administration (“NTIA”). The secornslto have the FCC develop a national broadbaa. pl

Broadband Stimulus (ARR.

The ARRA program administered by NTIA is primardygrant program, and RUS is a grant and loan pnogBth have
specific target areas and directives and are reduby Congress to complete the application and ifigngprocess b
September 2010. They are in the process of complethund one and will begin round two in March 200bnsolidater
reviewed both program opportunities for round ond determined that neither made economic sensersu@ at this time
There were several companies that applied for $tisndollars in our territories that we provided eoents on to NTIA an
RUS. The outcome of round one applications is Iséilhg determined.

National Broadband Pla

On April 8, 2009, the FCC began the process of ldpueg a national broadband plan that will seeletsure that ever
American has access to broadband capability. AR&Iires the plan to address four major areas @fdirand deployment ai
use; (1) Ensure broadband access to all AmericHastigely and efficiently, (2) Affordability and tilization, (3) Status o
deployment and (4) broadband advancement on cidcpaublic services. The plan, which is due to Heaged on March 11
2010, likely will propose changes to a number oCHilicies and regulations in an effort to promthiese goals.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Relating to Current Economic Conditions

The current volatility in economic conditions ameé financial markets may adversely affect our itgudusiness, and financi
performance.

Beginning in 2008, economic conditions caused wgdented disruptions in the financial markets,udirig volatility in
asset values and constraints on the availabilityredit. At the same time, the U.S. economy entareda recession. While w
are unable in certain instances to quantify theachmf these factors on our business or resultepefrations, the curre
economic and financial market conditions have att@dad each of the risks discussed below and miadritieir potential effec
on us. Moreover, disruptions in the financial maskeould adversely affect our ability to obtain giddal credit or refinanc
existing loans.
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Unfavorable changes in financial markets could adely affect pension plan investments resultingmaterial funding
requirements to meet our pension obligations.

Our pension plans have investments in marketalolerisies, including marketable debt and equity skies, whose value
are exposed to changes in the financial marketsn®2008, the fair market value of these investtaeleclined materially. A
a result, we were required in 2009 to make sigaificcash contributions to our pension funds. Algfothe value of thes
pension investments increased in 2009 as the markgneral recovered, we expect that we will gamtito make future ca:
contributions to the plans, the amount and timihgvbich will depend on various factors includingetfinalization of funding
regulations, future investment performance, chariggsiture discount rates and changes in demogecapdi the populatio
participating in the Compang’qualified pension plan. Returns generated on g&sets have historically funded a large pot
of the benefits paid under these plans. Continaadms below the estimated loteym rate of return could significantly incres
our contribution requirements, which could adversdfect cash flows from operations.

Weak economic conditions in our service areas coaltse us to lose subscriber connections and r&genu

Substantially all of our customers and operatioreslacated in lllinois, Pennsylvania, and Texasr @ustomer base
small and geographically concentrated, particuléslyresidential customers. Because of our geodeafoitus, the successt
operation and growth of our business depends pifyman economic conditions in the service areawof rural telephon
companies. The economies of these areas, in tigmegpendent upon many factors, including:

e Demographic trend:

« In lllinois, the strength of the agricultural markeand the light manufacturing and services indestrcontinue
demand from universities and hospitals, and thelle’government spendin

* In Pennsylvania, the strength of sr- to mediun-sized businesses, healthcare, and education sigeadtid

« In Texas, the strength of the manufacturing, health, waste management, and retail industries amtincec
demand from schools and hospit:

Downturns in the economic conditions in the markedsserve could cause our existing customers taceetheir purchase
of our services and make it difficult for us to aibt new customers which could negatively impactlaaccess lines ar
revenues.

Risks Relating to Dividends

This section discusses reasons why we may be ut@apkey dividends at our historic levels, or at all
Our board of directors could, in its discretion,p#gt from or change our dividend policy at any time

We are not required to pay dividends; our stockéiadio not have contractual or other rights toivectnem. Our board ¢
directors may decide at any time, in its discretiondecrease the amount of dividends, changevokeethe dividend policy, ¢

discontinue paying dividends entirely. If we do maty dividends, for whatever reason, shares ofcommmon stock coul
become less liquid and the market price of our comstock could decline.
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Our ability to pay dividends, and our board of diogs’ determination to maintain our dividend policy, wilepend o
numerous factors, including:

The state of our business, the environment in whieloperate, and the various risks we face, innlydompetitior
technological change, changes in our industry, ragdilatory and other risks summarized in this AhrReport ol
Form 1(-K;

Changes in the factors, assumptions, and otheridamasions made by our board of directors in revigwanc
adopting the dividend policy, as described ur‘Dividend Policy and Restrictio” in Item 5 of this Annual Repor

Our results of operations, financial conditionpiidjty needs, and capital resourc

Our expected cash needs, including for interest ang future principal payments on indebtednessital
expenditures, taxes, and pension and other postretnt contributions; ar

Potential sources of liquidity, including borrowingder our revolving credit facility or possiblesassales

We might not have sufficient cash to maintain aurddvidend levels.

While our estimated cash available to pay divideiodshe year ended December 31, 2009, was sufti¢@pay dividenc
in accordance with our dividend policy, if our freuestimated cash available were to fall below expectations, or if ol
assumptions as to estimated cash needs proveeatome may need to:

Reduce or eliminate dividenc

Fund dividends by incurring additional debt (to théent we are permitted to do so under the agreengovernin
our thenexisting debt), which would increase our leverafght repayment obligations, and interest experesgeds
our interest coverage, and reduce our capacitynaaridebt for other purposes, including to fundufatdividen:
payments

Amend the terms of our credit agreement, if oudés agree, to permit us to pay dividends or maker@aymen:
the agreement would otherwise restr

Fund dividends by issuing equity securities, wtdolld be dilutive to our stockholders and negagiadfect the pric
of our common stock

Fund dividends from other sources, such as by asdes or working capital, which would leave ushwlgss cas
available for other purposes; a

Reduce other expected uses of cash, such as capthditures

Over time, our capital and other cash needs wilhirably be subject to uncertainties, which coufga whether we pe
dividends and at what level. In addition, if we ls¢e raise additional cash by incurring debt ouisg equity securities, v
cannot assure that such financing will be availairiereasonable terms or at all. Each of the pdiibilisted above cou
negatively affect our results of operations, finahcondition, liquidity, and ability to maintaimd expand our business.

30




Table of Contents

Because we are a holding company with no operatiescan only pay dividends if our subsidiarieqster funds to us

As a holding company, we have no direct operati@mgl our principal assets are the equity interegtshold in oul
subsidiaries. However, our subsidiaries are legdiyinct and have no obligation to transfer fumolsis. As a result, we a
dependent on our subsidiarigg’sults of operations, existing and future debeamrents, governing state law and regula
requirements, and the ability to transfer fundesdo meet our obligations and to pay dividends.

Restrictions in our debt agreements or applicaldgeslegal and regulatory requirements may prewentrom paying dividend

Our ability to pay dividends will be restricted burrent and future agreements governing our debtuding our credi
agreement, as well as the corporate law and regylegquirements in several states.

Based on the results of operations from Octob&005, through December 31, 2009, we would have bédnto pay
dividend of $110.4 million under the restricted pent covenants in our credit agreement. After gj\weffect to the dividend ¢
$11.5 million, which was declared in November 2@G0% paid in February 2010, we could pay a dividen&98.9 million
under the credit facility.

Under Delaware law, our board of directors mayawdhorize a dividend unless it is paid out of aunptus (calculated i
accordance with the Delaware General Corporatian), lar, if we do not have a surplus, it is paid ofibur net profits for th
fiscal year in which the dividend is declared ahe fpreceding fiscal year. Statutes governing liinand Pennsylvan
corporations impose similar limitations on the #pibf our subsidiaries that are incorporated iosth states to declare and |
dividends.

State regulators could require our rural telephom@panies to make capital expenditures and coold the amount o
cash those entities may lawfully transfer to usr Erample, the ICC imposed various conditions @napproval of thi
reorganization consummated in connection with &@.IThose conditions prohibit our subsidiary, ICTIGm paying dividend
or making other cash transfers to us if ICTC failedneet or exceed agreagon benchmarks for a majority of seven ser
quality metrics for the prior reporting year. Indétbn, ICTC must have access to the higher of $illon or its currently
approved capital expenditure budget for each calepear through a combination of available cashamndunts available und
credit facilities. In addition, the lllinois Publidtilities Act prohibits ICTC from paying dividendsxcept out of earnings a
earned surplus, if ICTG’ capital is or would become impaired by the paymenif payment of the dividend would imp:
ICTC's ability to render reasonable and adequate seaticeasonable rates, unless the ICC otherwises fihdt the publi
interest requires payment of the dividend, sultieeny conditions that regulator may impose. ThéBE& has placed debt a
transaction cost recovery restrictions for a thyear period that could have an impact to the paymkdividends.

We expect that our estimated tax payments relatesut federal income tax liability will increase the future as we hay
utilized all of our federal net operating losseieh may reduce the amount of cash available todgraiglends.

Under the Internal Revenue Code, a corporationititatrs losses in excess of taxable income (knosva &et operating
loss,” or NOL) generally may carry the loss back or fordvand use it to offset taxable income in a diffenggriod. We hav
utilized all our federal net operating losses, aietaluation allowances, that we can carry forwarduture periods. Since o
NOLs have been used or have expired, we will beired to pay additional cash income taxes. Thesm®e in our cash incor
tax liability may reduce the amount of cash avdddb pay dividends and could require us to redbeeamount of dividends w
pay in the future.
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Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

If we continue to pay dividends at the level cutlsernticipated under our dividend policy, our atyilto pursue growtl
opportunities may be limited.

We believe that our dividend policy could limit, taot preclude, our ability to grow. If we continpaying dividends &
the level currently anticipated, we may not retaisufficient amount of cash to fund a material eg@n of our busines
including any acquisitions or growth opportunitieguiring significant and unexpected capital exjtemels. For that reason,
ability to pursue any material expansion of ourihess may depend on our ability to obtain thpadty financing. We canni
guarantee that such financing will be availableuto on reasonable terms or at all, particularly i turrent econom
environment.

Our organizational documents could limit or delagother partys ability to acquire us and, therefore, could depriour
investors of a possible takeover premium for tebares.

A number of provisions in our amended and restatdficate of incorporation and bylaws will makiedifficult for
another company to acquire us. Among other thitigse provisions:

. Divide our board of directors into three classelich results in roughly ontitird of our directors being elected e
year;

* Require the affirmative vote of holders of 75% oorm of the voting power of our outstanding commuocls tc
approve any merger, consolidation, or sale of afilubstantially all of our asse

. Provide that directors may only be removed farseaand then only upon the affirmative vote of baddof twothirds
or more of the voting power of our outstanding camnrstock;

. Require the affirmative vote of holders of ttyords or more of the voting power of our outstaigdcommon stock
amend, alter, change, or repeal specified prowssiohour amended and restated certificate of irm@pn an
bylaws;

* Require stockholders to provide us with advancécadf they wish to nominate any candidates forctda to ou
board of directors or if they intend to propose amatters for consideration at an annual stockhsldezeting; ani

«  Authorize the issuance of so-called “blank chemieferred stock without stockholder approval upachsterms as tt
board of directors may determir

We also are subject to laws that may have a simdfiect. For example, federal, lllinois, and Pervagia
telecommunications laws and regulations generatipit a direct or indirect transfer of controlanour business without pri
regulatory approval. Similarly, Section 203 of thelaware General Corporation Law restricts ourighib engage in a busine
combination with an “interested stockholdeffiese laws and regulations make it difficult footoer company to acquire t
and therefore could limit the price that investargiht be willing to pay in the future for shares amir common stock. |
addition, the rights of our common stockholderd b subject to, and may be adversely affectedhgyrights of holders of ar
class or series of preferred stock that we mayeigsthe future.
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The concentration of the voting power of our comistogk could limit a shareholder’s ability to inflace corporate matters.

On December 31, 2009, Central lllinois Telephondjctv is controlled by our Chairman, Richard A. Ludp owned
approximately 14.2% of our common stock, and ourceXve management and directors (excluding Mr. pkim) owned
approximately 2.4%. As a result, these investoikhei able to significantly influence all matteexjuiring stockholder approvi
including:

*  The election of director:

»  Significant corporate transactions, such as a mengether sale of our company or its ass
« Acquisitions that increase our indebtedness oséie of revent-generating asset

e Corporate and management polici

«  Amendments to our organizational documents;

e Other matters submitted to our stockholders foray.

This concentrated share ownership limits the gbiit other shareholders to influence corporate enattWe may tak
actions that many stockholders do not view as beiakfwhich may adversely affect the market praé¢@ur common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness and Our CapitaStructure

We have a substantial amount of debt outstandirgraay incur additional indebtedness in the futuvhich could restrict ou
ability to pay dividends and fund working capitaldaplanned capital expenditures.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $880.0 millionatélt longterm debt outstanding, excluding the current partand
$80.7 million of stockholders’ equity. This amowftieverage could have important consequencesjding:

< We may be required to use a substantial portioauofcash flow from operations to make interest payts on ot
debt, which will reduce funds available for operast, future business opportunities, and divide

«  We may have limited flexibility to react to change®our business and our indust
« It may be more difficult for us to satisfy our othabligations;

«  We may have a limited ability to borrow additiofiahds or to sell assets to raise funds if neededvéisking capital
capital expenditures, acquisitions, or other puess

«  We may become more vulnerable to general advem®oatc and industry conditions, including changenteres
rates; anc

«  We may be at a disadvantage compared to our caimzetinat have less del

We currently expect our cash interest expense t@ppeoximately $51.0 million to $54.0 million in 20. Interest expen:
rose significantly beginning in 2008 after the MolRittsburgh acquisition as a result of the add#élondebtedness incurred. \
cannot guarantee that we will generate sufficiemenues to service and repay our debt and haveuatdefunds left over t
achieve or sustain profitability in our operationget our working capital and capital expenditueeds, compete successft
in our markets, or pay dividends to our stockhadder
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If we cannot generate sufficient cash from our apens to meet our debt service and repayment atibigs, we may nee
to reduce or delay capital expenditures, the dgwve@nt of our business generally, and any acquisitif we became unable
meet our debt service and repayment obligationswauald be in default under the terms of our cregjteement, which woul
allow our lenders to declare all outstanding boings to be due and payable. If the amounts outstgnander our cred
facilities were to be accelerated, we cannot asgouehat our assets would be sufficient to repefpil the money owed.

As of December 31, 2009, our credit agreement wddde permitted us to incur approximately $101.lioni of
additional debt. However, additional debt would@dbate the risks described above.

Our credit agreement contains covenants that liménagemens' discretion in operating our business and couldvent us
from capitalizing on opportunities and taking otlvarporate actions

Among other things, our credit agreement limitsestricts our ability (and the ability of certaihaur subsidiaries) to:

e Incur additional debt and issue preferred st

*  Make restricted payments, including paying dividepd, redeeming, repurchasing, or retiring ourteaptock;

«  Make investments and prepay or redeem ¢

< Enter into agreements restricting our subsidi’ ability to pay dividends, make loans, or transfeseds to us

*  Create liens

*  Sell or otherwise dispose of assets, includingteapiock of subsidiarie:

«  Engage in transactions with affiliate

« Engage in sale and leaseback transact

«  Make capital expenditure

«  Engage in a business other than telecommunicatiom

e Consolidate or merg:

In addition, our credit agreement requires us tmmy with specified financial ratios, including i@ regarding tote
leverage and interest coverage. Our ability to dgmth these ratios may be affected by events hdyour control. Thes
restrictions limit our ability to plan for or reatd market conditions, meet capital needs, or ettser constrain our activities

business plans. They also may adversely affechbility to finance our operations, enter into asgions, or engage in oth
business activities that would be in our interest.

A breach of any of the covenants contained in oadit agreement, or in any future credit agreemengur inability to
comply with the financial ratios could result in ament of default, which would allow the lendersdieclare all borrowing
outstanding to be due and payable. If the amourtitanding under our credit facilities were to beederated, we cannot ass
that our assets would be sufficient to repay ihtheé money owed. In such a situation, the lendetdd foreclose on the ass
and capital stock pledged to them.
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We may not be able to refinance our existing defé¢essary, or we may only be able to do so aglaeh interest expense

Our credit facilities mature in full in 2014, andewnay not be able to refinance those loans. Altemig, any renewal
refinancing may occur on less favorable terms.dfake unable to refinance or renew our creditifaes| our failure to repay i
amounts due on the maturity date would cause aitiefader the credit agreement. If we refinance aedit facilities on terr
that are less favorable to us than the terms ofeaisting debt, our interest expense may increaggfisantly, which coul
impair our ability to use our funds for other pusps, such as to pay dividends.

Risks Relating to Our Business

The telecommunications industry is constantly ciremgnd competition is increasing.
The telecommunications industry has been, and \Wwevieawill continue to be, characterized by sevémahds, including:
« Increased competition within established marketmfproviders that may offer competing or alternratervices

e The blurring of traditional dividing lines betwgeand the bundling of, different services, sucloaal dial tone, long-
distance, wireless, cable, and data and Intermeices; anc

« Anincrease in mergers and strategic alliancesélaiv one telecommunications provider to offerregased servic
or access to wider geographic mark

We expect competition to intensify as a result @vrcompetitors and the development of new techiedpgroducts, ar
services. Consequently, we may need to spend w&ignify more in capital expenditures than we cuiyeanticipate to kee
existing customers and to attract new ones.

Many of our voice and data competitors, such ategatoviders, Internet access providers, wirelessise providers, ar
long-distance carriers, have substantially larger opmrat and financial resources, own larger and nutiverse networks, a
subject to less regulation and have superior braadgnition. In addition, due to consolidation atichtegic alliances within t
industry, we cannot predict the number of compeditge will face at any given time. Competition abaldversely affect us
several ways including the loss of customers ardltiag revenue and market share, the possibifigustomers reducing th
usage of our services or shifting to less profgat@rvices, our need to lower prices or increasketiag expenses to rem
competitive and our inability to diversify by susséully offering new products or services.

The use of new technologies by other companiesmoegase our costs and cause us to lose custonmerseavenues.

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapitd significant changes in technology, frequeniv reervice
introductions, and evolving industry standards. ifetogical developments may make our servicesdesgpetitive. We me
need to respond by making unbudgeted upgradegwifisant capital expenditures or by developingitiddal services, whic
could be expensive and time consuming. If we faitdspond successfully to technological changesbeplescence, or fail
make use of important new technologies, we cous loustomers and revenues and be limited in olityatn attract ne\
customers. The successful development of new sxwehich is an element of our business stratsgyndertain and depend
on many factors, and we may not generate antigipegeenues from such services, which would redugepoofitability. We
cannot predict the effect of these changes on @mpetitive position, costs, or profitability.
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In addition, we expect that an increasing amourttusfrevenues will come from providing DSL, VOIPdalP TV service:
The market for higtspeed Internet access is still developing, and xpee@ current competitors and new market entras
introduce competing services and to develop nelWwntglogies. Likewise, the ability to deliver higfuality video service ov
traditional telephone lines is a recent advanceithstill developing. The markets for these saggicould fail to develop, grc
more slowly than anticipated, or become saturatiétll ompetitors with superior pricing or servicksaddition, federal or ste
regulators may expand their control over DSL, VQH#tvice and IPTV offerings. We cannot predict thicome of thes
regulatory developments or how they may affect @hiigations or the form of competition for thesevézes. As a result, v
could have higher costs and capital expenditumsel revenues, and greater competition than exgdoreDSL, VOIP an
IPTV services.

Future acquisitions could be expensive and mayasuccessfu

Our acquisition strategy entails numerous riskse Phrsuit of acquisition candidates could be exjpenand may not t
successful. Our ability to complete future acgigsi$ will depend on whether we can identify suigabtquisition candidats
negotiate acceptable terms, and, if necessaryndmghose acquisitions. We may be competing inetleesleavors with oth
parties, some of which may have greater finanaial ather resources than we do. Whether any paati@dquisition is clost
successfully, the pursuit of an acquisition wollely require considerable time and effort from mgement, which wou
detract from their ability to run our current busss. We may face unexpected challenges in receanggequired approv
from the applicable regulator(s), which could dedayrevent an acquisition.

If we are successful in closing an acquisition,weaild face several risks in integrating the acqlilvasiness. For examg
we may face unexpected difficulties entering marketwhich we have little or no direct prior exparce or generating expec
revenue and cash flow from the acquired companyassets. We have in the past incurred significatgégnation an
restructuring costs associated with acquisitionshage completed. Although we would expect to reaéfficiencies from tt
integration of businesses that will offset the @mental transaction, integration and restructuciogts over time, there can be
assurances that we would achieve such efficiertigieffset any expenses.

Any of these potential problems could have a materiverse effect on our business and our abditgdhieve sufficiel
cash flow, provide adequate working capital, serand repay our indebtedness, and pay dividends.

A system failure could cause delays or interrugiohservice, which could cause us to lose custer

We have in the past experienced short, localizedugtions in our service due to factors such asecddmage, incleme
weather, and service failures by our thirakty service providers. To be successful, we ne@dntinue to provide our custom
reliable service over our network. The principaks to our network and infrastructure include ptglsdamage to our cent
offices or local access lines, power surges orgagasoftware defects, and other disruptions begonaontrol.

Disruptions may cause interruptions in serviceamtuced capacity for customers, either of which ¢a@ause us to lo
customers and incur unexpected expenses.
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The State of lllinois is a significant customerdamur contracts with the state are favorable to go@ernment.

In 2009, 2008 and 2007, 45.4%, 47.4%, 47.5%, résmdyg, of our Other Operations revenues were derifrom out
relationships with various agencies of the Statéliobis—principally the Department of Corrections throughbkc Services
Our relationship with the Department of Correcti@teounted for 91.2%, 91.6% and 93.5% of our Pubdicvices revenue
during 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Ourtialahip (initially through our predecessor) withet Department c
Corrections has continued uninterrupted since 1€@8pite changes in government administrations.eNlegless, obtainin
contracts from government agencies is challenging, government contracts often include provisitrag are favorable to tt
government in ways that are not standard in pricatamercial transactions. Specifically, each of @umtracts with the State
lllinois:

* Permits the applicable state agency to terminage dbntract without cause and without penalty unseme
circumstances

* Has renewal provisions that require decisionsateshgencies that are subject to political inflee
e Gives the State of lllinois the right to renew tlamtract at its option but does not give us theeseght; anc
e Could be cancelled if state funding becomes unabvksl

The failure of the State of lllinois to perform wdthe existing agreements for any reason, or iewethe agreemen
when they expire, could have a material adverseetin our revenues.

We have employees who are covered by collectivgab@ng agreements and could be adversely affdayddbor disputes.

At December 31, 2009, approximately 52% of our exy@és were covered by collective bargaining agreésnd hes:
employees are hourly workers located in all of sarvice territories and are represented by varimiens and locals. Ot
existing collective bargaining agreements beginirexg in 2010 and continue to expire through 20%¢hile we believe ou
relations with the unions representing these engasyare good, any protracted labor disputes or @ibauptions by any of ot
employees could have a significant negative efiecbur financial results and operations.

If we cannot obtain and maintain necessary ri-of-way for our network, our operations may be intetegpand we woul
likely face increased costs.

We need to obtain and maintain the necessary rfhtgay for our network from governmental and gugevernmenta
entities and third parties, such as railroadsitietil state highway authorities, local governmeaisl transit authorities. We m
not be successful in obtaining and maintaining éheghts-ofway or obtaining them on acceptable terms. Someeagent:
relating to rights-of-way may be shderm or revocable at will, and we cannot be certladtt we will continue to have access
existing rights-of-way after the governing agreetaesre terminated or expire. If any of our rightvedy agreements we
terminated or could not be renewed, we may be fbtoeremove our network facilities from the affattereas, relocate
abandon our networks. This would interrupt our afiens and force us to find alternative rightsa@fy and make unexpect
capital expenditures. In addition, our failure taintain the necessary rightswhy, franchises, easements, licenses, and pe
may result in an event of default under our cradieement.
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We are dependent on third-party vendors for ounrimfation, billing, and network systems, as wellRiBV service.

Sophisticated information and billing systems aital\to our ability to monitor and control costsll lsustomers, proces
orders, provide customer service, and achieve tpgrafficiencies. We currently rely on internalsggms and thirgharty
vendors to provide all of our information and pregiag systems, as well as applications that supportP services, includin
IPTV. Some of our billing, customer service, andnagement information systems have been developgadasfby third partie
and may not perform as anticipated. In additior, glans for developing and implementing our infotima systems, billing
systems, network systems, and IPTV service reipanily on the delivery of products and serviceghiyd-party vendors. OL
right to use these systems is dependent upon &cagseements, some of which can be cancelled byeahdor. If a vendc
cancels or refuses to renew one of these agreenmemteperations may be impaired. If we need tdgdwyendors, the transitic
could be costly and affect operating efficiencies.

We depend on certain key management personneheeud to continue to attract and retain highly gfiai management ar
other personnel in the future.

Our success depends upon the talents and efforkeyfmanagement personnel, many of whom have be#m our
company and in our industry for decades. The léssp of these individuals, due to retirement dreoivise, and the inability
attract and retain highly qualified technical andnmagement personnel in the future, could have armmahtdverse effect on o
business, financial condition, and results of ofiens.

Regulatory Risks
The telecommunications industry is subject to eskéerregulation that could change in a manner adedo us.

Our main sources of revenues are our local telephmorsinesses in lllinois, Pennsylvania, and TeXa& laws ant
regulations governing these businesses may beinasame cases have been, challenged in the camdsgould be changed
Congress, state legislatures, or regulators. litiaddfederal or state authorities could imposesmegulations that increase ¢
operating costs or capital requirements or thab#rerwise adverse to us. We cannot predict fullerezlopments or changes
the regulatory environment or the impact such dgwakents or changes may have on us.

Legislative or regulatory changes could reduce limimate the revenues our rural telephone companéegive from networ
access charges.

A significant portion of our ILECs’ revenues comerh network access charges paid by ldisjance and other carrie
for using our local telephone facilities to origi@ar terminate longlistance calls in our service areas. The amounetfork
access charge revenues that our ILECs receivesisdban interstate rates set by the FCC and inteastéies set by sta
regulators. The FCC has reformed, and continuesféom, the federal network access charge system.

The FCC is currently considering sweeping poterignges in network access charges including sedteltcess, speci
access and broadband services. Depending on theskfg€isions, our network access charge revenuéd decline materially
We do not know whether increases in other revensigsh as subsidies and monthly line charges, \fidicBvely offset any
reductions in access charges. The state regulateessmay make changes in our intrastate networksaccharges that cot
reduce our revenues. To the extent regulators peaonipetitive telephone companies to increase thrations in the are.
served by our rural telephone companies, a podfdong-distance and other carriergtwork access charges will be paic
those competitors rather than to our companiesllyinthe compensation our companies receive fretvark access charg
could be reduced due to competition from wirelessiers.
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Our Pennsylvania rural telephone company is anageeschedule rate of return company, which meanstérstate acce:
revenues are based upon a statistical formula deedlby NECA and approved by the FCC, rather th@mts actual cost
The formulas are reviewed by NECA and the FCC alyaad there could be changes to the formulashe future, whict
could have an impact on our revenues.

Legislative or regulatory changes could reduce lonmate the government subsidies we rece

The federal and state systems of subsidies, whinktitute a significant portion of our revenuesyrba modified. During
the last two years, the FCC has modified the fddamaversal service fund system to change the ssuof support and tt
method for determining the level of support thalt e distributed. The FCC is considering proposatsadditional changes -
the federal universal service fund. These issugs lmaome the subject of legislative amendmentsdoTielecommunicatior
Act. In addition, the Pennsylvania PUC has a prdtegto review its state universal service fundgoam. As part of th
proceeding, the Commission could attempt to overtice current Pennsylvania statute 183 which pesvior revenue offse
for any reduction to intrastate access.

If our rural telephone companies do not continueetteive federal and state subsidies, or if thessidies are reduce
these subsidiaries likely will have lower revenaed may not be able to operate as profitably asliage in the past.

Proposed access and universal service reforms doaNg an adverse impact on our reveni

When the FCC issues its National Broadband PlanMarch 16, 2010, it is expected to include proposais
comprehensive reform in the areas of access amveingal service regimes, the treatment of VolP izalfroadband services a
net neutrality, all of which could have an advdrspact on our revenues.

The high costs of regulatory compliance could makeore difficult for us to enter new markets, makeuisitions, or chang
our prices.

Regulatory compliance is a significant expenseufoand diverts the time and effort of managemedtaam officers awa
from running the business. In addition, becauselatipns differ from state to state, it would beoersive to introduce servic
in states where we do not currently operate ancenstand the regulatory requirements. Compliancéscasd informatiot
barriers could make it difficult and tim@nsuming to enter new markets or to evaluate angpete for new opportunities
acquire local access lines or businesses as tisgy ar

Our intrastate services generally are subject ttfication, tariff filing, and other ongoing stategulatory requirement
Challenges to our tariffs by regulators or thirdtigs, or delays in obtaining certifications andukatory approvals, could cau
us to incur substantial legal and administrativpegses. Moreover, successful challenges could selyeaffect the rates th
we are able to charge to customers, which wouldtnegly affect our revenues. Some states also requdvance regulato
approval of mergers, acquisitions, transfers otrabnstock issuance, and certain types of delatrfiimg, which can increase ¢
costs and delay strategic transactions.
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Legislative and regulatory changes in the telecomigations industry could raise our costs and redpotential revenue:

Currently, there is only a small body of law anduikation applicable to access to, or commerce lom Internet. As th
Internet usage continues to grow, governmentsldewatls may adopt new rules and regulations od fiew ways to appl
existing laws and regulations. The FCC currentlydasiewing the appropriate regulatory framework gqming broadban
consumer protections for high-speed Internet actiessigh telephone and cable providetemmunications networks. Tl
outcome of these proceedings may affect our regylatbligations and costs and competition for amwiges, which could hay
a material adverse effect on our revenues.

We are subject to extensive laws and regulatioteting to the protection of the environment, natuesources, and worke
health and safety.

Our operations and properties are subject to fédstate, and local laws and regulations relationgptotection of thi
environment, natural resources, and worker healthsafety, including laws and regulations goverrang creating liability ir
connection with the management, storage, and dispéshazardous materials, asbestos, and petroproducts. We also a
subject to laws and regulations governing air elmissfrom our fleets of vehicles. As a result, wed several risks, including:

e Hazardous materials may have been released atriespat we currently own or formerly owned (pagsh throug
our predecessors). Under certain environmental,lawgscould be held liable, without regard to fatdt, the costs ¢
investigating and remediating any actual or thmeadecontamination at these properties, and foragoimatior
associated with disposal by us or our predecesddrazardous materials at tr-party disposal site:

¢ We could incur substantial costs in the future ¥ wcquire businesses or properties subject to @mwiente
requirements or affected by environmental contatidna In particular, environmental laws regulatimgetlands
endangered species, and other land use and negaoairce issues may increase costs associateduitle busines
or expansion opportunities or delay, alter, orrfiei® with such plans

e The presence of contamination can adversely afffiectalue of our properties and make it difficoltsell any affecte
property or to use it as collater

*  We could be held responsible for thjpdrty property damage claims, personal injury ciimr natural resour
damage claims relating to contamination found gtafrour current or past propertie

The cost of complying with environmental requiretserould be significant. Similarly, the adoptionre&w environmentze
laws or regulations or changes in existing lawsegulations or their interpretations could resulsignificant compliance cos
or unanticipated environmental liabilities.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters and most of the admatiist offices for our Telephone Operations areated in Mattoon
lllinois.
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We lease properties pursuant to agreements thateeap various times between 2010 and 2015. Thievialg char
summarizes the principal facilities owned or leasgds as of December 31, 2009.

Operating segmel Approximate
Owned/ Telephone Other square

Location Primary Use leasec Operations  Operations footage
Gibsonia, PA Office and switching Owned X X 91,14:
Conroe, TX Regional office Owned X X 51,90(
Mattoon, IL Order fulfillment Leasec X 50,00(
Mattoon, IL Corporate office Leasec X X 49,10(
Mattoon, IL Operator services and operatic Owned X X 36,30(
Charleston, IL Communications center and offi Leasec X X 34,00(
Mattoon, IL Operations and distribution cen Leasec X X 30,90(
Mattoon, IL Sales and administration cen Leasec X X 30,70(
Lufkin, TX Office and switching Owned X X 28,70%
Conroe, TX Warehouse and pla Owned X X 28,50(
Terre Haute, IN Communications center and offi Leasec X X 25,45(
Lufkin, TX Communications center and offi Owned X X 23,19(
Katy, TX Warehouse and offic Owned X X 19,71¢
Butler, PA Office and switching Owned X X 18,56¢
Taylorville, IL Communications center and offi Owned X X 15,90(
Taylorville, IL Operations and distribution cen Leasec X X 14,70(
Lufkin, TX Warehoust Owned X X 14,20(
Cranberry Township, P. Office and switching Owned X X 13,11¢(
Charleston, IL Communications center and offi Owned X X 12,66
Litchfield, IL Office and switching Owned X X 12,19(
Lufkin, TX Office and data centt Owned X X 11,90(
Conroe, TX Office Owned X X 10,65(
Mattoon, IL Office Owned X X 10,10(

In addition to the facilities listed above, we oamhave the right to use approximately 710 add#tigmoperties consistil
of equipment at point of presence sites, centridaxf, remote switching sites and buildings, tositées, small offices, stora
sites and parking lots. Some of the facilitieslishbove also serve as central office locations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On July 10, 2009, we entered into a settlementeageat with Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. resolvingcibnplaint, recurrin
access rates and any liability issues. As a readtreduced the previously recorded reserve weelstablished down to t
settlement amount and recognized a gain of appiteiyn $1.8 million during the second quarter of 200

On April 15, 2008, Salsgiver Inc., a Pennsylvaésed telecommunications company, and certairsddfftliates filed .
lawsuit against us and our subsidiaries North [Rittgsh Telephone Company and North Pittsburgh System in the Court «
Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvaniaggallg that we have prevented Salsgiver from commgdts fiber opti
cables to North Pittsburgh’utility poles. Salsgiver seeks compensatory amditipe damages as the result of alleged
projected profits, damage to its business reputatimd other costs. It claims to have sustainesek®f approximately $1
million but does not request a specific dollar amtdn damages. We believe that these claims afgowitmerit and the alleg
damages are completely unfounded. We intend tondedgainst these claims vigorously. In the thirdregr of 2008, we file
preliminary objections and responses to Salsgiveomplaint; however, the court ruled against aetiminary objections. C
November 3, 2008, we responded to Sals’s amended complaint and filed a counttim for trespass, alleging tl
Salsgiver attached cables to our poles without athagsized agreement and in an unsafe manner. Wewarently in th
discovery and deposition stage. In addition, weehasked the FCC Enforcement Bureau to addressi&alsgunauthorize
pole attachments and safety violations on thoseclathents. We believe that these are violationsnoF@C order regardit
Salsgivers complaint against North Pittsburgh. We do noievel that these claims will have a material advérggact on ot
financial results.

We are from time to time involved in various legabceedings and regulatory actions arising outunfaperations. We a
not involved in any legal or regulatory proceedinigsglividually or in the aggregate (other than thoescribed herein), that
believe would have a material adverse effect uporbasiness, operating results or financial cooditi

Item 4. [Reserved]
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PART 1l

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and dsuer Purchases of Equit
Securities

Market for our Common Stock and Holders of Record

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “CNSLAs of March 3, 2009, w
had 1,539 stockholders of record. Because manyuofoatstanding shares of common stock are heldrbiens and othi
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are Wmdb estimate the total number of stockholdersesgnted by these rec
holders. The high and low reported sales pricespare of our common stock are set forth in thiofdhg table for the perio

indicated:

2009 2008
Period High Low High Low
First quartel 12.4¢ 7.9C 19.1¢ 14.0C
Second quarte 12.1z2 10.2¢ 15.71 13.7C
Third quartel 16.01 11.15 15.7¢ 13.4¢
Fourth quarte 17.4¢ 13.6( 14.6¢ 7.82

Our Board of Directors declared (and we paid) divids totaling $0.38738 per share in each of thiegetisted above.
Dividend Policy and Restrictions

Our Board of Directors has adopted a dividend galat reflects its judgment that our stockholdenes better served if v
distribute a substantial portion of the cash geedray our business in excess of our expected mwasts rather than retain
the cash or using it for investments, acquisitiarspther purposes. We expect to continue to partgry dividends at ¢
annual rate of $1.5495 per share during 2010 blyt ibrand to the extent declared by our Board ofebtors and subject
various restrictions on our ability to do so. Dieftls on our common stock are not cumulative.

Please see Partl — Item 1A — “Risk Factoxs this report, which sets forth several factoratticould prevel
stockholders from receiving dividends in the futufbe “Risk Factorssection also discusses how our dividend policy d
inhibit future growth and acquisitions.

We expect to fund our expected cash needs, indudividends, with cash flow from operations. Weoaéxpect to hay
sufficient availability under our revolving creditcility for these purposes, but we do not intemthorrow to pay dividends.
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Performance Graph

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the tetatkholder return on our Common Stock since bares began tradi
on the NASDAQ Global Select on July 27, 2005, vifte cumulative total stockholder returns of bota 8&P 500 index, tt
Dow Jones US Fixetline Telecommunications Index and a Custom Comedsilex made up of our peer group consistir
Alaska Communications, Fairpoint Communications kovel Telecom.

COMPARISON OF 53 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Consolidated Communications Holdings, The $&B Index,
The Dow Jones US Fixed-Line Telecommunicationsxnéied A Peer Group

5200

A A
5150 \/\/
5100 mm—— // ﬁ_/\\-’m”\'//\—\\\//mf—/

%50

AL PP PP PP PP PP PSS
= Consolidated Communications Haldings
—S&P 500

Dow Jones US Fixed-Line Telecommunications
Pear Group

*  $100 invested on 7/22/05 in stock or 6/30/05 inedincluding reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal ryemding
December 31

Copyright® 2010 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies | All rights reserved. Copyright2010 Dow Jones
Co. All rights reservec

At December 31

(In dollars) 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Consolidatec 197.3: 118.5¢ 177.2: 172.7( 97.12
S&P Telecom Service 102.9¢ 81.4(C 129.2: 122.4¢ 105.75
Dow Jones US Fixe— Line Tele. 137.5¢ 126.5¢ 174.3¢ 149.9¢ 100.45
Peer Grouyj 39.0¢ 26.7( 92.5¢ 199.3¢ 115.1:
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Issuer Purchases of Common Stock During the QuarteEnded December 31, 2009

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, wequitd and cancelled 33,575 common shares surrethday
employees to pay taxes in connection with the rgsbf restricted common shares issued under ouk-$tased compensati
plan. The following table provides information abthe shares reacquired:

Total number o Maximum numbe
Shares purchase of shares that me
Total number o Average price pa As part of publich yet be purchase

Purchase perio Shares purchas Per shart announced plar under the plan
October 200¢ 2,64¢ $ 15.6¢€ n/e nls
November 200! 1,95 $ 14.2( n/e nle
December 200 28,97 $ 16.11 n/e n/e

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial information set forth belbas been derived from the audited consolidatedhéiah statements
Consolidated as of and for the years ended DeceBihet009, 2008, 2007, 2006, and 2005. The follgvgalected historic
financial information should be read in conjunctigith Item 7, “Managemend’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations,” and our consolidateanitial statements beginning on page F-1.

The balance sheet data presented below as of Dec&hp2009 and 2008, and the statement of opasatlata present
below for each of the years in the thgemr period ended December 31, 2009, are derivaatl fsur audited consolidat
financial statements beginning on pagé.Frhe other balance sheet data and statementeoatigns data is derived from
previously audited consolidated financial statermémtiuded in our prior Form 10-K filings.

Year ended December &

(In millions, except per share amoun 2009 2008 2007 (6) 2006 2005

Telephone operations revent $ 364.6 % 379.C % 2882 % 280« % 282.:
Other operations revenu 41.€ 39.4 41.C 40.4 39.1
Total operating revenut 406.2 418. 329.2 320.¢ 321.

Cost of products and services (exclusive
of depreciation and amortization

shown separately belov 145t 143.t 107.: 98.1 101.1
Selling, general and administrative

expense 104.¢ 108.¢ 89.€ 94.7 98.¢
Intangible asset impairme — 6.1 — 11.2 —
Depreciation and amortizatic 85.2 91.7 65.7 67.4 67.£
Income from operatior 70.7 68.2 66.¢€ 49,2 54.1
Interest expense, net (1) | (57.9 (66.9) (46.5) (42.9 (53.9)
Other, net (3 25.5 10.¢ (3.4 8.C 6.4
Income before income taxes and

extraordinary iten 38.2 12.¢ 16.7 14.4 7.1
Income tax expens 12.4 6.6 4.7 0.4 10.¢
Income (loss) before extraordinary it 25.¢ 6.2 12.C 14.C (3.9
Extraordinary item, net of te — 7.2 — — —
Net income (loss 25.¢ 13.4 12.C 14.C (3.9
Net income of noncontrolling interest 1.C 0.9 0.€ 0.7 0.7
Net income (loss) attributable

common stockholders (: 24.¢ 12.5 11.4 13.2 (4.5)
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Year ended December &

(In millions, except per share amoun 2009 2008 2007 (6) 2006 2005
Dividends on redeemable preferred

shares — — — — (10.2)
Net income (loss) applicable to comn

shares $ 24.¢ $ 125 % 114 % 132 % (14.9)

Income per common shebasic: (5)
Income per common share before

extraordinary iten $ 0.8¢ $ 0.1¢ % 04: % 04¢ % (0.89)
Extraordinary item per sha — 0.24 — — —
Net income per common sh—basic $ 0.8¢ $ 04z % 04: % 04¢ % (0.89)
Basic weighted-average number of
shares 29,39¢ 29,32: 25,76¢ 27,74( 17,82;

Income per common she—diluted: (5)
Income per common share before

extraordinary iten $ 0.8¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4z $ 0.4¢ $ (0.89)
Extraordinary item per sha — 0.24 — — —
Net income per common sh—diluted  $ 0.8¢ $ 04z % 04: % 04¢ % (0.89)

Diluted weighted-average number of
common and common equivalent

shares 29,39¢ 29,32! 25,76¢ 28,17 17,82:
Cash dividends per common sh $ 1.5¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.5¢ $ 0.8C
Consolidated cash flow daf

Cash flows from operating activitic  $ 116.: $ 92.4 $ 82.1 $ 84.€ $ 79.c

Cash flows used for investing

activities (41.¢) (48.0) (305.9) (26.7) (31.7)

Cash flows used for financing

activities 47.9 (63.9) 230.¢ (62.7) (68.9)

Capital expenditure 42.¢ 48.C 33.t 33.4 31.1
Consolidated Balance She

Cash and cash equivalel $ 42.¢ $ 15.5 $ 34.: $ 26.7 $ 31.2

Total current asse 104.2 78.€ 99.€ 74.2 79.C

Net property, plant and equipment 377.2 400.: 411.¢ 314.¢ 335.1

Total asset 1,223.( 1,241.¢ 1,304.¢ 889.€ 946.(

Total long-term debt (including

current portion) (2)(8 880.: 881.c 892.¢ 594.( 555.(

Stockholders equit 80.7 75.2 159.% 118.% 202.2
Other financial data (unauditec

Adjusted EBITDA (9) $ 188.¢ $ 189.¢ $ 143.¢ $ 139.¢ $ 136.¢
Other data (as of the end of the peric

(Unaudited):

Local access line

Residentia 146,76t 162,06’ 183,07( 155,35 162,23:

Business 100,46! 102,25¢ 103,11¢ 78,33¢ 79,79!
Total local access line 247,23! 264,32: 286,18t 233,68¢ 242,02:
CLEC access line equivaler 72,68: 74,687 70,06: — —
VOIP subscriber 8,66t 6,51( 2,49¢ — —
IPTV subscriber: 23,12% 16,66¢ 12,24 6.95¢ 2,14¢
ILEC DSL subscriber 100,12: 91,817 81,331 52,73: 39,19:
Total connection 451,83l 454,00: 452,32: 293,37! 283,36:

(1) Interest expense includes amortization of defefieghcing costs totaling $1.3 million for the yeamded December :
2009, $1.4 million for 2008, $3.2 million for 200%3.3 million for 2006, and $5.5 million for 20C

(2) In connection with the acquisition of North Pittsn on December 31, 2007, we incurred $296.0 milhew term dek
net of the repayment of existing debt. All remagngenior notes were retired on April 1, 20



(3) We recognized $0.3 million and $2.8 million of mpebceeds in other income in 2007 and 2005, resmdytibecause v
received ke-man life insurance proceeds relating to the passirigrmer TXUCV employees
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(4)
()
(6)
(7)

(8)

(9)

We adopted the FAS8’authoritative guidance on the presentation ofcaotiolling interests in consolidated finan
statements effective January 1, 2009. This preenthas been retrospectively applied to all pesiptesentec

We adopted the FAS8authoritative guidance on the treatment of pigding securities in the calculation of earnings
share on January 1, 2009. This presentation hasre&espectively applied to all periods presen

We acquired North Pittsburgh on December 31, 28@Tance sheet and other data as of that date iesltiet accounts
North Pittsburgh. Our results of operations inclbtteth Pittsburgh beginning January 1, 2C

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at ddst. cost of additions, replacements, and majorrérgments i
capitalized, while repairs and maintenance aregdthto expenses. When property, plant and equiparentetired fror
our regulated subsidiaries, the original cost, afetalvage, is charged against accumulated depigtiavith no gain ¢
loss recognized in accordance with composite glidepemaining methodology used for regulated thiage plant asset

In July 2006, we repurchased and retired approxiyaB.8 million shares of our common stock for apgmately
$56.7 million, or $15.00 per share. We financed tihénsaction using approximately $17.7 millioncath on hand a
$39.0 million of additional ter-loan borrowings

We present Adjusted EBITDA for three reasons: wiebe it is a useful indicator of our historicalldecapacity and ol
ability to service debt and pay dividends; it pd®es a measure of consistency in our financial teygrand covenants
our credit facilities contain ratios based on AtfasEBITDA.

Adjusted EBITDA (or Consolidated EBITDA) is definadour current credit facility as:

Consolidated Net Income (also defined in our criditlity),
(a) plus the following, to the extent deducted in arrivingCamnsolidated Net Income:

(i) interest expense, amortization, or write-off débt discount and natash expense incurred in connection
equity compensation plans;

(i) provision for income taxes;
(i) depreciation and amortization;

(iv) non-cash charges for asset impairment; alfgbs, expenses, and other extraordinary, negofring, and unust
integration costs or losses related to the acdmnisibf North Pittsburgh, including all severanceympents i
connection with the acquisition, so long as sucstior losses are incurred prior to December 302928nd do n¢
exceed $12.0 million in the aggregate;

(v) all nontecurring transaction fees, charges, and other ateorelated to the acquisition of North Pittsbt
(excluding all amounts otherwise included in aceowk with U.S. generally accepted accounting puiae
(“GAAP") in determining Adjusted EBITDA), so long as suctedecharges, and other amounts do not e:
$18 million in the aggregate;

(b) minus (in the case of gains) ptus (in the case of losses) gain or loss on sale @tsss

(c) minus (in the case of gains) @ius (in the case of losses) naash income or charges relating to foreign curregaigs
or losses;

(d) plus (in the case of losses) oninus (in the case of income) non-cash minority intenesbme or loss;

(e) plus (in the case of items deducted in arriving at Cédated Net Income) ominus (in the case of items addec
arriving at Consolidated Net Income) non-cash chsurgsulting from changes in accounting principles;

(f) plusextraordinary losses amdinus extraordinary gains as defined by GAAP;

(9) plus (in the case of any period ending on December 8072and any period ending during the seven imnbelg
succeeding fiscal quarters of the Company, to #ien¢ not otherwise included in Adjusted EBITDA)stsavings to t
realized by the Company and its subsidiaries imeotion with the acquisition of North Pittsburglatare attributable
the integration of the Comparsybperations and businesses in lllinois and Textsthe acquired Pennsylvania operati
which cost savings are deemed to be the amountioighton a schedule to the credit agreement faheauch fisce
quarter; and

(h) minusinterest income.
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If our Adjusted EBITDA were to decline below certdevels, there may be violations of covenantsunaredit facilitie:
that are based on this measure, including our tatleverage and interest coverage ratios coven@ihe consequences cc
include a default or mandatory prepayment or aipitibn on dividends.

We believe that net cash provided by operatingvitiets is the most directly comparable financialasgre to Adjuste
EBITDA under GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA should not bensidered in isolation or as a substitute for cadsted statement
operations and cash flows data prepared in accoedaith GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is not a complete raaee of profitabilit
because it does not include costs and expensetfiembove. Nor is Adjusted EBITDA a complete matsh flow measu
because it does not include reductions for casimpays for an entity obligation to service its debt, fund its workicapital
make capital expenditures, make acquisitions, griggdncome taxes and dividends.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation@dish Provided by Operating Activities to AdjusteRIEDA:

Year ended December &

(In millions, unaudited 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Net cash provided by operatil

activities $ 116.2 $ 92.4 $ 82.1 $ 84.€ $ 79.2
Non-cash, stoc-based compensatic (1.9 (1.9 (4.0 (2.5 (8.6)
Other adjustments, net ( (2.0 3.8 (9.5 (2.0 (18.0
Changes in operating assets and

liabilities (2.9) 9.¢ 8.5 0.€ 10.Z
Interest expense, n 57.¢ 66.3 46.5 42.€ 53.4
Income taxe: 12.4 6.€ 4.7 0.4 10.€
EBITDA (b) 181.k 177.1 128.3 124.( 127.2

Adjustments to EBITDA (c)
Integration, restructuring and Sarban

Oxley (d) 7.4 4.8 1.2 3.7 7.4
Professional service fees | — — — 2.8
Other, net (f) (24.9) (19.9 (6.€) (7. (3.0
Investment distributions (¢ 22.4 17.¢ 6.6 5.5 1.€
Pension curtailment gain ( — — — — (7.9
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 9.2 10.2 — —
Intangible asset impairment ( — 6.1 — 11.2 —
Extraordinary item (j — (7.2 — — —
Non-cash, stoc-based compensation 1.9 1.6 4.0 25 8.€
Adjusted EBITDA $ 188.¢ $ 189.¢ $ 143.¢ $ 139.¢ $ 136.¢

(@) Other adjustments, net includes $6.1 million and.$illion of intangible asset impairment chardes years ende
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2006, resplyctivaring our annual impairment review for 2008 wetermine
that the projected future cash flows of CMR woulnt be sufficient to support the carrying value loé tgoodwill. Ir
addition, based on a decline in estimated futursh ddows of CMR and operator services business, 2006 annui
impairment review determined that the value ofdhstomer lists associated with these businessesnaired. Noncast
impairment charges are excluded in arriving at Atjd EBITDA under our credit facilit

(b) EBITDA is defined as net earnings (loss) beforernest expense, income taxes, depreciation, andtiaateom on a
unadjusted basi:

(c) These adjustments reflect those required or perchlily the lenders under the credit facility in plat the end of each
the years included in the periods preser
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(d) In connection with the TXUCV acquisition, we incedr certain expenses associated with integratingestducturing th
businesses. These expenses include severance;yempliocation expenses; Sarbanes-Oxley sfadests; and costs
integrate our technology, administrative and custioservice functions, and billing systems. In canio@ with the Nort
Pittsburgh acquisition we incurred similar expensgh the exception of Sarbar-Oxley star-up costs

(e) Represents the aggregate professional servicepgddo certain large equity investors prior to mitial public offering
Upon closing of the initial public offering, theservice agreements terminat

() Other, net includes the equity earnings froor investments, dividend income, and certain otméscellaneous non-
operating items. Key man life insurance proceedb0o8 million and $2.8 million received in 2007 a2@D5, respectivel
are not deducted to arrive at Adjusted EBITI

(g) For purposes of calculating Adjusted EBITDA, welinte all cash dividends and other cash distribgtimteived from ol
investments

(h) Represents a $7.9 million curtailment gain assediavith the amendment of our Texas pension plare Ghin wa
recorded in general and administrative expensesveider, because the gain is noash, it is excluded from Adjusi
EBITDA.

() Represents the redemption premium and vaitesf unamortized debt issuance costs in conneatitth the redemptic
and retirement of our senior notes during 2008 tmedwriteoff of debt issuance costs in connection with isgirthe
obligations under our former credit facility andtenng into a new credit facility contemporaneouslith the Nortl
Pittsburgh acquisitior

() Upon making the election to discontinue the applieaccounting guidance for regulated enterprisezctounting for tr
effects of certain types of regulation, we recogdian extraordinary notash gain and began to apply the authorit
guidance required for the discontinuance of theliegjion of regulatory accounting. See the finahsitatements ar
footnotes for additional informatio

(k) Represents compensation expenses in conneeith our Restricted Share Plan. Because of thercash nature, the
expenses are excluded from Adjusted EBITI
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our consolidated opetresults and financial condition for the threeays ende
December 31, 2009, should be read in conjunctiah tie consolidated financial statements and relatetes beginning ¢
page F-1.

“Consolidated Communications” or the “Companyéfers to Consolidated Communications Holdings, Bdone or witk
its wholly owned subsidiaries as the context reggiilWhen this report uses the words “we,” “our,” tus,” they refer to the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Overview

We are an established rural local exchange comfaatyprovides communications services to resideatia busines
customers in lllinois, Texas, and Pennsylvania.dNfer a wide range of telecommunications servigeduding local and long-
distance service, VOIP, custom calling featuresape line services, dial-up and higpeed broadband Internet access, IF
carrier access services, network capacity sengges our regional fiber optic network, directorybtishing and CLEC callin
services. We also operate a number of core complementary businesses, including providialgphone services to cour
jails and state prisons and equipmi

Executive Summary

We generated net income attributable to commonkktiders of $24.9 million, or $0.84 per diluted shén 2009, a
compared to net income attributable to common $tolders of $12.5 million, or $0.42 per diluted shan 2008. Net income |
2009 benefited from increased earnings from ouebless partnerships, lower depreciation expenseaaraverall reduction i
operating expenses. Operating expenses declinecigally as a result of cost reductions from a otigen in workforce initiatec
in early 2009 and from cost savings resulting froun integration projects. Operating expenses wegatively impacted i
2009 by a $5.1 million increase in pension andnetistment expense and $7.4 million of integraton restructuring expens
for which we expect to receive cost savings gommgvard. Net income in 2008 benefited from $7.2 imillnet of tax, or $0.2
per diluted share, of extraordinary income, and negatively impacted by $9.2 million (pretax) areél 3million (pretax) fo
loss on the early extinguishment of debt and aanigible asset impairment, respectively. Operatikpeases in 2008 was al
negatively impacted by $4.8 million of integratiand restructuring expense.

Revenue in 2009 decreased to $406.2 million as eoeapto $418.4 million in 2008. Decreased revemu20i09 resulte
primarily from local access line loss although thte of decrease slowed significantly as the yeagnessed, offset partially t
increases in DSL and IPTV subscriptions.

Acquisition of North Pittsburgh and new credit facility

On December 31, 2007, we completed the acquisitioNorth Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (“North Pittsbhifg At the
effective time of the merger, 80% of the shareslofth Pittsburgh common stock converted into tightrto receive $25.00 |
cash, without interest, per share, for an approténtatal of $300.1 million. Each of the remainirtgages of North Pittsburc
common stock converted into the right to receii®®1947 shares of common stock of the Companyn aparoximate total ¢
3.32 million shares. The total purchase price udirlg fees, was $347.0 million, net of cash acalire
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In connection with the acquisition, we, through ainolly owned subsidiaries, entered into a cregieament with variot
financial institutions. The credit agreement pr@ador aggregate borrowings of $950.0 million, dstirsg of a $760.0 millio
term loan facility, a $50.0 million revolving crédiacility (which remains fully available as of Deober 31, 2009), anc
$140.0 million delayed draw term loan (“DDTLfacility. We borrowed $120.0 million under the DDTn April 1, 2008, t
redeem our theoutstanding senior notes. The commitment for thmaiaing $20 million under the DDTL expired. Ot
borrowings under the credit facility were used étire the Companyg' previous $464.0 million credit facility and tonfili the
acquisition of North Pittsburgh.

Redemption of senior notes

On April 1, 2008, we redeemed all of the thmrtstanding 9.75% senior notes using $120.0 milborrowed under tt
DDTL and cash on hand. The total amount of themgd®n was $136.3 million, including a redemptiaemium of 4.875%
or $6.3 million. We recognized a $9.2 million lazs the redemption of the notes. As a result oftthesaction, our annualiz
cash interest expense is expected to be reduc$d byllion.

Discontinuance of Accounting for the Effects of Ceaain Types of Regulation

Historically, our lllinois and Texas ILEC operat®rollowed the Financial Accounting Standards B&adFASB”)
authoritative guidance for regulated enterprisesadoounting for the effects of certain types ofutagon. This authoritati
guidance required the recognition of the econorffieces of rate regulation by recording costs anetarn on investment
such amounts are recovered through rates authdsizeelgulatory authorities. Changes to our businesaever, have impact
the dynamics of our operating environment. In @ half of 2008, we experienced a significantéase in competition in ¢
lllinois and Texas markets primarily due to traalit@l cable competitors offering voice services.oAksffective July 1, 2008, v
made an election to transition from rate of retiorprice cap regulation at the interstate leveldr regulated lllinois and Tex
operations. The conversion to price caps providegifeater pricing flexibility, especially in thedreasingly competitive spec
access segment and in launching new products. iAddlty, in response to customer demand, we lauhche own VOIF
service product offering as an alternative to eaditional wireline services. While there have beenmaterial changes in ¢
bundling strategy or in our engser pricing, the pricing structure is transitianfinom being based on the recovery of costs
pricing structure based on market conditions.

Based on these and other factors impacting ournbasj we determined in late 2008 that the applibatof the
authoritative guidance for regulated enterprises m@longer appropriate in the reporting of ouaficial results. As a result,
began to apply the authoritative guidance requii@dthe discontinuance of application of regulat@gcounting. Th
authoritative guidance requires the eliminatiorthaf effects of any actions of regulators that haevipusly been recognized
accordance with the authoritative guidance for l&tgd enterprises but that would not have beengrézed by nonregulat
enterprises. Depreciation rates of certain assgtbkished by regulatory authorities for our telepd operations subject to
authoritative guidance for regulated enterprisageHastorically included a systematic charge fanogal costs in excess of -
related estimated salvage value on those assstatimg in a net ovedepreciation of those assets over their usefusli@ost
of removal were then appropriately applied agdinist reserve. Upon discontinuance of the authargaguidance for regulat
enterprises, we reversed the impact of recogni@ngpval costs in excess of the related estimatiedga value, which result
in recording a nomash extraordinary gain of approximately $7.2 willinet of taxes of approximately $4.2 million tliee thre:
months ended December 31, 2008. Our Pennsylvai@ lreviously discontinued the application of thharitative guidanc
for regulated enterprises prior to our acquisitbMNorth Pittsburgh, and, as a result, was notcééfe by the change in 2008.
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General
The following general factors should be considéneahalyzing our results of operations:
Revenue:

Telephone Operations and Other Operatio@ur revenues are derived primarily from the salevofce and da
communication services to residential and busirmestomers in our rural telephone compangs'vice areas. Because
operate primarily in rural service areas, we doargicipate significant growth in revenues in oetéphone Operations segir
except through acquisitions. However, we do expaetively consistent cash flow from year to yeacéuse of stable custor
demand, and a generally supportive regulatory enwuient.

Local access lines and bundled servides.“access line’is the telephone line connecting a home or busitteise publi
switched telephone network. The number of localasdines in service directly affects the monthldgurring revenue v
generate from end users, the amount of traffic emnetwork, the access charges we receive fronr gtreiers, the federal a
state subsidies we receive, and most other revetreams. We had 247,235, 264,323 and 286,186 lacedss line
respectively, in service as of December 31, 200082and 2007.

Most wireline telephone companies have experierctabs of local access lines due to challengingn@eic condition
and increased competition from wireless providemnpetitive local exchange carriers and, in sonsegacable televisii
operators. We have not been immune to these conditin 2008, both Suddenlink and Comcast, caligpetitors in Texas,
well as NewWave Communications in lllinois, laundreecompeting voice product, which contributed gp#e in our line los
We estimate that cable companies are now offerigevservice to all of their addressable customessering 85% of ol
entire service territory.

In addition, since we began to more aggressivedynote our VOIP service, we estimate that approxétgainehalf of ou
VOIP telephone subscriber additions are switchmognfone of our traditional access lines. We expecbntinue to experien
modest erosion in access lines both due to maoke¢$ and through our own cannibalization.

We have been able in some instances to offsetehbknd in local access lines with increased averagenue per acce
line by:

*  Aggressively promoting DSL service, including sgdliDSL as a star-alone offering
e Value bundling services, such as DSL or IPTV, veitbombination of local service and custom calliegtfires
*  Maintaining excellent customer service standardd;

«  Keeping a strong local presence in the communiteserve
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We have implemented a number of initiatives to gaémw local access lines and retain existing lingsnlaking bundle
service packages more attractive (for example,dadirg unlimited longdistance) and by announcing special promotions
discounted second lines. We also market a “trifdg”"pbundle, which includes local telephone service, P&id IPTV. As ¢
December 31, 2009, IPTV was available to approxfgat88,000 homes in our markets. Our IPTV subscriiase has grov
substantially over the last three years and totakd27, 16,666 and 12,241 subscribers at Dece&ihe2009, 2008 and 20(
respectively.

We also continue to experience substantial gromthé number of DSL subscribers we serve. We h&dl2@, 91,817 ar
81,337 DSL lines in service as of December 31, 2@098 and 2007, respectively. Currently over 95%uw rural telephor
companies’ local access lines are DSL-capable.

In addition to our access line, DSL and video #tities, we intend to continue to integrate besttmes across o
markets. We also continue to look for ways to ewhaturrent products and introduce new servicessore that we reme
competitive and continue to meet our customerstiae€hese initiatives have included:

. Hosted VOIP service in all of our markets to mibet needs of small- to mediusized business customers that v
robust functionality without having to purchaseaditional key or PBX phone syste

« VOIP service for residential customers, which isngeoffered to our customers as a growth opporyuaitd as a
alternative to the traditional phone line for cus&rs who are considering a switch to a cable catopeSince wi
began to more aggressively promote our VOIP sernvicgituations in which we are attempting to savevin bacl
customers, we estimate that the product has allawed reduce our residential customer loss by !

. DSL service—even to users who do not have oueszdine—which expands our customer base and cr
additional revent-generating opportunitie

*  Metrc-Ethernet services delivered over our copper infuatire with speeds of 25 mbps to 40 mt
e DSL product with speeds up to 20 mbps for thoséoomsrs desiring greater Internet speed;

< High definition video service and digital video oeders in all of our IPTV market

These efforts may mitigate the financial impacany access line loss we experience.

As noted above, we also utilize service bundlegdnerate revenue and retain customers. Our selpvindles totale
56,856, 42,054 and 45,971 at December 31, 2009 208 2007, respectively. Service bundles at Deeeb, 2009 incluc
16,864 units from our Pennsylvania market. Penmsyév/units are not included in service bundle sopador to 2009. As a res
of converting the North Pittsburgh ILEC billing fetion to our legacy system in the second quart&06P, we are now able
guantify service bundles for our Pennsylvania marke

Expenses

Our primary operating expenses consist of coseofises; selling, general and administrative expenand depreciati
and amortization expenses.
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Cost of services and produc@ur cost of services includes the following:

«  Operating expenses relating to plant costs, innlydhose related to the network and general supqusts, centr.
office switching and transmission costs, and cablé wire facilities

*  General plant costs, such as testing, provisiomagyork, administration, power, and engineeringl

*  The cost of transport and termination of longatise and private lines outside our rural telephemrepaniesservice
area.

We have agreements with various carriers to proladg-distance transport and termination services. Wielrewve wil
meet all of our commitments in these agreementsvatdbe able to procure services for periods afiar current agreemel
expire. We do not expect any material adverse &ffieem any changes in any new service contract.

Selling, general and administrative expens&elling, general and administrative expensesudelselling and marketi
expenses; expenses associated with customer déirgy &nd other operating support systems; anga@te expenses, suck
professional service fees and non-cash, stock-bamagensation.

Our operating support and baoKice systems enter, schedule, provision, andkt@estomer orders; test services
interface with trouble management; and operatenitorg, billing, collections, and customer care ssg\wsystems for the loc
access lines in our operations. We have migratest key business processes onto a single compaig/system and platfor
We hope to improve profitability by reducing indivial company costs through centralizing, standarglizand sharing be
practices. We have converted the North Pittsbuggioanting, payroll and ILEC billings functions taroexisting systems. O
integration and restructuring expenses totaled #illibn, $4.8 million and $1.2 million for the yemended December 31, 2C
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expens@sior to our discontinuance of the application loé fauthoritative guidance
accounting for the effects of certain types of tatian on December 31, 2008 as noted above, wegréoed depreciatic
expenses for our regulated telephone operatiomgyusites and lives approved by the state reguléorsegulatory reportin
purposes. Upon the discontinuance of the applicadfahis authoritative guidance, we revised thefulslives on a prospecti
basis to be similar to a non-regulated entity.

The provision for depreciation on property and pment is recorded using the straidjhe method based upon -
following useful lives:

Years

Buildings 18-40
Network and outside plant facilitie 3-50
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-15
Capital Lease 11

Amortization expenses are recognized primarilydiar intangible assets considered to have finitéuli$ges on a straight-
line basis. In accordance with the applicable aitdidvze guidance, goodwill and intangible asséist thave indefinite uset
lives are not amortized but rather are testedast lannually for impairment. Because tradenames haen determined to h:
indefinite lives, they are not amortized. Customadationships are amortized over their useful lif@e net carrying value
customer lists at December 31, 2009, is being aneoiiat a weighted-average life of approximateB/ygars.
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Results of Operations
Segment:

We have two reportable business segments, Telepfperations and Other Operations. The results @fratjpn:
discussed below reflect our consolidated results.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, compareddodinber 31, 2008

The following summarizes our revenues and operaimgenses on a consolidated basis for the yeaeddddcember 3
2009 and 2008:

For the years ended December

2009 2008
(in million, except for percentage $ % $ %
Revenue
Telephone operatior
Local calling service 97.2 23.¢ 104.€ 25.C
Network access servic 86.2 21.c 95.2 22.¢
Subsidies 56.C 13.¢ 55.2 13.2
Long-distance service 20.4 5.C 24.1 5.7
Data and Internet servic 68.1 16.¢ 62.7 15.C
Other service 36.€ 9.C 37.1 8.9
Total telephone operatiol 364.¢ 89.¢ 379.( 90.€
Other operation 41.€ 10.2 39.4 9.4
Total operating revent 406.2 100.( 418.2 100.(
Expense!
Telephone operatior 211.1 52.C 214t 51.2
Other operation 39.2 9.€ 43.¢ 10.t
Depreciation and amortizatic 85.2 21.C 91.7 21.¢
Total operating expen: 3355 82.€ 350.( 83.€
Income from operatior 70.7 17.4 68.4 16.4
Interest expense, n 57.C 14.¢ 66.° 15.¢€
Other income 25.F 6.3 10.7 2.6
Income tax expens 12.4 3.C 6.€ 1.6
Income before extraordinary ite 25.¢ 6.4 6.2 15
Extraordinary item, net of te — — 7.2 1.7
Net income 25.¢ 6.4 13.4 3.2
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter 1.C 0.3 0.¢ 0.2
Net income attributable to common stockholc 24.¢ 6.1 12.t 3.0
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Revenu

Revenue in 2009 declined by $12.2 million, or 2.986$406.2 million from $418.4 million in 2008. Onedl, the decline i
revenue was principally the result of year-oyear declines in the number of access lines, whigtacted revenue for loc
calling services, network access services, and-thstgnce services. This access line loss was [hantiiset by an increase
broadband connections. VOIP, DSL and IPTV connestiall increased significantly in 2009. Connectidnystype are ¢

follows:
December 31
2009 2008

Residential access lines in serv 146,76t 162,06°
Business access lines in serv 100,46 102,25¢
Total local access lines in servi 247,23} 264,32:
VOIP subscriber 8,66 6,51(
IPTV subscriber: 23,12% 16,66¢
ILEC DSL subscriber 100,12: 91,81
Total broadband connectio 131,91 114,99:
CLEC access line equivaler( 72,68 74,681
Total connection 451,83( 454,00
Long-distance line(? 165,71 165,95!
Dial-up subscriber 2,371 3,957

(1) CLEC access line equivalents represent a combimatfovoice services and data circuits. The calouhat represent
conversion of data circuits to an access line bdstpiivalents are calculated by converting dataudis (basic ra
interface, primary rate interface, DSL, DS-1, D&r@l Ethernet) and SONET-based (optical) servic€s3@nd OC48) tc
the equivalent of an access lii

(2) Reflects the inclusion of long-distance seevprovided as part of our VOIP offering while axdihg CLEC longdistanc
subscriber:

Telephone Operations Revenue

Local calling servicesevenue decreased by $7.4 million, or 7.1%, to 3@&llion in 2009 compared to $104.6 millior
2008. The decrease is primarily due to the dedlniocal access lines, as discussed undeiffenrds and Factors that Vv
Affect Future Operating Results”.

Network access servicesvenue decreased by $9.0 million, or 9.4%, to $8&fillion in 2009 compared to $95.3 million
2008. The decrease is primarily due to a declireniitched access revenue as a result of a dedinmgniutes of use. In additic
we experienced a decrease in subscriber line cliavgaue due to access line loss.

Subsidyrevenue was basically flat, totaling $56.0 millimn2009 versus $55.2 million in 2008, a $0.8 millimcrease «

1.4%. Increases in the amount of federal high ftoxt support received was offset somewhat by arteeah the amount of ste
high cost fund support received.

56




Table of Contents

Long-distance servicasvenue decreased by $3.7 million, or 15.4%, ta4&tllion in 2009 as compared to $24.1 mill
in 2008. The decrease is primarily due to a deéfifgllable minutes as customers move to our uidichlong-distance plan.

Data and Internetevenue increased by $5.4 million, or 8.6%, to $68illion in 2009 as compared to $62.7 millior
2008. The increase is primarily due to an incréa$2SL and IPTV subscribers.

Other servicesevenue decreased by $0.5 million, or 1.3%, to &&illion in 2009 as compared to $37.1 million iB03
The decrease is primarily due to a reduction ienewxe related to our transport business.

Other Operations Revenue

Other Operations revenue increased by $2.2 mill@n5.6%, to $41.6 million in 2009 as compared 89.4 million ir
2008. Decreased incoming calls in our operatorisesvbusiness was offset by increases in our telextiag and publi
services businesses.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses (excluding a goodwill impairmagnge of $6.1 million in 2008) decreased in 269%1.9 million
or 0.8%, to $250.3 million as compared to $252.Bioni in 2008. Reductions in operating expenseseégment are discus:
below.

Telephone Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Telephone Operations dextdns$3.4 million, or 1.6%, to $211.1 million 0 as compared
$214.5 million in 2008. The overall decrease inrapipg expenses was principally driven from a reiducin workforce
implemented in early 2009, lower costs paid foresscservices as a result of lower minutes of usag from cost reductio
resulting from our integration projects. In 200% successfully migrated our customer billing platfan Pennsylvania to tl
same billing system used by our ILECs in Texas lflimbis. We also consolidated most of our corperatcounting functiol
into our lllinois corporate office and completed @onsolidation into one network operations cebtesed in Mattoon, lllinoi
2009 operating expenses were negatively affectesignificantly higher pension and other postretieamcosts and to a les
extent from increased personal property and reateetaxes. 2008 operating expenses were negatiffelgted by costs incurr
as a result of Hurricane lke, which caused sevevweep outages in both Texas and Pennsylvania.

Other Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Other Operations (excludimgpodwill impairment charge of $6.1 million in B)Oncreased t
$1.5 million, or 4.0%, to $39.2 million in 2009 esmpared to $37.7 million in 2008.

Depreciation and Amortizatio
Depreciation and amortization expenses decrease®6ty million, or 7.1%, to $85.2 million in 2009 ropared t

$91.7 million in 2008. The decrease in depreciatom amortization is principally the result of tbiscontinuance of tt
accounting for the effects of certain types of tajon at December 31, 2008.
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Interest Expense, N

Interest expense, net of interest income, decreagei8.4 million, or 12.7%, to $57.9 million in 2®0compared |
$66.3 million in 2008. Interest expense in 2009dfited from the expiration in 2009 of $135 milliofifixed interest rate swa
as the fixed rates paid on the swaps were at afisayntly higher rate than the LIBOR rates we ree€l in return. Intere
expense also benefited in 2009 from significarahydr overall LIBOR rates, as well as the repaynoenfpril 1, 2008, of ot
senior notes which paid interest at 9.375%.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income increased $14.8 million to $25.5 williin 2009 compared to $10.7 million in 2008. Theréase wiz
principally due to the $9.2 million loss on earktinguishment of debt recognized in 2008 relateth®early redemption of ¢
then outstanding senior notes and the related ‘wfftef unamortized debt financing costs. In 2008r wireless partnerst
interests also showed improved earnings.

Extraordinary Iterr

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we determined it wemslonger appropriate to continue the applicatidrthe FASBS
authoritative guidance on the accounting for tHeatfof certain types of regulation for certain Wihawned subsidiaries—
lllinois Consolidated Telephone Company, ConsofidatCommunications of Texas Company, and Consod
Communications of Fort Bend Company.

The decision to discontinue the application of #ighoritative accounting guidance was based oentechanges to o
operations which have impacted the dynamics ofabmpanys business environment. In the last half of 2008 experience
a significant increase in competition in our lllis@and Texas markets as, primarily, our traditiocale competitors start
offering voice services. Also, effective July 1,080 we made an election to transition from rateetdirn to price cap regulati
at the interstate level for our lllinois and Tex@serations. The conversion to price caps givesraategr pricing flexibility
especially in the increasingly competitive speeietess segment and in launching new products. idddlty, in response
customer demand we have also launched our own \p@iBuct offering as an alternative to our tradigibwireline service:
While there has been no material changes in oudlmgstrategy or in endser pricing, our pricing structure is transitiagy
from being based on the recovery of costs to argristructure based on market conditions. As reguby the provisions of t
applicable accounting guidance for regulated entap, we recorded a naash extraordinary gain of $7.2 million, net of t#
$4.2 million, from the write off of asset removadsts in excess of the salvage value of regulatoedfassets which h
previously been charged to depreciation over teetasuseful life.

Income Taxe

Our provision for income taxes increased by $5.Monito $12.4 million in 2009 compared to $6.6 lih in 2008. Th
effective tax rate was 32.3% for 2009 and 52.0%208.

We adopted the applicable accounting guidanceegtlat noncontrolling interest on January 1, 20048 fpresentation a
disclosure requirements were applied retrospegtitébwever, the income tax provision was not adidsThe result is a low
effective income tax rate due to the inclusionmafome attributable to noncontrolling interest inadme before the provision f
income taxes. The effective rate prior to adopti@s 55.8% for 2008.
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The effective rate was lower in 2009 due to statepianning and the changes to our state tax liegostructure resultir
from the completion of the internal restructurirffeetive December 31, 2008. This change resulteghiadditional net decre:
in our state deferred income tax rate. This chamglee state deferred income tax rate resultedhiagproximate $1.0 million
tax benefit in 2009 due to applying a lower effeetdeferred income tax rate to previously recor@ediabilities. In additior
various prior-year state returns were amended ilgdiresulting in a $0.5 million state tax benefit.

Taxes were higher during 2008 due to state inc@xestowed in certain states where we were reqtorét on a separa
legal entity basis and the rate impact of the exttimary gain presented net of tax. In addition, cenpleted a tax free le(
entity reorganization project resulting in change®ur state reporting structure. This change teduh a net decrease in
state deferred income tax rate. This change insthte deferred income tax rate resulted in appratém $1.2 million ta
benefit in 2008 due to applying a lower effectivefedred income tax rate to previously recorded refetax liabilities. Alsc
during 2008, the state of Texas completed an adidito Texas subsidiaries resulting in additiorzad €xpense of $.8 million.

Exclusive of these adjustments, our effective take rwould have been approximately 36.2% for ther yerade:
December 31, 2009, compared to 48.1% for the yeded December 31, 2008.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Inter:

The net income attributable to noncontrolling ietrtotaled $1.0 million in 2009 versus $0.9 millio 2008. The incon
for our ETFL subsidiary was relatively stable yeaer year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, compareddodbnber 31, 2007

The following summarizes our revenues and operaiggenses on a consolidated basis for the yeaesdldddcember 3
2008 and 2007:

For the years ended December

2008 2007
(in million, except for percentage $ % $ %
Revenue
Telephone operatior
Local calling service 104.¢ 25.C 82.¢ 25.2
Network access servic 95.2 22.¢ 70.¢ 21k
Subsidies 55.2 13.2 46.C 14.C
Long-distance service 24.1 5.7 14.2 4.3
Data and Internet servic 62.7 15.C 38.C 11
Other service 37.1 8.8 36.2 11.C
Total telephone operatiol 379.( 90.€ 288.2 87.t
Other operation 39.4 9.4 41.C 12.5
Total operating revent 418.4 100.( 329.2 100.(
Expense:!
Telephone operatior 214t 51.2 155.( 47.1
Other operation 43.¢ 10.5 41.¢ 12.7
Depreciation and amortizatic 91.7 21.¢ 65.7 20.C
Total operating expen: 350.( 83.€ 262.€ 79.€
Income from operatior 68.4 16.4 66.€ 20.2
Interest expense, n 66.2 15.¢ 46.5 14.1
Other income 10.7 2.€ (3.9 (2.0
Income tax expens 6.€ 1.€ 4.7 14
Income before extraordinary ite 6.2 1.5 12.C 3.7
Extraordinary item, net of te 7.2 1.7 — —
Net income 13.4 3.2 12.C 3.7
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter 0.8 0.2 0.€ 0.2
Net income attributable to common stockholc 12.5 3.C 11.4 S5
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Revenue

Revenue in 2008 increased by $89.2 million, or 2.t $418.4 million from $329.2 million in 2007 v€rall, the increas
in revenue was the result of our acquisition of tNdPittsburgh at the end of 2007. The addition oftN Pittsburgh add:
$94.8 million of revenue in 2008. Excluding the itiws effect on revenue as a result of our acgoisipbf North Pittsburgl
revenues year over year would have declined $Sl®mprincipally as a result of declines in thenmiper of access lines, wh
impacted revenues for local calling services, nektvaxcess services, subsidies and Idisance services, offset by increase
broadband connections. VOIP, DSL and IPTV connestiall increased significantly in 2008. Connectidiystype are ¢

follows:
December 31
2008 2007

Residential access lines in serv 162,06 183,07(
Business access lines in serv 102,25t 103,11¢
Total local access lines in servi 264,32: 286,18t
VOIP subscriber 6,51( 2,49
IPTV subscriber: 16,66¢ 12,241
ILEC DSL subscriber 91,81" 81,33%
Total broadband connectio 114,99: 96,07:
CLEC access line equivaler® 74,687 70,06
Total connection 454,00: 452,32:
Long-distance line{? 165,95: 166,59¢
Dial-up subscriber 3,95 5,57¢

(1) CLEC access line equivalents represent a combimatfovoice services and data circuits. The caloutat represent
conversion of data circuits to an access line bdstpiivalents are calculated by converting dataudis (basic ra
interface, primary rate interface, DSL, DS-1, D&rg8l Ethernet) and SONET-based (optical) servic€g§@nd OCA8) tc
the equivalent of an access lii

(2) Reflects the inclusion of long-distance segvprovided as part of our VOIP offering while axdihg CLEC longdistanc:
subscriber:

Telephone Operations Revenue

Local calling servicesrevenue increased by $21.8 million, or 26.3%, td4%a million in 2008 as compared
$82.8 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyedio $27.5 million of new local calling revenueaaesult of the acquisition
North Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsgh, local calling revenue decreased by $5.7anillprimarily due to
decline in local access lines, as discussed undéidttors Affecting Results of Operations.”

Network access servicegvenue increased by $24.4 million, or 34.4%, t&.$9nillion in 2008 as compared
$70.9 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyedio $29.5 million of new network access revenua essult of the acquisitit
of North Pittsburgh. Without the effect of NorthttBburgh, network access revenue decreased byn$llidn. The decline i
network access revenue excluding the North Pittdbacquisition was principally the result of lowire charge and switch
access revenue due to access line loss and dectmirutes of use. In 2008, the elimination of tlexds Infrastructure Fund ¢
Local Number Portability surcharges also negatiwelyacted revenues.

Subsidyrevenue increased by $9.2 million, or 20.0%, to.$%billion in 2008 as compared to $46.0 millionZ@07. Thi
increase is primarily due to $7.3 million of newdéeal and state subsidy revenue as a result ohtheisition of Nort
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburglipsidy revenue increased by $1.9 million. Thedase excluding the effe
of the acquisition of North Pittsburgh is primarilye to differences in prior period payments betwtbe years.

Long-distance servicagvenue increased by $9.9 million, or 69.7%, to.$2illion in 2008 as compared to $14.2 mill

in 2007. The increase is primarily due to $11.6iarl of new long-distance revenue as a result of the acquisitioNarth
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of North Pittsburfimg-distance revenue decreased as a resultetlmd in billable minutes.
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Data and Internetevenue increased by $24.7 million, or 65.0%, t@.%6nillion in 2008 as compared to $38.0 milliol
2007. The increase is primarily due to $16.7 millof new data and Internet revenue as a resubhefatquisition of Nori
Pittsburgh. Without the effect of the North Pittafflu acquisition, data and Internet revenues inegas a result of the incre
in DSL and IPTV subscribers.

Other servicesevenue increased by $0.8 million, or 2.2%, to $3illion in 2008 as compared to $36.3 million iB0Z
The acquisition of North Pittsburgh resulted inZb@illion of new other services revenue. Withou¢ tiffect of the Nor
Pittsburgh acquisition, other service revenuesetead by $1.4 million due principally to a decraaseside wiring revenue
2008.

Other Operations Revenue

Other Operations revenue decreased by $1.6 miltor8.9%, to $39.4 million in 2008 as compared 4d.9 million ir
2007. Revenues declined as a result of a declirmuiroperator services business, business systis, sad lower revenu
from our prison systems calling and mobile and pagiervices, offset partially by gains in our tedeketing business.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses (excluding a $6.1 million impaint charge in 2008) increased in 2008 by $55.8amjlor 28.1%, t
$252.2 million as compared to $196.9 million in 200he increase in operating expenses by segmdigdgssed below.

Telephone Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Telephone Operations inedelag $59.5 million, or 38.4%, to $214.5 million2008 compared
$155.0 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyedto higher telephone operations operating exgeasd depreciation a
amortization as a result of our acquisition of Ndeittsburgh, as well as costs incurred duringréo@very from Hurricane Ik
which caused severe power outages in both TexaPamasylvania in 2008.

Other Operations Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for Other Operations (excludi®§.1 million impairment charge in 2008) decreasg®4.2 million
or 10.0%, to $37.7 million in 2008 compared to $4rillion in 2007. Cost of services declined by8inillion directly relate
to the decrease in revenues for the various Otperalions businesses. In addition, our operateicees business experience
$1.5 million decrease on operating expense asudt ifssalary and benefit reductions.

Depreciation and Amortizatio
Depreciation and amortization expenses increase@%§%, or $26.0 million, to $91.7 million in 20G®mpared t
$65.7 million in 2007. In connection with the acsjtion of North Pittsburgh, we acquired propert\gnt and equipment valu

at $116.3 million, which caused an increase in @gption expense. In addition, we allocated $49I0om of the purchase prit
to customer lists, which are being amortized ouar years.
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Interest Expense, N

Interest expense, net of interest income, incredsed?2.6%, or $19.8 million, to $66.3 million in compared !
$46.5 million in 2007. The increase is primarilyedto an increase of $296.0 million in our loegm debt as a result of 1
acquisition of North Pittsburgh. The increase iteiast expense resulting from the acquisition wasially offset by th
redemption of our senior notes. On April 1, 2008, redeemed $130.0 million of senior notes payi$% interest by usir
cash on hand and borrowing $120.0 million at a cdtapproximately 7.0%. In addition, during therthguarter of 2008, v
entered into $790.0 million of basis swaps. Theogedion of ineffectiveness on our interest rateaps created a narast
charge of $0.4 million to interest expense.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income, net increased $14.1 million, to $Xilfion in 2008 compared to ($3.4) million in 200%13.1 million o
income was recognized from three additional cellpkrtnerships acquired as part of the acquisitfoNorth Pittsburgh, as wi
as additional earnings from our previously heldelgss partnership investments in Texas. In cormectith the 200
redemption of our senior notes, we recognized a tos extinguishment of debt of $9.2 million, whicteluded a redemptic
premium of $6.3 million and the writeff of unamortized deferred financing costs of $&i@ion. During 2007, we recognizet
loss on extinguishment of debt of $10.3 millioratet to the debt refinancing from the acquisitibNorth Pittsburgh.

Extraordinary Iterr

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we determined it wes longer appropriate to continue the applicatidrthe FASBS
authoritative guidance on the accounting for tHfea$ of certain types of regulation for certainolfp owned subsidiaries—
lllinois Consolidated Telephone Company, Conso#idatCommunications of Texas Company, and Consoti
Communications of Fort Bend Company.

The decision to discontinue the application of #ighoritative accounting guidance was based oentechanges to a
operations which have impacted the dynamics of2bmpanys business environment. In the last half of 2008 experience
a significant increase in competition in our lllis@and Texas markets as, primarily, our traditiocable competitors start
offering voice services. Also, effective July 1,080 we made an election to transition from rateetdirn to price cap regulati
at the interstate level for our lllinois and Tex@serations. The conversion to price caps gave eat@r pricing flexibility
especially in the increasingly competitive speaatess segment and in launching new products. iaddlty, in response
customer demand we have also launched our own \p@iBuct offering as an alternative to our tradigibwireline service:
While there have been no material changes in ondling strategy or in endser pricing, our pricing structure is transitio
from being based on the recovery of costs to angistructure based on market conditions. As reguiny the provisions of t
applicable accounting guidance for regulated enterp, we recorded a naash extraordinary gain of $7.2 million, net of t
$4.2 million, from the writeaff of asset removal costs in excess of the salwadee of regulatory fixed assets which
previously been charged to depreciation over tietasuseful life.
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Income Taxe

Provision for income taxes increased by $1.9 nmllto $6.6 million in 2008 compared to $4.7 milliam 2007. Th
effective tax rate was 52.0% for 2008 and 27.9%2f007. The effective rate for 2008, including thér&ordinary gain ar
corresponding tax, was 46.3%.

We adopted the accounting guidance applicable tocordrolling interest on January 1, 2009. The preg®n an
disclosure requirements were applied retrospegtitébwever, the income tax provision was not adidsThe result is a low
effective income tax rate due to the inclusionmafome attributable to noncontrolling interest inadme before the provision f
income taxes. The effective rate prior to adopti@s 55.8% for 2008 and 29% for 2007.

Taxes were higher during 2008 due to state inc@xestowed in certain states where we were reqtorél on a separa
legal entity basis and the rate impact of the exttmary gain presented net of tax. In addition, c@enpleted a tax free le
entity reorganization project resulting in change®ur state reporting structure. This change teduh a net decrease in
state deferred income tax rate. This change insthte deferred income tax rate resulted in an appeie $1.2 million ta
benefit in 2008 due to applying a lower effectivefedred income tax rate to previously recorded refetax liabilities. Alsc
during 2008, the state of Texas completed an adfidito Texas subsidiaries resulting in additiorsad €xpense of $0.8 million.

The effective tax rate during 2007 was lower thaa statutory rate due to a 2007 amendment to Tiexaegislation firs
enacted in 2006. For us, the most significant aspiethis amendment was the revision to the temyareedit on taxable marc
to convert state loss carryforwards to a statetadit carryforward. This new legislation effecliveeduced our net deferred
liabilities and corresponding tax provision by appmately $1.7 million. Under lllinois tax law, Nibr Pittsburgh and i
directly owned subsidiaries joined Consolidated @amications Holdings, Inc. and its directly ownagbsidiaries in th
lllinois unitary tax group for 2008. The additiofi aur Pennsylvania entities to our lllinois unitagyoup reduced our sti
deferred income tax rate. When applied to previoustorded deferred tax liabilities that reducetk tf@wered income t:
expense by approximately $0.9 million in 2007.

Exclusive of these adjustments, our effective tate rwould have been approximately 48.1% for ther yerade:
December 31, 2008, compared to 45.1% for the yeded December 31, 2007.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Inter:

The net income attributable to noncontrolling ietrtotaled $0.9 million in 2008 versus $0.6 millia 2007. This chan
reflects the improved operating performance of 6UFL subsidiary year over year.

Trends and Factors that May Affect Future OperatingResults
Growth of Data and Internet services

We are continuing to expand our deployment of bbaad and IPTV services. Our business plan is basegrowing
revenues by expanding the number of customers whscsibe to our data and Internet services, inolydiur IPTV service. £
of December 31, 2009, over 95% of our connectioadxSL capable at speeds up to 3 mbps, and wegessed approximate
188,000 homes with our IPTV service. We expectdotioue increasing the percentage of householdsiinterritories wh
subscribe to these services. We also expect tancentvorking with our vendors to improve the redgeitardware and softwe
technology. If we are unable to continue to inceeasr penetration of our data and Internet seryigesfuture cash flows a
results of operations may suffer.
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Loss of Access Lint

Most wireline telephone companies have experierctabs of local access lines due to challengingn@tic condition
and increased competition from wireless providemnpetitive local exchange carriers and, in sonsegacable televisit
operators. We have not been immune to these conditin 2009 and 2008, our number of access lieesedsed by 17,088 ¢
21,863, respectively. The number of local accessslin service directly affects the monthly reagrievenue we generate fr
endusers, the amount of traffic on our network, theeas charges we receive from other carriers, therdé and state subsid
we receive, and most other revenue streams. Weckexipis trend to continue although on a decliniegls. The continue
decline in local access lines may have a negatipact on our future cash flow and results of openat

Competition and Regulation

Technological, regulatory and market changes haweiged us both new opportunities and challengbgesé changes he
allowed us to offer new types of services in arreasingly competitive market. At the same timeythave allowed oth
service providers to broaden the scope of their ommpetitive offerings. Current and potential cofitpes for network service
include other telephone companies, cable compawiesless service providers, satellite providerdgeinet service provide
providers of VOIP services, and other companies dff@r network services using a variety of teclugi¢és. Many of the:
companies have a strong market presence, brangnigon and existing customer relationships, allwdfich contribute t
intensifying competition and may affect our futievenue growth. Many of our competitors also renmibject to fewe
regulatory constraints than us. We are unable tedipt definitively the impact that the ongoing cbes in th
telecommunications industry will ultimately have oar business, results of operations or financtaldition. The financi:
impact will depend on several factors, including timing, extent and success of competition in markets, the timing ai
outcome of various regulatory proceedings and apgeals, and the timing, extent and success of awsug of nev
opportunities.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies

We base this discussion and analysis of our resfiltgperations, cash flow and financial conditiam @ur consolidate
financial statements, which have been prepareddardance with generally accepted accounting ppiasiin the U.S.

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBEcounting guidance related to goodwill and othgairigible asse
requires us to perform an assessment, no lessathanally, of the carrying value of goodwill assdéeth with each of ol
reporting units. The goodwill impairment analysss a twostep process. The first step identifies potentiapairment b
comparing each reporting unit's estimated fair eato its carrying value, including goodwill. To calate the reporting ung’
fair value, we utilized both a discounted cash flapproach to estimate the fair value of our repgrtinits as well as
marketing approach. Significant management judgnmentquired in developing the assumptions usethéndiscounted ca
flow model. These significant assumptions includeréases or decreases in growth rates for reveantegxpenses, expec
amounts for future capital expenditures, workingied needs, and discount rates (weightwdrage cost of capital). If t
estimated fair value of a reporting unit exceedsérrying value, goodwill is deemed not to be iirggh If the carrying valt
exceeds estimated fair value, there is an indicadiopotential impairment and a secondary steperfopmed to measure {
amount of any potential impairment.
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The second step of the process involves the caicnlaf an implied fair value of goodwill for eackporting unit fo
which step one indicated potential impairment. Trhplied fair value of goodwill is determined by deting the estimated f:
value of all assets and liabilities of the repagtimit determined based on a hypothetical purcpase allocation from the fe
value of the reporting unit determined in step dh¢he implied fair value of goodwill exceeds tharrying value of goodw
assigned to the reporting unit, there is no impairinlIf the carrying value of goodwill assignedatoeporting unit exceeds 1
implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairmeriarge is recorded to write down the carrying valtigoodwill to the implie
fair value.

In 2008 and the preceding years, we consideredeparting units to be the Telephone Operationsisesvin our lllinoi:
ILEC territory, Telephone Operations services in dexas ILEC territories, Telephone Operations ises/in our Pennsylvar
ILEC territory, Pennsylvania CLEC Operations andheaf the companies in our Other Operations Segnvenith include
Prison Systems, Business Systems, Operator Seafice€MR.

Beginning in 2009, after undergoing an internablegntity restructuring and completing the finages of the integrati
of our Texas, lllinois and Pennsylvania operatioms,reevaluated our reporting units based on how ournassi is current
being managed. Segment management evaluates thatiope of the telephone operations segment onnaatidated bas
rather than at a geographic level. In general, ycbadnanagers and cost managers are responsibiadoaging costs a
services across territories rather than treatirg tirritories as separate business units. As dtrefuhe integration, tr
operations of our lllinois, Texas and Pennsylvagniaperties can no longer be easily separated. Togsmtions share netwt
operations monitoring, call routing, remittance stamer service, billing systems and research anetldement costs.
addition, the Pennsylvania territories receiverthiZleo programming from a video headed located in the lllinois territory, a
all of the networks provide redundancy. As suclsubstantial portion of the assets could not be swddvidually withou
incurring substantial cost to separate procesgsteras and technologies. As a result, beginnir@p®9, we have combined
Telephone Operations of our lllinois, Texas andrRglvania territories and our Pennsylvania CLECrapens into a sing
reporting unit, Telephone Operations. Had the iidlial telephone operations territories been aggeegevhen goodwill we
tested in 2008, the results would not have changed.

Following the impairment of goodwill recognized aur CMR reporting unit in the fourth quarter of 3)the onh
remaining reporting units in the Other Operatioegnsent which have a goodwill intangible balancecanePrison Systems a
Business Systems entities. The carrying value@fttodwill by reporting unit as of December 31, 200

Telephone operatior $519.5 millior
Prison System $ 0.2 million
Business Systen $ 0.8 million
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We perform our annual assessment of the carryihgevaf goodwill as of November 30 of each yeannare frequently
circumstances arise which would indicate a redudtiothe fair value of a reporting unit below i@rging value. Each year
of November 30, we determine the estimated fainevaf each of our reporting units using a discoditi@sh flow model. O
2009 and 2008 impairment testing did not resulirig impairment of any reporting units, except fog CMR reporting unit |
2008. In 2008, we recorded an impairment chargg6af million as the carrying value of the CMR rdpa unit exceeded fl
implied fair value of goodwill as of the testingtela

The discount rate, sales growth and profitabilgguanptions are material assumptions utilized indiscounted cash flc
model. The discount rate is an after-tax, weigl#teerage cost of capital (“WACC”"JThe WACC is calculated based
observable market data. Some of this data (sudheasisk free or treasury rate and the pretax obstebt) are based on -
market data at a point in time. Other data (sudheta and the equity risk premium) are based uparkeh data over time. Sa
growth rates and profitability assumptions arersdigy with our longerm strategic planning process and reflect th¢ dmstgmat
of future results based on all information avakatad us at the assessment date.

In 2009, the equity portion of our WACC included egpuity risk premium of 6.5%, a beta of 1.26, &-fiee treasury ra
of 3.21%, and a small stock risk premium of 2.3%6addition, we used a debt yield of 7.39%, whiepresents the weighted-
average yield applicable to some of our competitiased upon debt yields for issuances in 2009, aalidd an addition
adjustment of 1.50% to recognize the amount ofrbye of our Company versus some of our peer group.

Using the inputs above, the WACC used in our distedi cash flow model was 8.3% at November, 30, 2008 pared t
8.7% at November 30, 2008. In general, the lowtr waas the result of a lower debt component asapéal markets began
again finance transactions within the telecom sedtimlding all other inputs in our model constawg could increase t
WACC rate to approximately 11.4% without the repatunit’'s calculated fair value falling below its carryinglue. Ir
addition, the fair value of our reporting units wbaecrease by up to 28% without the calculatedvfaiue falling below th
carrying value.

Our discounted cash flow model assumes that rewedeeline slightly in 2010 and 2011 and that, longgm, ou
broadband business (both Internet and IPTV) comtinto grow, offsetting a projected continued declin the wirelin
telephone business. The model assumes a slowiligeleate in the loss of access lines, which issggiant with recent trenc
Overall, while revenue shows continued growth lonigem, we have assumed a declining margin as higlaggin revenus
generated from local access lines are being replageslightly lower margin revenues from DSL, IPTVQIP and othe
products. For the reporting units in our Other @ien segment, we assumed slightly growing reveangeexpenses, result
in steady margins, which is consistent with theergé©perations of these businesses. Despite thasemwative assumptions,
analysis continues to allow us to conclude thatetie no impairment of the carrying value of oudwill in any of ou
reporting units.

We also evaluated the carrying value of our repgrtinits using a market approach. In applying thethodology, w
looked at recent transactions involving other corapke RLECs and the market multiples being paidtiet to enterprise valt
This approach confirmed the indicative fair valuedicated under the discounted cash flow approach.

In the course of operating the business, shouldassumptions not be realized, we would generatBngit to offset ar
unexpected revenue declines with proportional rédus in selling, general and administrative exgsns
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Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, not beingdized are also reviewed for impairment as pAdus annual busine
planning cycle in the fourth quarter or wheneveeres or circumstances make it more likely thanthat an impairment mi
have occurred. Several factors could trigger araimpent review, including:

* Achange in the use or perceived value of our trades

«  Significant underperformance relative to historieaprojected future operating resu
< Significant regulatory changes that would impattife operating revenue

e Significant changes in our customer be

«  Significant negative industry or economic trends

«  Significant changes in the overall strategy we @ypb operate our busine:

We determine if impairment exists primarily based amethod that uses discounted cash flows. This regumanageme
to make certain assumptions regarding future ingomglty rates, and discount rates, all of whiauld affect our impairme
calculation. Our 2009 review did not result in ampairment.

Revenue recognitio

Revenue is generally recognized when evidence ofamangement exists, the earnings process is coanpda
collectability is reasonably assured. Marketingeintives, including bundle discounts, are recognaedevenue reductions
the period the service is provided.

Local calling services, enhanced calling featuspecial access circuits, long-distance fhe calling plans, and most d
services are billed to engsers in advance. Billed but unearned revenue fisrréel and recorded in advance billings
customer deposits.

Revenues for usage-based services, such as petenfimgdistance service and access charges billed to tthegghon
carriers for originating and terminating lodistance calls on our network, are billed in arse&¥e recognize revenue fr
these services in the period the services are reddather than billed. Earned but unbilled usbgsed services are recorde
accounts receivable.

Subsidies, including universal service revenues,gavernmensponsored support to subsidize services in mostig,
high-cost areas. These revenues typically are basedfonmation provided by the Company and are caledlaby thi
administering government agency. Subsidies aregrézed in the period the service is provided.

Revenues from operator services, paging servicdsSCMR are recognized monthly as services are peavidelephor
equipment revenues generated from retail chanmeleeaorded at the point of sale. Telecommunicat&ystems and structu
cabling project revenues are recognized when tbgqris completed and billed. Maintenance servaresprovided on both
contract and time and material basis and are redanthen the service is provided. Print advertising publishing revenues .
recognized ratably over the life of the relateadiory, generally 12 months.

The Company reports taxes imposed by governmeathbaties on revenuproducing transactions between the Com
and our customers that are within the scope offA8B’s authoritative guidance on how taxes collectechfrustomers ar
remitted to governmental authorities should be goredd in the income statement in the consolidatezh€ial statements or
net basis.
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Derivatives

We have designated as cash flow hedges derivadintacts which will convert a portion of future bafows associate
with the interest to be paid on our credit facilitpm a floating rate to a fixed rate. The changehe market value of the
derivative contracts has in the past been highigcéfre at offsetting changes in interest rate nmosets of our hedged ite
Gains and losses arising from the change in fduevaf the hedging transactions are deferred irrotomprehensive incon
net of applicable income taxes, and recognizedasrgonent of interest expense in the period ircwiiie hedged item affe
earnings. If the derivative instruments used aréonger effective at offsetting changes in the @f the hedged item, then
changes in the market value of these instrumentddvoe recorded in the statement of earnings asngponent of intere
expense.

Our interest rate swaps are measured using amahtealuation model which relies on an expected@RBbased yiel
curve and estimates of counterparty and ourpenfiermance risk as the most significant inputddse each of these inputs
directly observable or can be corroborated by oladde market data, we have considered these intertesswaps to be witt
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Income taxe:

Our current and deferred income taxes and assdoialeation allowances are impacted by events mgsactions arisir
in the normal course of business as well as in eomon with the adoption of new accounting standamtquisitions (
businesses, and neoaeurring items. Assessment of the appropriate amand classification of income taxes is depende
several factors, including estimates of the timargl realization of deferred income tax assets hedtiiming of income te
payments. Actual collections and payments may nadiediffer from these estimates as a result cdrdes in tax laws as w
as unanticipated future transactions impactingtediancome tax balances. We account for tax bentfiken or expected to
taken in our tax returns in accordance with theoanting guidance applicable for uncertainty in imeotaxes, which requir
the use of a two-step approach for recognizingraedsuring tax benefits taken or expected to bentaka tax return.

Subsidies revenues

We recognize revenues from universal service sigssidnd charges to intexchange carriers for switched and sps
access services. In certain cases, our rural tefephompanies participate in interstate revenuecastsharing arrangemen
referred to as pools, with other telephone comariteols are funded by charges imposed by particgpaompanies on the
respective customers. The revenue we receive franparticipation in pools is based on our actuat ad providing intersta
services. These costs are not precisely known sjpeicial jurisdictional cost studies are completggrerally during the seca
quarter of the following year.
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Allowance for uncollectible accour

We use estimates and assumptions when evaluagngptlectability of our accounts receivable. Whem ave aware tha
specific customer is unable to meet its financkdigations, such as following a bankruptcy filingsubstantial downgrading
credit scores, we record a specific allowance agamounts due to set the net receivable to an atmee believe we c:
collect. For all other customers, we generally nesean amount based upon a rolling four month e actual writesffs. If
circumstances change, we may review the adequatiyeoéllowance to determine if we should modify estimates of tt
recoverability of amounts due us by a material amoAt December 31, 2009 and 2008, our total alloveafor uncollectibl
accounts for all business segments was $1.8 midli@h$1.9 million, respectively.

Pension and postretirement bene

The amounts recognized in our financial statemfartpension and postretirement benefits are deterchbn an actuar
basis utilizing several critical assumptions.

We make significant assumptions in regards to emsjpn and postretirement plans, including the etgoklongterm rati
of return on plan assets and the discount rate tesedlue the periodic pension expense and liaslitOur pension investmy
strategy is to maximize longrm return on invested plan assets while miningiztme risk of volatility. Accordingly, we tarc
our allocation percentage at 50% to 60% in equihds, with the remainder in fixed income and caghivalents. Our assum
rate considers this investment mix as well as pasts. We used a weighted-average expectedtEmnygrate of return of 7.7
in 2009 and 8.0% in 2008. In determining the appate discount rate, we consider the current yield$iighquality corporat
fixed-income investments with maturities that correspiantthe expected duration of our pension and pasgraént benefit ple
obligations. For 2009 and 2008, we used a weightedtage discount rate of 6.23% and 6.12%, resmgtior our pensic
plans and 6.10% and 6.15% for 2009 and 2008, réspbg for our other postretirement plans.

Net pension and postretirement costs were $8.5omjl$3.4 million and $2.8 million for the yearsded December 3
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In 2009, we rdmrted $10.5 million to our pension plans and $2iBion to our othe
postretirement plans. In 2008, we contributed $6illion to our pension plans and $2.5 million toraather postretireme
plans. In 2010, we expect to make contributionalitag $0.1 million to our nomualified pension plan and $2.9 million to
other postretirement plans. We are not requiraddke a contribution to our qualified pension plamity 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Outlook and Overview

The following table sets forth selected informatemmcerning our financial condition.

December 31

(In thousands 2009 2008

Cash and cash equivalel $  42,75¢ $  15,47:
Working capital 23,78¢ 2,841
Total debt 880,34« 881,26t
Current ratic 1.3C 1.04

Our operating requirements have historically baemdéd from cash flows generated from our businesisberrowing
under our credit facilities. We expect that ourufet operating requirements will continue to be fohdrom cash flow
generated from our business and, if needed, framoings under our revolving credit facility.
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As a general matter, we expect that our liquidiagas for 2010 will arise primarily from: (i) an eqied dividend payme
of $45.0 million to $46.0 million; (ii) interest geents on our indebtedness of approximately $51llibmto $54.0 million
(iii) capital expenditures of between $40.0 milliand $42.0 million; (iv) cash income tax paymerftbetween $21.0 million
$23.0 million; (v) pension and other postretiremgiain contributions of approximately $3.0 millicamd (vi) certain other cos
In addition, we may use cash and incur additiorddtdo fund selective acquisitions. However, oufitgtto use cash may |
limited by our other expected uses of cash, inclgdiur dividend policy, and our ability to incurdiiibnal debt will be limite
by our existing and future debt agreements.

We believe that cash flows from operating actigititogether with our existing cash and borrowingailable under ot
revolving credit facility, will be sufficient for gproximately the next 12 months to fund our cufseanticipated uses of ca
After that, our ability to fund these expected ugsksash and to comply with the financial covenamider our debt agreeme
will depend on the results of future operationgfgenance and cash flow. Our ability to do so vbi# subject to prevailir
economic conditions and to financial, businessulaggry, legislative and other factors, many of ethare beyond our control.

We may be unable to access the cash flows of dagidiaries since certain of our subsidiaries artigsto credit or oth
borrowing agreements or subject to statutory owmlagry restrictions, that restrict the paymentdifidends or makin
intercompany loans and investments, and those diahiss are likely to continue to be subject tohsuestrictions ar
prohibitions for the foreseeable future. In additifuture agreements that our subsidiaries mayr émtie governing the terms
indebtedness may restrict our subsidiaries’ abititpay dividends or advance cash in any other eratonus.

To the extent that our business plans or projestarange or prove to be inaccurate, we may requié@ional financing ¢
require financing sooner than we currently antit@p&ources of additional financing may include owrcial bank borrowing
other strategic debt financing, sales of nonstiatagsets, vendor financing or the private or pubhles of equity and dt
securities. There can be no assurance that webwilible to generate sufficient cash flows from agens in the future, th
anticipated revenue growth will be realized, ot fludure borrowings or equity issuances will beiakde in amounts sufficie
to provide adequate sources of cash to fund oueagd uses of cash. Failure to obtain adequatading, if necessary, cot
require us to significantly reduce our operationsewel of capital expenditures which could haveaterial adverse effect
our financial condition and the results of openasio

As discussed below, our term loan has been fulhgléd at a fixed spread above LIBOR, and we haven@iBion available
under our revolving credit facility. Based on ousalission with banks participating in the bank growe expect that the fur
will be available under the revolving credit fawilif necessary.

Sources of Liquidity

Our current principal sources of liquidity are cashsh equivalents, cash available under our seaeeolving cred
facility, cash provided by operations and workimagital.

Cash and cash equivalent®uring 2009, cash and cash equivalents increbgek?7.3 million as compared to decrea
by $18.8 million in 2008. Cash and cash equivalast®f December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $42.8 mifliod $15.5 millior
respectively.
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Cash provided by operationblet cash provided by operating activities in 2008sv116.3 million, as compared to ¢
provided by operating activities of $92.4 milliam 2008. Cash provided by operations in 2009 ine@gsimarily as a result
better operating performance, including an increaseash provided from our wireless partnershipsjelr operating expens
and lower interest expense.

Cash available under our secured revolving crealdilfty. At December 31, 2009, we had no borrowing outstamdinde
our secured revolving credit facility and $50 naifli of availability (see a more detail descriptidroor secured revolving cre
facility below).

Working capital.Our net working capital position increased by $2@iBion in 2009 versus 2008. Our improved work
capital position in 2009 is the result of more cagmerated from better operating results and fratteb working capiti
management. In 2009, although we had a declinevienue, we were able to better manage our outgaisig payments.

Uses of Liquidity

Our principal uses of liquidity are dividend payrteninterest expense and other payments on ouy ceglital expenditur
and payments made to fund our pension and othémpiosment obligations.

Dividend paymentsDuring 2009, we used $45.9 million of cash to mdkidend payments to shareholders. In 200¢
used $45.4 million of cash to make dividend payméatshareholders. Our current annual dividendisas@proximately $1.£
per share.

Interest and other payments related to outstandiet. During 2009, we used $56.0 million of cash to ma&euirec
interest payments on our outstanding debt, inclygisnyments to settle swap liabilities. We also u&@@& million of cash durir
2009 to reduce our capital lease obligations. 1682Qve used $65.1 million of cash to make requinéerest payments on ¢
outstanding debt, including swap liabilities. Wesaalused $1.0 million of cash during 2008 to redoce capital leas
obligations.

Pension and postretirement obligatiori3uring 2009, we used $15.9 million of cash to fypehsion, 401(k) and ott
postretirement obligations. In 2010, we expect akenpayments totaling $3 million for pension andtpetirement expense &
approximately $2.6 million in 401(k) contributioriBhe reduction in expected contributions in 20ates primarily to bett
market performance in asset returns on pensiongssets in 2009.

Capital expendituresDuring 2009, we spent approximately $42.4 million oapital projects. In 2008, we sp
approximately $48.0 million on capital projects.

Debt

The following table summarizes our indebtedness &ecember 31, 2009:

(in thousands Balance Maturity Date Rate (1)

Capital least $ 344 April 12, 2010 7.4%
Revolving credit facility — December 31, 20. LIBOR plus 2.759
Term loan $880,00( December 31, 20: LIBOR plus 2.509

(1) As of December 31, 2009, th-month LIBOR rate in effect on our borrowings wa23%.
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Credit Facilities

Borrowings under our credit facilities are our ggnsecured obligations that are secured by sutistgirall of the assets
the borrower, Consolidated Communications, Incd #re guarantors (the Company and each of theimxisubsidiaries «
Consolidated Communications, Inc. other than liBnGonsolidated Telephone Company and certain dusuibsidiaries). Tl
credit agreement contains customary affirmativeecawnts, which require us and our subsidiaries tioish specified financi
information to the lenders, comply with applicaltdevs, maintain our properties and assets and niaiimiaurance on o
properties, among others, and contains customaggtive covenants which restrict our and our subsiel’ ability to incul
additional debt and issue capital stock, createsligepay other debt, sell assets, make investirars, guarantees
advances, pay dividends, repurchase equity ingestnake other restricted payments, engage ihiasdfitransactions, ma
capital expenditures, engage in mergers, acquisitar consolidations, enter into s#ééaseback transactions, amend spec
documents, enter into agreements that restrictieinds from subsidiaries and change the businesomduct. In addition, tt
credit agreement requires us to comply with spediffinancial ratios that are summarized below unterCovenar
Compliance”.

At December 31, 2009, we had no borrowings outstandnder the revolving credit facility. Borrowingsder our crec
facilities bear interest at a rate equal to aniapple margin plus, at the borrowers’ electionheita “base ratedr LIBOR. As
of December 31, 2009, the applicable margin fagrigst rates was 2.50% per year for the LIBRed term loan and 2.75%
the revolving credit facility. The applicable mardior alternative base rate loans was 1.50% per fggathe term loan ar
1.75% for the revolving credit facility. During tlopiarter ended December 31, 2009, the weightedage interest rate incur
on our credit facilities, including the effect afronterest rate swaps, was 5.96% per annum.

On April 1, 2008 we redeemed all of our theumistanding senior notes in part utilizing $120liom of borrowings unde
the DDTL provision of our credit facility. The aityl to utilize the DDTL for additional borrowingxgired on May 1, 2008. T!
relevant terms of the DDTL are the same as our team.

Derivative Instrument

As of December 31, 2009, we had $605 million natloamount of floating to fixed interest rate swagresement
outstanding and $605 million notional amount ofibasvaps outstanding. Under the floating to fixedhs agreements, \
receive 3-month LIBORyased interest payments from the swap counterpatid pay a fixed rate. Under the basis swap
pay 3-month LIBOR-based payments, less a fixedgmeage to the basis swap counterparties, and redaivonth LIBOR
Concurrent with the execution of the basis swagsbagan electing dronth LIBOR resets on our credit facility. The swagpe
in place to hedge the change in overall cash floMated to our term loan, the driver of which isaches in the underlyil
variable interest rate. The terms of our credieagrent require us to maintain a minimum fixed ¢afiihg ratio of 50%. Durir
the fourth quarter of 2009, the percentage of ¢matingrate term debt that was fixed as a result of ther@st rate swe
agreements averaged 77.3%. The maturity datesesétbwaps are laddered to minimize any potent@bsxe to unfavorak
rates when an individual swap expires. The swapgexat various times through March 31, 2013, aaekeha weightedverag
fixed rate of approximately 4.42%. The current effef the swap portfolio is to fix our cash intarpayments on $605 millic
of floating rate debt at an average rate of 6.92%uding our borrowing margin of 2.50% over LIBGR discussed above.
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Covenant Compliance

In general, our credit agreement restricts ouiitglid pay dividends to the amount of our Availallash accumulated af
October 1, 2005, plus $23.7 million and minus thgragate amount of dividends paid after July 2D52®vailable Cash fi
any period is defined in our credit facility as Asjed EBITDA (a) minus, to the extent not dedudtethe determination
Adjusted EBITDA, (i) noneash dividend income for such period; (ii) consatétl interest expense for such period, n
amortization of debt issuance costs incurred (Agannection with or prior to the consummation of tcquisition of Nort
Pittsburgh or (B) in connection with the redemptiofi our then outstanding senior notes; (iii) cdp#apenditures froi
internally generated funds; (iv) cash income tafcessuch period; (v) scheduled principal paymerftdnoebtedness, if an
(vi) voluntary repayments of indebtedness, mangaprepayments of term loans and net increases tstaouwling revolvin
loans during such period; (vii) the cash costsnyf extraordinary or unusual losses or chargesjaiifall cash payments ma
on account of losses or charges expensed priardo geriod (b) plus, to the extent not included\djusted EBITDA, (i) cas
interest income; (ii) the cash amount realizedeispect of extraordinary or unusual gains; and r{@f) decreases in revolvi
loans. Based on the results of operations from la&et@, 2005 through December 31, 2009, and afkémdanto consideratic
dividend payments (including the $11.5 million diend declared in November 2009 and paid on Febidjag010), w
continue to have $98.9 million in dividend availépiunder the credit facility covenant.

Under our credit agreement, if our total net legeraatio (as such term is defined in the credieagrent), as of the end
any fiscal quarter, is greater than 5.10:1.00, vilkhe required to suspend dividends on our comrstmtk unless otherwi
permitted by an exception for dividends that maypbal from the portion of proceeds of any sale aqpiiy not used to mal
mandatory prepayments of loans and not used to dendisitions, capital expenditures or make otheestments. During a
dividend suspension period, we will be requiredepay debt in an amount equal to 50.0% of any as@én available cash
such term is defined in our credit agreement) dusuach dividend suspension period, among othegshim addition, we wi
not be permitted to pay dividends if an event dadk under the credit agreement has occurred suwedritinuing. Among oth
things, it will be an event of default if our inést coverage ratio as of the end of any fiscaltquas below 2.25:1.00. As
December 31, 2009, our total net leverage ratio4a$:1.00, and our interest coverage ratio was:B.Q0.

The description of the covenants above and of cedlicagreement generally in this Report are suriesamly. They d
not contain a full description, including definitis, of the provisions summarized. As such, thesersries are qualified
their entirety by these documents, which are fasdexhibits to our Annual Report on Form KOQuarterly Reports on Fol
10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K.

Dividends

The cash required to fund dividend payments idufiteon to our other expected cash needs, bothhidwwe expect to t
funded with cash flows from operations. We expeetwill have sufficient availability under our revalg credit facility to funi
dividend payments in addition to any expected tlatibns in working capital and other cash needwatih we do not intend
borrow under this facility to pay dividends.
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We believe that our dividend policy will limit, butt preclude, our ability to grow. If we continpaying dividends at ti
level currently anticipated under our dividend pgliwe may not retain a sufficient amount of casld amay need to se
refinancing to fund a material expansion of ouribess, including any significant acquisitions optasue growth opportuniti
requiring capital expenditures significantly beyang current expectations. In addition, becausexgect a significant portic
of cash available will be distributed to holderscoimmon stock under our dividend policy, our apitid pursue any mater
expansion of our business will depend more thathirwise would on our ability to obtain third-pafinancing.

Surety Bonds

In the ordinary course of business, we enter intety, performance, and similar bonds. As of Decemdi, 2009, we h
approximately $2.1 million of these bonds outstagdi

Table of contractual obligations and commitments

The following table provides a summary of our caotual obligations and commercial commitments aBefember 3.
2009. Other norurrent liabilities included in our Consolidatedl&@sce Sheet that may not be fully disclosed beloguide
accrued pension and postretirement costs. Refeotes 15 and 16 of the Notes to the Consolidatedrfial Statements.

Payments due or expiring by peri
Less Than . More than £
(In thousands Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Contractual obligation:
Term loan and associated interest $ 1,142,224 $  52,44¢ $ 104,89t $ 984,89t $ —

Capital least 344 344 — — —
Operating lease 6,51/ 3,151 2,301 652 41C
Interest rate sway 32,17¢ 6,07¢ 17,094 9,011 —
Other (b) 2,59( 1,43¢ 952 138 67
Total Contractual obligatior $ 1,183,86 $ 63,45¢ $ 12524 $ 994,69. $ 477

(&) These items consist of interest and principal paymeinder our credit facilities. The credit fagdg consist of
$760.0 million term loan facility and a $120.0 igi DDTL facility, both maturing on December 31,120 and
$50.0 million revolving credit facility, which wafilly available but undrawn as of December 31, 2088 purposes
this table, we assumed a fixed interest rate d6%.%hroughout the entire term of the loan, whicts iz average rate
effect during the fourth quarter of 2009. The actade will vary depending on the LIBO rates inegff at the time «
payment and the expiration dates of the swap agretx:

(b) Represents payments for four operational suppatiesys obligations. Should we terminate any of thatracts prior t
their expiration, we will be liable for minimum canitment payments as defined in the contracts ferémaining term «
the contracts. In addition, we have a contractbligation for network maintenanc

Under accounting guidance applicable for uncernjaintincome taxes, unrecognized tax benefits of7 $billion are

excluded from the contractual obligations tabledose the timing of future cash outflows to settlese liabilities is high
uncertain.
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Market Risks

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstaiates. Market risk is the potential loss agigiem adverse chanc
in market interest rates on our variable rate albli;s. We calculate the potential change in isteegpense caused by char
in market interest rates by determining the eftédhe hypothetical rate increase on the portionwfvariable rate debt tha
not hedged through the interest rate swap agresment

At December 31, 2009, the interest rate on $278amibf our floating rate debt was not fixed thrduthe use of intere
rate swaps, thereby subjecting this portion of delst to potential changes in interest rates. Ifketainterest rates changed
1.0% from the average rates that prevailed duri®@92 interest expense would have increased or @eetleby approximate
$1.7 million for the year.

As of December 31, 2009, the fair value of intemedéé swap agreements amounted to a liability & &illion. The
deferred loss, net of taxes, recognized in accutedilather comprehensive loss for our interest sat@ps totaled $20.2 millic
at December 31, 2009.

Subsequent Events

In early 2010, we sold our CMR reporting unit. T$aes price, assets and revenues of CMR areco@nto our ongoir
business and are immaterial to the overall assaiisravenues of Consolidated. The divestiture iseetgad to be slight
accretive to our overall results of operations gdimrward.

On February 12, 2010, we announced plans to phaiseur operator services unit. Our operator sesvigeit provide
directory assistance and call completion serviocesu$ and several other telecommunications prosideis expected that tt
business will be phased out by June 30, 2010. $kets and revenues of operator services areo@nto our business and
immaterial to the overall assets and revenues ofs@aated. The phaseout of operator services fiea®rd to be slight
accretive to our overall results of operations gdimrward.

Both CMR and operator services were part of oue©@perations segment.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Hetic—Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements, efNiote:
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures &out Market Risk

The information required by this item is contained‘ltem 7 — Managemens’ Discussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” and is incoaped herein by reference.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following financial statements and supplemsntiata of the Company and its subsidiaries areudted below o
pages F-1 through F-70 of this report:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 79
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operati— For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 andl F-3
Consolidated Balance She— December 31, 2009 and 20 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&@psity —For the years ended December 31, 2009, .

and 2007 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl— For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 ard F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-7
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm F-44
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership Balafteet— December 31, 2009 and 20 F-45
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership Stateta@ri Operations — For the years ended December 31,

2009, 2008 and 20C F-46
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership Stateta@r Changes in Partners’ Capital — For the years

ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and z F-47
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership Stateta@fi Cash Flows — For the years ended December 31,

2009, 2008 and 20C F-48
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-49
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfdinm F-58
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership Baku$heet— December 31, 2009 and 20 F-59
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership Staats of Operations — For the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2( F-60
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership Stagats of Changes in Partners’ Capital — For thesyea

ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and z F-61
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership Stagats of Cash Flows — For the years ended

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2( F-62
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-63

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatatlesigned to ensure that information requiogket disclosed by
in our reports that we file or submit under the 8#ies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is rexxhrdrocessed, summari.
and reported within the time periods specifiedhie Securities and Exchange Commis’s rules and forms and that s



information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officexd a&Chie
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timetiecisions regarding required disclosures. Our mamagt, with th
participation of our Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer, has evaluated the effectiess of the design a
operation of our disclosure controls and proceda®f December 31, 2009. Based upon that evatuatial subject to tl

foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&ncial Officer concluded that our disclosure colstand procedures
effective.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

Based upon the evaluation performed by our managemich was conducted with the participation oésdrs. Curre
and Childers, there has been no change in ounglteontrol over financial reporting during the ftsuquarter of 2009 that
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, our internal control over financiaporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaihtaining adequate internal control over finahgégorting as suc
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 1B&({). Management, with the participation of Mes&arrey and Childers, asses
the effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of December 31, 2009. In makihig assessme
management used the framework set forttnbernal Control-Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basedups assessment, our management concluded ¢haf, 2ecember 3
2009, our internal control over financial reportimgas effective to provide reasonable assurance ttietdesired contr
objectives were achieved.

The effectiveness of internal control on financigorting has been audited by Ernst & Young LLEgpendent register
public accounting firm, as stated in their repartpage 79 included in this Annual Report on ForrK10

Inherent Limitation of the Effectiveness of Internd Control

A control system, no matter how well conceived apdrated, can only provide reasonable, not absalstirance that t
objectives of the internal control system are rBetause of the inherent limitations of any intecwitrol system, no evaluati
of controls can provide absolute assurance thabalirol issues, if any, within a company have baetected.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.

We have audited Consolidated Communications Hofiinte.’s (the Company) internal control over financial report
as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria estedolignIinternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisg§iba COSO criteria). The Compasymanagement is responsible
maintaining effective internal control over finaakreporting and for its assessment of the effeaiss of internal control o\
financial reporting included in the accompanying nfdgemens Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiOu
responsibility is to express an opinion on the canys internal control over financial reporting bdn our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight i@o@Jnitec
States). Those standards require that we plan arfdrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetalbether effectiv
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understanding
internal control over financial reporting, assegdime risk that a material weakness exists, tegtimyevaluating the design ¢
operating effectiveness of internal control basedie assessed risk, and performing such otheregdures as we conside
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranoairepshe
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purposesdécordance with genere
accepted accounting principles. A companiyternal control over financial reporting inclgsdose policies and procedures
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet titansactions and dispositi
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenasdurance that transactions are recorded assagcés permit preparati
of financial statements in accordance with gengradicepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of t
company are being made only in accordance withagiziitions of management and directors of the campand (3) provid
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetlction of unauthorized acquisition, use or ai#jon of the company’
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniiial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Als
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness utufe periods are subject to the risk that contro&sy become inadequ.
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate.

In our opinion, Consolidated Communications Holdingnc. maintained, in all material respects, aféecinternal contrc
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20@&dd on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@unitec
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Cdasati Communications Holdings, Inc. as of Decerie2009 and 2008, a

the related consolidated statements of operatidrages in stockholdersguity, and cash flows for each of the three yét
the period ended December 31, 2009, and our reptet! March 8, 2010, expressed an unqualified opittierein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 8, 2010
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespaliall of its employees, officers, and directorsluding its principz
executive officer, principal financial officer, apdincipal accounting officer. The text of the Coang’s code of ethics is post
on its website at www.Consolidated.com (select $tweRelations, and then Corporate Governance).

Additional information required by this Item is mrporated herein by reference to our proxy stateérteede issued
connection with the Annual Meeting of our Stockleskito be held on May 4, 2010, which proxy statdnmagih be filed befort
April 30, 2010.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to our proxy statement tisdaged in connectic
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to kddhon May 4, 2010, which proxy statement will lled before April 3C
2010.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to our proxy statement tisdaged in connectic
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to kedhon May 4, 2010, which proxy statement will iled before April 3C
2010.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to our proxy statement tisdaged in connectic
with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to kedhon May 4, 2010, which proxy statement will iled before April 3C
2010.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorp@cherein by reference to our proxy statement tizsdieed in connectic

with the Annual Meeting of our Stockholders to edhon May 4, 2010, which proxy statement will iled before April 3C
2010.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(@)

Index to exhibits, financial statements and schesl

(1) The following consolidated financial statements egybrts are included beginning on par1 hereof;

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingy.
Consolidated Statements of Operati— For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, &
Consolidated Balance She— December 31, 2009 and 20(

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stddkhsl Equity —For the years ended December 31, 2009, 200¢
2007.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl— For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, &bd
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing.

Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership BalaSteet— December 31, 2009 and 20(

Pennsylvania RSA 6(1) Limited Partnershi@t8ments of Operations +or the years ended December 31, 2
2008 and 2007

Pennsylvania RSA 6(Il) Limited Partnershimt®ments of Changes in Partners’ CapitalFer the years end
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 20

Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnershimt8tents of Cash Flows +or the years ended December 31, 2
2008 and 2007

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing.
GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership Baku$heet— December 31, 2009 and 20!

GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited PartnersBiatements of Operations Fer the years ended December 31, 2
2008 and 2007

GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited PartnersBifatements of Changes in Partners’ CapitaFerthe years end
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 20

GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnersififatements of Cash Flows Fer the years ended Decembet
2009, 2008 and 200

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(2) The following consolidated financial statement sitiie of the Company is included on pa¢-43 hereof

SCHEDULE Il Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

All other financial statements and schedules neiedi have been omitted since the required infoonait
included in the consolidated financial statementhe notes thereto, or is not applicable or resglir

(3) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulatio-K:
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Julyo@y72by and among Consolidated Communications
Holdings, Inc., North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. &odt Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc. (incorporated byerdnce
to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Forr-K dated July 12, 2007

3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incoapion (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 7 to Form-1 dated July 19, 200&

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amendedrfiarated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q
for the period ended September 30, 20

41 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 7 to
Form &1 dated July 19, 2005

10.1 Credit Agreement, dated December 31, 2007, amomg@idated Communications Holdings, Inc., as Pe
Guarantor, Consolidated Communications, Inc., Clideted Communications Acquisition Texas, Inc. and
Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc., as Co-Borrowers thnders referred to therein, Wachovia Bank, Matio
Association, as administrative agent, issuing bemdk swingline lender, CoBank, ACB, as syndicatigerd,
General Electric Capital Corporation, as co-documattan agent, The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, as co
documentation agent, and Wachovia Capital Markdt€, as sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cotieeport on Form-K dated December 31, 200°

10.2 Form of Collateral Agreement, dated December 30728y and among Consolidated Communications
Holdings, Inc., Consolidated Communications, I@onsolidated Communications Acquisition Texas,,Inc.
Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc., certain subsidiar@ Consolidated Communications Holdings, Incntded
on the signature pages thereto, in favor of Wach8ank, National Association, as Administrative Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to FA€-K for the period ended December 31, 20(

10.c Form of Guaranty Agreement, dated December 31,,20@de by Consolidated Communications Holdings,
Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Consolidated Cominations Holdings, Inc. identified on the signatpage
thereto, in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Assdicin, as Administrative Agent (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form-K for the period ended December 31, 20C

10.4 Lease Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, betw&€EILL, LLC and Consolidated Market Response,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to F&-4 dated October 26, 200:

10.t Lease Agreement, dated December 31, 2002, betw&€EIL, LLC and lllinois Consolidated Telephone
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@dlEorm (-4 dated October 26, 200:

10.€ Master Lease Agreement, dated February 25, 200&eba General Electric Capital Corporation and TXU
Communications Ventures Company (incorporated Bgreace to Exhibit 10.13 to Form S-4 dated
October 26, 2004

10.6.1 Amendment No. 1 to Master Lease Agreement, datedubey 25, 2002, between General Electric Capital
Corporation and TXU Communications Ventures Compdayed March 18, 2002 (incorporated by refer
to Exhibit 10.14 to Form-4 dated October 26, 200:

10.¢ Amended and Restated Consolidated Communicatiofdings, Inc. Restricted Share Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 7 tonfr&-1 dated July 19, 200=
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*

Exhibit
Number Description
10.¢ Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. 2005d-Gierm Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated
Effective May 5, 2009) (incorporated by referenz&khibit A to the Company’s 2009 Proxy Statement f
the Annual Meeting held on May 5, 200

10.1C Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated July 13, 200&8n8yamong Consolidated Communications Holdings,
Inc., Providence Equity Partners IV L.P. and Prewick Equity Operating Partners IV L.P. (incorpatdig
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Forr-K dated July 17, 2006

10.1r Form of Employment Security Agreement with Robe€urrey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11o.
Form &K dated December 4, 200!

10.17 Form of Employment Security Agreement with certai the Company’s other executive officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to F&-K dated December 4, 200!

10.1¥ Form of Employment Security Agreement with then@@any’s and its subsidiaries vice president and dir
level employees (incorporated by reference to Bkhilh12 to Form 10< for the period ended December
2007).

10.1# Executive Long-Term Incentive Program, as revigkeach 12, 2007 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007

10.1¢ Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan PerformanteISGrant Certificate (incorporated by referenze t
Exhibit 10.2 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007

10.1¢€ Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricteac&tGrant Certificate (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007

1017 Form of 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan Restricteac8tGrant Certificate for Directors (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Forn-K dated March 12, 2007

10.1¢ Description of the Consolidated Communications kad, Inc. Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Form -K dated March 12, 2007

10.1¢ Letter Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by WachBwaak, National Association, and agreed to and
acknowledged by Consolidated Communications Hok’litge., Consolidated Communications, Inc.,
Consolidated Communications Acquisition Texas, &rad North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (formerly known
as Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc.) (incorporatedreference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated MaBdh
2008).

10.2( Letter Agreement dated August 6, 2008 by WachowdakB National Association, and agreed to and
acknowledged by Consolidated Communications Hokllitge., Consolidated Communications, Inc.,
Consolidated Communications Acquisition Texas, &rad North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (formerly known
as Fort Pitt Acquisition Sub Inc.) (incorporatedriejerence to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for theiqer
ended June 30, 200¢

21.1 List of subsidiaries of the Registre

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LL

23.2 Consent of Deloitte & Touché LL

31.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer of Consoltdd Communications Holdings, Inc. pursuant to Rila-
14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1

31.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Consoltgéad Communications Holdings, Inc. pursuant to Ruéa)-
14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and i€hFinancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti@%0,

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z

Compensatory plan or arrangeme
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regygthas duly caus
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usideed, thereunto duly authorized, in the City ddtddon, State of lllinois, ¢
the 8th day of March 2010.

By: /s/ Robert J. Currey

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.

Name: Robert J. Currey

Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipuhe following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature

Title

Date

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ Robert J. Currey

Robert J. Currey

s/ Steven L. Childers

Steven L. Childers

/s/ Richard A. Lumpkin

Richard A. Lumpkir

/s/ Jack W. Blumenstein

Jack W. Blumenstei

/s/ Roger H. Moore

Roger H. Moore

/s/ Maribeth S. Rahe

Maribeth S. Rah

President and Chief Executive Officer
and Director

(Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer

Non-Executive Chairman of the Board
and Director
Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Stockholders and Board of Directors
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Consolidated Communications Holdimgs, ant
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 20092008, and the related consolidated stateméoiseoations, changes
stockholdersequity, and cash flows for each of the three yeatbe period ended December 31, 2009. Our auliitsiacluder
the financial statement schedule listed in the xnakeltem 15(a). These financial statements anddue are the responsibil
of the Companys management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on these financial statements and schedadedo
our audits. The financial statements of GTE Moliloé Texas RSA #17 Limited Partnership (a partngrsh which the
Company has a 17.02% interest), Pennsylvania R§A Bfited Partnership (a partnership in which empany has a 16.6"
interest), and Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Parship (a partnership in which the Company has #728 interes
(collectively the Limited Partnerships) have beewliged by other auditors whose reports have begmshed to us, and ¢
opinion on the consolidated financial statementspfar as it relates to the amounts included ferltimited Partnerships,
based solely on the reports of the other auditorghe consolidated financial statements, the Caompjsainvestment in tt
Limited Partnerships is stated at $49.4 million &¥%b6.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 200%d 2008, and tl
Companys equity in the net income of the Limited Partngrshs stated at $13.2 million, $10.1 million, a&2.3 million fou
each of the three years in the period ended Dece&ih009.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamo(Unite(
States). Those standards require that we plan arfdrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancatafloether the financi
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit sncludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppsrting the amounts a
disclosures in the financial statements. An autlib ancludes assessing the accounting principles wnd the significa
estimates made by management, as well as evaluhgmyerall financial statement presentation. \&kele that our audits a
the reports of other auditors provide a reasonladdés for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repafrtsther auditors, the financial statements refétrio above prese
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidatédancial position of Consolidated Communication®ldings, Inc. &
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the consolidasedtseof their operations and their cash flowsdach of the three years
the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principfdso, in our opinion, th
related financial statement schedule, when consitlér relation to the basic financial statemenketaas a whole, prese
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&tements, on January 1, 2009, the Company eldaitgy method fc
accounting for noncontrolling interests and its moelt for accounting for earnings per share and ocebwer 31, 2008, t
Company changed its method for accounting for ffexts of certain types of regulation

We also audited, in accordance with the standafdeeoPublic Company Accounting Oversight Board i(gleh States
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Iscihternal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2009, based
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrife
Treadway Commission, and our report dated Mar@080, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 8, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of Pennsylvania RSA 6 (1) LimitedtRership:

We have audited the accompanying balance she@&srofsylvania RSA 6 (I) Limited Partnership (thertRarship”)as o
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statsroEoperations, changes in partneapital, and cash flows for eack
the three years in the period ended December 319.2Buch financial statements are not presentedrakgty herein. The
financial statements are the responsibility of Bagtnershigs management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian on thes
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaitepted auditing standards as established biut#ing Standarc
Board (United States) and in accordance with thditiag standards of the Public Company Accountinge®ight Boar
(United States). Those standards require that we ahd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether {
financial statements are free of material misstatgmrhe Partnership is not required to have, remewve engaged to perfol
an audit of its internal control over financial oefing. Our audit included consideration of intdrgantrol over financit
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedtlivaisare appropriate in the circumstances bufardhe purpose of express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnershiternal control over financial reporting. Accorgly, we express no su
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on & tessis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financi
statements, assessing the accounting principles arsé significant estimates made by managementielisas evaluating tt
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presaityf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Partnership
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the resulttsafgerations and its cash flows for each of thieettyears in the peri
ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accignprinciples generally accepted in the Unitede&taf America.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, GA
March 8, 2010
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. and Sulidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended December &
(In thousands except per share amou 2009 2008 2007

Net revenue $ 406,16 $ 418,42 $ 329,24t
Operating expens:
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptixi and

amortization shown separately belc 145,46( 143,56: 107,29(
Selling, general and administrative exper 104,77: 108,76 89,66:
Intangible asset impairme — 6,05( —
Depreciation and amortizatic 85,225 91,67¢ 65,65¢

Operating incom: 70,70¢ 68,36+ 66,63’
Other income (expense
Interest incom 56 367 89:<
Interest expens (57,99) (66,659 (47,350)
Investment incom 25,77( 20,49t 7,03¢
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ — (9,224 (10,327
Other, ne (207) (577) (167)
Income before income taxes and extraordinary 38,33 12,76¢ 16,72«
Income tax expens 12,39¢ 6,63¢ 4,674
Income before extraordinary ite 25,93t 6,127 12,05(
Extraordinary item (net of income tax of $4,1! 7,24(C —
Net income 25,93t 13,36: 12,05(
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenesst 1,03( 863 627
Net income attributable to common stockholc $  24,90¢ $ 12,50« $ 11,42:

Net income per common share attributable to comstoeckholder—

basic:

Income per common share before extraordinary $ 0.84 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4

Extraordinary item per sha — 0.24 —
Net income per common share attributable to comstoeckholder—

basic $ 0.84 $ 0.4z $ 0.4:

Net income per common share attributable to comstockholder—

diluted:

Income per common share before extraordinary $ 0.84 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.4:

Extraordinary item per sha — 0.24 —
Net income per common share attributable to comstockholder—

diluted $ 0.84 $ 0.4z $ 0.4:
Cash dividends per common sh $ 1.5¢ $ 1.5¢F $ 1.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofctiesolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. and Sulidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

(In thousands except share and per share amo 2009 2008
Assets
Current asset:

Cash and equivalen $ 42,75¢ $ 15,47

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $1,796 in 2009 and

$1,908 in 200¢ 42,12t 45,09:

Inventories 6,87¢ 7,482

Deferred income taxe 5,97(C 3,60(

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 6,63¢ 6,931
Total current asse 104,36¢ 78,57¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 377,20( 400,28t
Investment: 98,74¢ 95,65
Goodwill 520,56: 520,56:
Customer lists, ne 102,08¢ 124,24¢
Tradename 13,44¢ 14,291
Deferred debt issuance costs, net and other ¢ 6,63 8,00¢
Total asset $ 1,223,044 $ 1,241,62

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 13,48: $ 12,33¢
Advance billings and customer depo: 20,02 19,10z
Dividends payabli 11,47¢ 11,38¢
Accrued expens 26,26¢ 24,58¢
Current portion of capital lease obligatic 344 922
Current portion of derivative liabilit 6,074 4,44:
Current portion of pension and postretirement biepnéfigations 2,90¢ 2,96(
Total current liabilities 80,577 75,73t
Long-term portion of capital lease obligati — 344
Senior secured lo-term deb 880,00t 880,00(
Deferred income taxe 74,71 58,13¢
Pension and other postretirement obligati 80,29¢ 107,74:
Other lon¢-term liabilities 26,74( 44,38
Total liabilities 1,142,32 1,166,34.

Stockholder' equity:
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,00Gbéares authorized,
29,608,653 and 29,488,408, shares outstanding @eadmber 31, 2009 and

2008, respectivel 29¢€ 29t
Additional paic-in capital 109,74t 129,28«
Retained earning — —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, (35,540 (59,479
Noncontrolling interes 6,21°F 5,18¢

Total stockholdel equity 80,71% 75,28t
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 1,223,04. $ 1,241,62

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdhesolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. and Sulidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in StockholderEquity

Accumulatec

Additional Other Non-
Common Stocl Paid in Retainec  Comprehensiv  controlling
Shares Amount Capital Earnings  Income (loss Interest Total
Balance, January 1, 20! 26,001,87 $ 26C $ 112,49t $ — $ 220z $ 3,695 $ 118,65:
Dividends on common stoc — (30,090 (11,429 — — (41,517
Issuance of common sto 3,319,14: 34 74,37¢ — — — 74,41(
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forfs 126,83«
Non-cash, stoc-based compensatic — 4.03¢ — — — 4,03¢
Purchase and retirement of common st (7,267) — (131) — — — (131)
Tax on restricted stock vestil — 38 — — — 38
Comprehensive incom: — — — —
Net income — — 11,42¢ — 627 12,05(
Recognition of funded status of pension and other
postretirement plans, net of tax of $1,¢ — — — 2,78¢ — 2,78¢
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net »fotk
$(6,139) — — — (10,63¢) — (10,639
Total comprehensive incon 4,197
Balance, December 31, 20 29,440,58 $ 294 $ 160,720 $ — $ (5,65)) $ 4,322 $ 159,68t
Effects of accounting change regarding postretirgme
plan measurement dates pursuant to accounting
guidance
Service cost, interest cost and expected returpiam
assets for October 1, 2007 through December 31,
2007, net of tax of $(8¢ — — (154) — — (154)
Amortization of prior service costs and net loss fo
October 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, net of
tax of $(9) — — (15) 15 — —
Balance, January 1, 20! 29,440,58 $ 294 $ 160,720 $ (169) $ (5,630 $ 432: $ 159,53¢
Dividends on common stoc — (33,14) (12,339 — — (45,47¢)
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forfs 71,46% — — — — — —
Non-cash, stoc-based compensatic 1 1,90( — — — 1,901
Purchase and retirement of common st (23,64¢) — (257) — — — (257)
Tax on restricted stock vestil — (39) — — — (38)
Pension tax adjustme — 97 — — — 97
Comprehensive (loss
Net income — — 12,50 — 86¢ 13,367
Change in prior service cost and net loss, nedobf
$(18,730) — — — (31,76%) — (31,76%)
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net xfotk
$(12,666) — — — (22,079 — (22,079
Total comprehensive lo: (40,47¢)
Balance, December 31, 20 29,488,40 $ 29t $ 129,28 $ — $ (59479 $ 5,18t $ 75,28t
Dividends on common stock — (21,027 (24,909 — — (45,92¢)
Shares issued under employee plan, net of forfeitas 154,75: 1 — — — — 1
Non-cash, stock-based compensation — 1,927 — — — 1,927
Purchase and retirement of common stock (34,507 — (54%) — — — (54%)
Tax on restricted stock vesting — 19¢ — — — 19¢
Pension tax adjustment — 97) — — — 97)
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net income — — 24,90¢ — 1,03(C 25,93¢
Change in prior service cost and net loss, net odx
of $8,345 — — — 14,02: — 14,02
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net ofx:
of $5,707 — — — 9,91 — 9,917
Total comprehensive income 49,87«
Balance, December 31, 2009 29,608,65 $ 29€ $ 109,74t $ — $ (35540 $ 6,21t $ 80,71%
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. and Sulidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December =

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Operating Activities
Net income $ 25,93t $ 13,36 $  12,05(
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to resthcprovided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 85,22% 91,67¢ 65,65¢
Loss on extinguishment of de — 9,22¢ 10,32
Deferred income taxe 57 (12,039 (4,277
Intangible asset impairme — 6,05( —
Extraordinary item, net of te — (7,240 —
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 2,491 — —
Non-cash partnership incon (3,097 (2,056 (339
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,92 1,901 4,03¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,301 1,431 3,12¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivable, n 2,967 (1,097 171
Inventories 60¢ (1,119 (22¢)
Other asset 363 5,08: 5,54¢
Accounts payabl 1,14¢ (5,050 1,25¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (2,629 (7,736 (15,26¢)
Net cash provided by operating activit 116,30° 92,41 82,06¢
Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment, (42,357 (48,027 (33,49Y
Proceeds from the sale of investme 72¢ — 10,62¢
Securities purchase — — (20,625
Acquisition, net of cash acquirt — — (271,78()
Net cash used for investing activiti (41,627 (48,027 (305,279
Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of stc — — 12
Proceeds from lor-term obligation: — 120,00( 760,00(
Payments made on lo-term obligation: — (136,33) (464,000
Repayment of North Pittsburgh Ic-term obligations — — (15,42¢)
Costs paid to issue common st — — (400
Payment of deferred financing co — (240 (8,989
Payment of capital lease obligati (922) (971) —
Repurchase and retirement of common s (545 (257) (137)
Dividends on common stoc (45,926) (45,449 (40,197
Net cash provided by (used for) financing actig (47,397 (63,254) 230,87!
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equiva 27,28 (18,870 7,66¢
Cash and equivalents at beginning of 15,47 34,34 26,67:
Cash and equivalents at end of y $  42,75¢ $ 15,47 $ 34,341
Supplemental disclosure of cash flc
Interest paic $  56,02¢ $ 65,06 $ 44,34
Income taxes pai $  10,99¢ $ 13,54 $  13,97¢
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Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Operations

Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. andwitslly owned subsidiaries, which are collectivebfarred to &
“Consolidated”, the “Company”, “we”, “our” or “ustinless the context otherwise requires, operatelsusinesses under -
name Consolidated Communications. The Company iesiablished rural local exchange company (“RLE@fQviding
communications services to residential and busicastomers in lllinois, Texas and Pennsylvania.hV2i47,235 local acce
lines, an estimated 72,681 Competitive Local Exgea@arrier (“CLEC”)access line equivalents, 100,122 digital subsc
lines (“DSL”) and 23,127 Internet Protocol digitalevision (*IPTV") subscribers at December 31, 2009, the Companysc
wide range of telecommunications services, inclgdiocal and long-distance service, digital telephmervice (“VOIP),
custom calling features, private line services|-dmand highspeed broadband Internet access, IPTV, carriersacsgrvice
network capacity services over our regional fibetionetwork, directory publishing and CLEC calliegrvices. The Compa
also operates a number of complementary non-cosinésses, including telemarketing and order faiiht (“CMR");
telephone services to county jails and state psisequipment sales; and operator services.

Founded in 1894 as the Mattoon Telephone Companyhéygreagrandfather of our current Chairman, Richarc
Lumpkin, we began as one of the nat®riirst independent telephone companies. After regvacquisitions, the Matto
Telephone Company was incorporated as the llli@mesolidated Telephone Company (“ICTCO8)y April 10, 1924. In 199
McLeodUSA acquired ICTC and all related busine$s@s the Lumpkin family. In 2002, Mr. Lumpkin andid private equit
firms, Spectrum Equity and Providence Equity, repased ICTC and several related businesses.

On April 14, 2004, we acquired TXU Communicationsntures Company, or TXUCV, from TXU Corporation. TRV
owned rural telephone operations in Lufkin, Conraed Katy, Texas, which had been operating in thoaekets for ove
90 years. This acquisition approximately tripled #ize of the Company.

On July 27, 2005, we completed an initial publiteahg of our common stock. At the same time, SpeatEquity sold it
entire investment and Providence Equity sold 50%soinvestment. In July 2006, we repurchased #maining shares own
by Providence Equity.

On December 31, 2007, we acquired all of the chpitack of North Pittsburgh Systems, Inc. (“Nortitt$burgh’).
Through its subsidiaries, North Pittsburgh providedsanced communication services to residentiallarginess customers
several counties in western Pennsylvania and geeaCLEC in the Pittsburgh metropolitan area. rEselts of operations f
North Pittsburgh are included in the Comg’s Telephone Operations segment beginning Jany&9a8 and thereafter.

We are a Delaware corporation organized in 2002 arel the successor to businesses engaged in prg
telecommunication services since 1894.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidatio
The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of Consolidated Communications Holdings, &nd its wholl

owned subsidiaries and subsidiaries in which itdnasntrolling financial interest. All significamtercompany transactions ¢
accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplrequire
management to make estimates and assumptionsffibett the reported amounts of assets and liakslitamnd the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effthancial statements, as well as amounts of tevemd expenses during
reporting periods. Actual results could differ froéhose estimates.

Industry Segmen
We operate in two reportable segments: Telephorexaipns and Other Operations.
Discontinuance of Accounting for the Effects oft@ierTypes of Regulatic

Historically, our lllinois and Texas ILEC operat®rollowed the Financial Accounting Standards B&adFASB”)
authoritative guidance for regulated enterpriseadoounting for the effects of certain types ofutagon. This authoritatiy
guidance required the recognition of the econorffieces of rate regulation by recording costs anetarn on investment
such amounts are recovered through rates authdsizeelgulatory authorities. Changes to our businesaever, have impact
the dynamics of our operating environment. In @t half of 2008, we experienced a significantéase in competition in ¢
lllinois and Texas markets primarily due to traalit@l cable competitors offering voice services.oAksffective July 1, 2008, v
made an election to transition from rate of retiorprice cap regulation at the interstate leveldr regulated lllinois and Tex
operations. The conversion to price caps providegifeater pricing flexibility, especially in thedreasingly competitive spec
access segment and in launching new products. iaddlty, in response to customer demand, we lauhaheg own VOIF
service product offering as an alternative to eaditional wireline services. While there have beenmaterial changes in ¢
bundling strategy or in our engser pricing, the pricing structure is transitianfinom being based on the recovery of costs
pricing structure based on market conditions.

Based on these and other factors impacting ournbasj we determined in late 2008 that the applibatof the
authoritative guidance for regulated enterprises m@longer appropriate in the reporting of ouaficial results. As a result,
began to apply the authoritative guidance requii@dthe discontinuance of application of regulat@gcounting. Th
authoritative guidance requires the eliminatiorthaf effects of any actions of regulators that havipusly been recognized
accordance with the authoritative guidance for l&tgd enterprises but that would not have beengrézed by nonregulat
enterprises. Depreciation rates of certain assgtblished by regulatory authorities for our telepd operations subject to
authoritative guidance for regulated enterprisageHastorically included a systematic charge fanogal costs in excess of -
related estimated salvage value on those assstatimg in a net ovedepreciation of those assets over their usefusli@ost
of removal were then appropriately applied agdinist reserve. Upon discontinuance of the authargaguidance for regulat
enterprises, we reversed the impact of recogni@ngpval costs in excess of the related estimatiwdga value, which result
in recording a nomash extraordinary gain of approximately $7.2 willinet of taxes of approximately $4.2 milliontlire thre:
months ended December 31, 2008. Our Pennsylvai@ lreviously discontinued the application of thharitative guidanc
for regulated enterprises prior to our acquisitbMNorth Pittsburgh, and, as a result, was notcééfe by the change in 2008.

Cash equivalents

We consider all highly liquid shoterm investments purchased with a maturity of thmeenths or less to be c
equivalents. Cash equivalents are carried at edsth approximates fair value.
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Investment:

If the Company can exercise significant influengerahe operations and financial policies of ainliated company, eve
without control, the investment in the affiliateonepany is accounted for using the equity methothdfCompany does not h:
control and also cannot exercise significant inflees the investment in the affiliated company iscanted for using the ce
method.

To determine whether an investment is impaired,Gbenpany monitors and evaluates the financial perdmce of eac
business in which it invests and compares the ayryalue of the investment to quoted market prigeavailable) or the fa
value of similar investments. In certain circumses) fair value is based on traditional valuatiomdeds utilizing a multiple «
cash flows. When circumstances indicate there bas ln other-thatemporary decline in the fair value of the investinghe
Company records the decline in value as a realimpdirment loss and a reduction in the cost ofitlrestment.

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful acte

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounte tluthe Company from normal activities. A receleab determined
be past due when the amount is overdue based gratment terms with the customer. In certain cirstamces, the Compa
requires deposits from customers to mitigate pakrisk associated with receivables. The Compaayntains an allowance 1
doubtful accounts to reflect managemsnbest estimate of probable losses inherent inatteounts receivable balar
Management determines the allowance for doubtfubacts based on known troubled accounts, histogxjpérience, and ott
currently available evidence. Accounts receivabéeveritten off when management determines theymatibe collected.

Inventories

Inventories consist mainly of copper and fiber eatblat will be used for network expansion and uggsa and materic
and equipment used to maintain and install teleptgystems. Inventories are stated at the loweosf ar market using tl
average cost method.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

In accordance with the applicable guidance on attiogi for goodwill and other intangible assets, dwidl and intangibli
assets that have indefinite useful lives are natréimed but rather are tested at least annuallynfigrairment. Tradenames h:
been determined to have indefinite lives; thus they not amortized but are tested annually for impant using discounts
cash flows based on a relief from royalty methoe &Valuate the carrying value of goodwill in thertb quarter of each ye
and compare the carrying value of each reportirigtarits fair value to determine whether or ngiaential impairment exis
Our analysis conducted during the fourth quarteP@d9 determined that there was no impairment ofassets. In 2008, \
recorded an impairment charge and reduced goody#6.1 million for CMR, which is part of the Oth@perations segment.

The accounting guidance applicable to intangibetsalso provides that assets that have finigs Ishould be amortiz
over their useful lives. Customer lists are amedinn a straighline basis over their estimated useful lives (raggirom 5 t(
13 years) based upon our historical experience euifiomer attrition. In accordance with the apfieayuidance relating to t
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, welaite the potential impairment of finitered acquired intangible assets w
impairment indicators exist. If the carrying valiseno longer recoverable based upon the undiscduuatare cash flows of tl
asset, an impairment equal to the difference betilee carrying amount and the fair value of theessrecognized.
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Fair Values of Financial Instrumen
We use the following methods in estimating fairueatlisclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and equivalents, sheetim investments, accounts receivable, financiaivdgves and accounts payable: The carr
amount reported in the Consolidated Balance Slaggtoximates fair value.

Long-term debt: Because our loterm debt reprices monthly, the carrying amoundwf borrowings under our secured cr
facility approximates fair value.

Derivatives and Hedging Activiti

Derivative instruments are accounted for in accocdawith the FASB applicable guidance on accountorgderivative
instruments and hedgingctivity. This guidance provides comprehensive abpdsistent standards for the recognition
measurement of derivative and hedging activitiealdo requires that derivatives be recorded orctimsolidated balance sh
at fair value and establishes criteria for hedgeshanges in fair values of assets, liabilitiesfiom commitments; hedges
variable cash flows of forecasted transactions;lertbes of foreign currency exposures of net imvests in foreign operatior
The Company currently uses derivatives only to leetthg variable cash flows of future interest payts@m longterm debt. T
the extent a derivative qualifies as a cash flowglee the gain or loss associated with the effegbioion is recorded as
component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incfiross). Changes in the fair value of derivativiest tdo not meet tl
criteria for hedge accounting are recognized incthresolidated statements of operations. When a&ndst rate swap agreem
terminates, any resulting gain or loss is recoghiaeer the shorter of the remaining original terfrine@ hedging instrument
the remaining life of the underlying debt obligati®e do not anticipate any nonperformance by auynterparty.

Property, plant and equipme

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at ddst. costs of additions, replacements, and maj@rorements a
capitalized, while repairs and maintenance aregdthto expense as incurred. Depreciation is deteanbased upon the assets’
estimated useful lives using either the group 6 method.

The group method is used for depreciable assefsated to providing regulated telecommunicatiorviees, including th
majority of the network and outside plant facikitiéd depreciation rate for each asset group isldped based on the grosp’
average useful life. This method requires perigdidgsion of depreciation rates. When an individasset is sold or retired, 1
difference between the proceeds, if any, and tls abthe asset is charged or credited to accueulildépreciation, witho
recognition of a gain or loss.

The unit method is primarily used for buildingsrriture, fixtures, and other support assets. Eadetais depreciated

the straightine basis over its estimated useful life. Wheniradividual asset is sold or retired, the cost badithe asset ai
related accumulated depreciation are removed frenatcounts and any associated gain or loss igmeeul.
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Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings 18-40
Network and outside plant facilitie 3-50
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-15
Capital lease 11

Employmer-Related Benefits

Employmentrelated benefits associated with pensions and gqtosiment healthcare are expensed as actu:
determined. The recognition of expense is impabie@stimates made by management, such as discatast used to val
certain liabilities, investment rates of returngan assets, increases in future wage amountsfutumg healthcare costs. We
third-party specialists to assist us in approplyateeasuring the expense and liabilities associat#ld employmentelate(
benefits.

We determine our actuarial assumptions for the iparend postretirement plans, after consultatioth wur actuaries, ¢
December 31 of each year to calculate liabilityoinfation as of that date and pension and postneingé expense for t
following year. The discount rate assumption isedeined based on a spot yield curve that includesdé that are rat
Corporate AA- or higher with maturities that matotpected benefit payments under the plan.

The expected lonterm rate of return on plan assets reflects prefeceturns for the investment mix that have |
determined to meet the plans’ investment objectifée expected lonterm rate of return on plan assets is selecteckingd
into account the expected weighted averages dhtlestments of the assets, the fact that the daets are actively manage!
mitigate downside risks, the historical performantéhe market in general and the historical peni@ance of the retirement pl
assets over the past ten years.

Revenue recognitio

Revenue is generally recognized when evidence ofamangement exists, the earnings process is coenpée
collectability is reasonably assured. Marketingeiméves, including bundle discounts, are recognaedevenue reductions
the period the service is provided.

Local calling services, enhanced calling featuspgcial access circuits, long-distance fite calling plans, and most d
services are billed to engsers in advance. Billed but unearned revenue fisrréel and recorded in advance billings
customer deposits.

Revenues for usage-based services, such as petentimgdistance service and access charges billed to telepyhon
carriers for originating and terminating lodistance calls on our network, are billed in arse&¥e recognize revenue fr
these services in the period the services are reddather than billed. Earned but unbilled ushgsed services are recorde
accounts receivable.

Subsidies, including universal service revenues,gavernmensponsored support to subsidize services in mostigl,
high-cost areas. These revenues typically are basedformation provided by the Company and are caledlaby thi
administering government agency. Subsidies aregrézed in the period the service is provided. Thierea reasonak
possibility that out of period subsidy adjustmemizy be recorded in the future, but they are ardteigh to be immaterial to ¢
results of operation and financial position.

Revenues from operator services, paging servicdsCMR are recognized monthly as services are peavidelephor
equipment revenues generated from retail chanmeleeaorded at the point of sale. Telecommunicat&ystems and structu
cabling project revenues are recognized when tbeqris completed and billed. Maintenance servaresprovided on both
contract and time and material basis and are redonhen the service is provided. Print advertisind publishing revenues .
recognized ratably over the life of the relateadiory, generally 12 months.
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The Company reports taxes imposed by governmeathbaties on revenuproducing transactions between the Com
and our customers that are within the scope offA8B’s authoritative guidance on how taxes collectechfrustomers ar
remitted to governmental authorities should be gored in the income statement in the consolidatezh€ial statements or
net basis.

Advertising cost

The costs of advertising are charged to expensacasred. Advertising expenses totaled $1.7 millia.3 million an
$1.9 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Income taxe:

We and our wholly owned subsidiaries file a corgatied federal income tax return. Our majodtyned subsidiary, Ee
Texas Fiber Line Incorporated (“ETFLfjles a separate federal income tax return. Sowrte §hcome tax returns are filed ¢
consolidated basis; others are filed on a sepérg# entity basis. Federal and state income taemrse or benefit is allocatec
each subsidiary based on separately determinefléaxecome or loss.

Amounts in the financial statements related to ineaaxes are calculated in accordance with the FASBthoritativ
guidance on accounting for income taxes. We algdyajhe FASBS authoritative guidance on accounting for uncetyain
income taxes to account for uncertainty in incorages recognized in our financial statements in @arawe with th
authoritative guidance on accounting for incomesa¥or more information, please see Note 18.

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempodiferences between assets and liabilities reizeghfor financie
reporting purposes and assets and liabilities ne@izedg for tax purposes, as well as for operatings land tax crec
carryforwards. Deferred income tax assets andliligsi are measured using tax rates expected tly &ppaxable income in tl
years in which those temporary differences are eegeto be recovered or settled. The Company recanchluation allowan
for deferred income tax assets when, in the opiniomanagement, it is more likely than not thatedlefd tax assets will not
realized.

Provisions for federal and state income taxes aleutated on reported pretax earnings based ormutax law and al
may include, in the current period, the cumulag¥fect of any changes in tax rates from those tseatbtermine deferred t
assets and liabilities. Such provisions may diffem the amounts currently receivable or payableabse certain items
income and expense are recognized in one timegésicfinancial reporting purposes and in anottegriicome tax purpose
Significant judgment is required in determining ante tax provisions and evaluating tax positionserE¥ the Compar
believes its tax positions are fully supportabtewill establish reserves for income tax when itmisre likely than not the
remain income tax contingencies that will be chrjkesd and possibly disallowed. The consolidatedptavision and relate
accruals include the impact of such reasonablymeséid losses. To the extent the probable tax owdsoofi these matte
change, those changes will alter the income taxigiom in the period in which such determinatiomiade.

Stock-based compensation

We maintain one stockased compensation plan. The plan provides fogthet of awards in the form of stock optic
stock appreciation rights, stock grants, stock graints and other equityased awards to eligible directors and employee
account for stock-based compensation under thdcapjg accounting guidance which requires all stoaked payments
employees, including grants of employee stock mgtido be recognized in the financial statemensedban their fair value
We recognized stock-based compensation expensk®hdllion in 2009 and 2008, and $4.0 million QX .
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Earnings per Common Sha

We adopted the FASB’authoritative guidance on the treatment of padiing securities in the calculation of earnings
share on January 1, 2009, and began using thelags-method to compute basic and diluted earrprgshare for all perioc
presented. To the extent that stock-based compensatantidilutive, it is excluded from the calculation ofudied earnings pe
share.

Noncontrolling Interes

ETFL is a joint venture owned 63% by the Compangt 8% by Eastex Celco. ETFL provides connectivitycértain
customers within Texas over a fiber optic transpettvork.

Reclassification:

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassifiezbhform to the current yearpresentation. These reclassifications
no effect on total assets, total stockholders gqtotal revenue, income from operations or nedine.

Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncem

In June 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standbaholdate No. 2009-01Generally Accepted Accounting Principl
which establishes the FASB Accounting Standardsfi@éation (the “Codification”)as the official single source of authoritat
U.S. GAAP. All existing accounting standards arpesseded. All other accounting guidance not induilethe Codificatior
will be considered noauthoritative. The Codification also includes allevant SEC guidance organized using the sameat
structure in separate sections within the Codificat

Following the Codification, the FASB will not issuew standards in the form of Statements, FASBf $asitions o
Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts. Insteadilitssue Accounting Standards Updates (“ASWihich will serve to updat
the Codification, provide background informatioroabthe guidance and provide the basis for conahsson the changes to t
Codification.

The Codification is not intended to change GAAPt buwill change the way GAAP is organized and prasd. The
Codification was effective for our third quarter@0financial statements, and the principal imparcbor financial statements
limited to disclosures as all future referencesatithoritative accounting literature will be refeced in accordance with tl
Cadification.

In September 2006, the FASB issued updated auttivdtguidance on employers’ accounting for defibedefit pensiol
and other postretirement plans. This guidance regwn entity to (a) recognize in its statemerftnaincial position an asset
an obligation for a defined-benefit postretirempglain’s funded status, (b) measure a defined-bepeéitretirement plas’asset
and obligations that determine its funded statusfabe end of the employerfiscal year, and (c) recognize changes in
funded status of a defindaknefit postretirement plan in comprehensive incamhe year in which the changes occur.
adopted the recognition and related disclosureigias of this guidance effective December 31, 200@er combining ou
Texas and lllinois pension plans on December 3072@e adopted the measurement date provisionstig#elanuary 1, 20C
for pension and postretirement plans with measunérdates other than December 31, resulting in @ne@se to openir
accumulated deficit on January 1, 2008, of $0.Zignilnet of tax of $0.1 million.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued authoritativelguce on the presentation of noncontrolling intsrés consolidate
financial statements. This guidance clarifies thaioncontrolling interest in a consolidated sulasidishould be reported
equity in the consolidated financial statementsl$b requires consolidated net income to inclimeamounts attributable
both the parent and the noncontrolling interestiéinl We adopted this guidance effective JanuaB009 on a retrospecti
basis. As a result, equity increased by approxitye$8.2 million for the reclassification of noncoolling interests as !
December 31, 2008, and net income increased byrilli®n and $0.6 million for the years ended Detem31, 2008 ar
2007, respectively.

In December 2007, the FASB revised the authorigatiuidance for business combinations. This guidastablishe
principles and requirements for how the acquirea inusiness combination recognizes and measuitsfinancial statemer
the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilitiesstaned and any narontrolling interest in the acquiree. This guide
significantly changes the accounting for businesshinations in a number of areas, including thatiment of continge
consideration, preacquisition contingencies, tretisa costs and restructuring costs. In additiondar the new guidanc
changes in an acquired entiydeferred tax assets and uncertain tax positiftesthe measurement period will impact ince
tax expense. This guidance was effective for figealrs beginning on or after December 15, 2008raqdires the immedie
expensing of acquisition related costs associatéd acquisitions completed after December 31, 2088option of thi
guidance on January 1, 2009 had no impact on tmep@ny’s results of operations and financial position. ldeer, we expe
this guidance will affect acquisitions made thet@afthough the impact will depend upon the size mature of the acquisitic
In addition, subsequent to the adoption, $5.7 amillof the liability for unrecognized tax benefiisalissed in Note 18, relate
tax positions of acquired entities taken priorheit acquisition by us. Liabilities settled for $es amounts will affect the incol
tax expense in the period of reversal.

In March 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guaaaon disclosures about derivative instrumentshatltjing activitie:
This guidance addresses enhanced disclosures oongefa) the manner in which an entity uses déirrea (and the reason:
uses them), (b) the manner in which derivatives r@tated hedged items are accounted for and (cgffleets that derivativi
and related hedged items have on an estifijiancial position, financial performance, angtcdlows. This guidance w
effective for financial statements issued for flggsars and interim periods beginning on or aftew&mber 15, 2008. Adopti
of this guidance on January 1, 2009 did not haweaterial impact on our financial position or resuwf operations althougr
did impact our disclosures (see Note 13).

In June 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidanoie the treatment of participating securitiesha talculation ¢
earnings per share (“EPS”). This guidance addresgesther instruments granted in shhesed payment transactions
participating securities prior to vesting and, #fere, need to be included in the earnings allooati computing EPS under
two-class method. This guidance was effective for figemrs beginning on or after December 15, 2008ophidn of thi:
guidance on January 1, 2009 on a retrospectives hasill periods presented did not have a matariphct on our results
operations and financial position, or on basiciarted earnings per share.

In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance on giogers’ disclosures about postretirement benefit plan as3éi:
guidance requires additional disclosures aboutts$sdd in an employes’defined benefit pension or other postretiremdant,
primarily related to categories and fair value nueasients of plan assets. This guidance becamedie&dor us as of Decemk
31, 2009, and because this guidance applies origdncial statement disclosures, the adoptiomdidhave a material effect
our consolidated financial statements (See Note 15)
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In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidaooeesubsequent events. This guidance establismesajestandards
accounting for and disclosure of events that oedtar the balance sheet date but before finantaééments are issued or
available to be issued. This guidance is effediventerim or annual financial periods ending aflene 15, 2009. Adoption
this guidance did not have an impact on our codateid results of operations or financial positie@e(Note 25).

In August 2009, the FASB updated its authoritatijzedance on fair value measurements and disclostites updat
provides amendments to reduce potential ambiguitiniancial reporting when measuring the fair vatiddiabilities. Amon
other provisions, this update provides clarificatithat in circumstances in which a quoted pricamnactive market for tl
identical liability is not available, a reportingitay is required to measure fair value using omenmre of the valuatic
techniques described in ASC Update 2009-05. ASCaltépd00995 became effective for our annual financial staets for th
year ended December 31, 2009. Adoption of thisanuse did not have an impact on our consolidatedlteesf operations «
financial position.

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance thatinegjueporting entities to make new disclosuresuaibecurring a
nonrecurring fairvalue measurements including significant transfet® and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair va
measurements and information on purchases, sakmgrices, and settlements on a gross basis iedbeciliation of Level
fair value measurements. The guidance is effedtivennual reporting periods beginning after Decenith, 2009, except f
Level 3 reconciliation disclosures that are effexfior annual periods beginning after December2030. We do not expect |
adoption of this guidance to have a material impacbur consolidated financial statements.

3. Acquisition

On December 31, 2007, we acquired all of the chpttack of North Pittsburgh. North Pittsburghassets consist o
RLEC that serves portions of Allegheny, ArmstroBgtler, and Westmoreland counties in western Pdnasia; a CLEC th:
serves small to midized businesses in Pittsburgh and its surrounslilgirbs as well as in Butler County; an InterneviSe
Provider that furnishes broadband services in wedtennsylvania; and minority interests in threllutar partnerships and o
competitive access provider. The results of openatfor North Pittsburgh are included in the ConyparTelephone Operatic
segment beginning January 1, 2008 and thereafter.

We accounted for the North Pittsburgh acquisitieg the purchase method of accounting. Accordintilg financie
statements reflect the allocation of the total pase price to the net tangible and intangible assequired based on tt
respective fair values. At the time of the acqigsit 80% of the shares of North Pittsburgh conwkitdo the right to recei
$25.00 per share in cash; each of the remainingeshanverted into the right to receive 1.1061%ares of common stock
the Company, or approximately 3.3 million sharestotk valued at approximately $74.4 million, neissuance fees. The tc
purchase price, including acquisition costs andafied32.9 million of cash acquired, was allocatedoading to the followin
table, which summarizes the fair values of the N@ittsburgh assets acquired and liabilities assume

(In thousands

Current assel $ 17,72¢
Property, plant and equipme 116,30¢
Customer lists 49,00(
Goodwill 214,56
Investments and other ass 53,36(
Liabilities assumei (103,93)
Net purchase pric $ 347,02
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Upon finalization of the purchase price allocatiadjustments of approximately $0.2 million were maa goodwill durin:
the year ended December 31, 2008. The adjustmemisist of approximately $0.4 million in additionatquisition cos
incurred, a $0.3 million adjustment to the cagitalse liability and ($0.6) million in liabilitiessaumed.

The aggregate purchase price was through a negtiéd and was influenced by our assessment ofahe of the overe
North Pittsburgh business. The significant goodwdlue reflects our view that the North Pittsbutglsiness could gener
strong cash flow and sales and earnings followhsy dcquisition. All of the goodwill recorded as tpaf this acquisition i
allocated to the Telephone Operations segmentctlismer list is being amortized over its estimatseiful life of five year:
The goodwill and other intangibles associated Witk acquisition were not deductible for tax pugms

Because the acquisition occurred on December 317,20ur consolidated financial statements prioddouary 1, 2008 «
not include the results of operations for Northtdpitirgh. Unaudited pro forma results of operatidata for the year end
December 31, 2007 as if the acquisition had ocdwatéhe beginning of the period presented is bevis:

December 3:
(in thousands, except per share amou 2007
Total revenue $ 42491
Income from operatior 59,75:
Pro forma net incom 5,59
Income per shar— basic 0.1¢
Income per shar— diluted 0.1¢

4. Affiliated Transactions

Richard A. Lumpkin, norexecutive Chairman of the Board, together withfamily, beneficially owns 49.7% of Agrac
Inc. (“Agracel”), a real estate investment compavly.. Lumpkin also is a director of Agracel.

Agracel is the sole managing member and 50% owhdrAGEL LLC (“LATEL”). Mr. Lumpkin directly owns th
remaining 50% of LATEL. The Company leases certdfite and warehouse space from LATEL. The tripé¢ leases requir
us to pay substantially all expenses associatddgeiheral maintenance and repair, utilities, insceaand taxes associated \
the leased facilities. We recognized rent experisglat million in 2009, 2008 and 2007 in connectiwith these operatir
leases. There was no associated lease payablebdalatstanding at December 31, 2009 or 2008. Tdse=feexpire in July 20
but contain provisions for automatic renewal of-gear terms through 2013.

Agracel is the sole managing member and 66.7% owheMACC, LLC (“MACC"). Mr. Lumpkin, together with h
family, owns the remainder of MACC. The Companysksacertain office space from MACC. We recognizsd expense in tl
amount of $0.2 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007 immection with this lease, which expires in Augu3t2.

Mr. Lumpkin, together with members of his familyerteficially owns 100% of SKL Investment Group, LGKL"). The
Company charged SKL $45 thousand in 2009, 2008 200Qi¥, respectively, for use of office space, coramyttelephor
service, and other office-related services.
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Mr. Lumpkin also has an ownership interest in Aitad-lllinois Bancshares, Inc. (“First Mid-lllinof$, which provides th
Company with general banking services, includingpaditory, disbursement, and payroll accounts artdereent pla
administrative services, on terms comparable teedhavailable to other large business accounts. Qdmpany provide
telecommunications products and services to Firgt-IMnois based upon standard prices for strategisifess custome
Following is a summary of the transactions betweeand First Mid-lllinois for the years ended Debem31:

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Fees charged from First M-lllinois for:
Banking service $ 10 $ 11 $ 10
401K plan administratio 11 65 81
Interest income earned on deposits at First-lllinois 6 48 174
Fees charged to first M-lllinois for telecommunication servict 45€ 482 465

In 2008 and 2007, the Checkley Agency, a wholly edvimsurance brokerage subsidiary of First Mideis, receivel
approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million, respeely, in commissions relating to insurance arsk nmanagement servic
provided to the Company. We ceased using the Cagddency after 2008.

5. Prepaid and other current assets

Prepaid and other current assets at December sdodiows:

(in thousands 2009 2008

Prepaid expenst $ 5,86¢€ $ 5,91:
Deferred charge 71¢ 981
Other current asse 55 37
Total $ 6,63¢ $ 6,931

6. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment at December 31 afellass:

(in thousands 2009 2008
Land and building: $ 66,70( $ 65,84(
Network and outside plant facilitie 833,87 808,88t
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 80,31t 83,88¢
Assets under capital lea 5,14¢ 5,14¢
Less: accumulated depreciati (617,14) (574,01)
368,89 389,74t
Construction in progres 8,30z 10,54(
Totals $  377,20( $ 400,28t

Depreciation expense totaled $63.1 million, $69ifion and $52.8 million in 2009, 2008 and 2007spectively.

Prior to our discontinuance of the application e fwuthoritative guidance on accounting for theaff of certain types
regulation on December 31, 2008 (See Note 2), wegrized depreciation expenses for our regulateghliene operatiol
using rates and lives approved by the state remsldor regulatory reporting purposes. Upon thecatisinuance of tt
application of this authoritative guidance, we sed the useful lives on a prospective basis toifdas to a nonregulate:
entity.

F-17




Table of Contents

7. Investments

Investments at December 31 are as follows:

(in thousands 2009 2008
Cash surrender value of life insurance poli $ 1,79i $ 1,77¢
Cost method investment
GTE Mobilnet of South Texas Limited PartnershiB{®46) 21,45( 21,45(
Pittsburgh SMSA Limited Partnership (3.60 22,95( 22,95(
CoBank, ACB Stocl 2,917 2,651
Other 45 10
Equity method investment
GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #17 Limited PartnersHif.02% interest 19,08( 17,11¢
Pennsylvania RSA 6(l) Limited Partnership (16.6728%rest) 7,301 7,27¢
Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited Partnership (23.6iffierest) 23,04¢ 22,267
Boulevard Communications, LLP (50% intere 15¢ 15¢
Total $ 98,74¢ $ 95,657

CoBank is a cooperative bank owned by its custom@naually, CoBank distributes patronage in tharfasf cash an
stock in the cooperative based on the Compmaaytstanding loan balance with CoBank, who hatitiomally been a significa
lender in the Compang’credit facility. The investment in CoBank reprasethe accumulation of the equity patronage pg
CoBank to the Company.

We own 2.34% of GTE Mobilnet of South Texas Limitedrtnership (the “Mobilnet South Partnershiglhe princips
activity of the Mobilnet South Partnership is pming cellular service in the Houston, Galvestond &eaumont, Texi
metropolitan areas. We also own 3.60% of Pittsb 8NtSA Limited Partnership (“Pittsburgh SMSAWhich provides cellul:
service in and around the Pittsburgh metropolita@.aBecause of our limited influence over thesénpaships, we use the ¢
method to account for both of these investments20@9 and 2008, we received cash distributions ftbese partnershi
totaling $12.0 million and $9.7 million, respectiye

We also own 17.02% of GTE Mobilnet of Texas RSA #1mited Partnership (“RSA 17")16.6725% of Pennsylvar
RSA 6(l) Limited Partnership (“RSA 6(1)"), and 23% of Pennsylvania RSA 6(ll) Limited PartnershiflrBA 6(I1)"). RSA
#17 provides cellular service to a limited ruraain Texas. RSA 6(1) and RSA 6(ll) provides celfudervice in and around «
Pennsylvania service territory. In addition, we diavs50% ownership interest in Boulevard Commuraeoati LLP, a competitiy
access provider in western Pennsylvania. Becaudeawe some influence over the operating and firsdupdlicies of these fo
entities, we account for the investments usingettpeity method. In 2009 and 2008, we received casthittltions from thes
partnerships totaling $10.4 million and $7.9 milljoespectively.
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Selective summarized financial information for thésvestments at December 31 was as follows:

(in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Total revenue $ 236,83 $ 212,49¢ $ 180,41:
Income from operatior 65,56¢ 50,47¢ 41,68:
Income before taxe 66,83 50,47¢ 42,68(
Net income 66,50! 50,61¢ 42,68(
Current assel 47,89¢ 33,58¢ 31,04¢
Non-current assel 76,90¢ 74,52 64,17:
Current liabilities 11,03t 8,937 8,86¢
Non-current liabilities 623 567 46¢
Partnership equit 113,26( 98,60: 85,88t

8. Fair Value Measurements

The Companys derivative instruments related to interest ratepsagreements are required to be measured atalaie ol
a recurring basis. The fair values of the interatt swaps are determined using an internal valuatiodel which relies on t
expected LIBOR based yield curve and estimates aofnterparty and Consolidated’s nparformance risk as the m
significant inputs. Because each of these inputsdinectly observable or can be corroborated byeolable market data,
have categorized these interest rate swaps as Ravighin the fair value hierarchy.

The Companys net liabilities measured at fair value on a reogr basis subject to disclosure requirement
December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date U

Quoted Price Significant
In Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservabl
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Description December 31, 20( (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Interest rate sway $ 32,17¢ $ — $ 32,17¢ $ —

The following table presents our net liabilities asered at fair value on a recurring basis usingifsignt unobservab
inputs (Level 3) as defined in the applicable actimg guidance at December 31, 2008:

Fair Value

Measurement
Using Significan

Unobservable

(In thousands Inputs (Level 3
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 47,90¢
Settlement: (14,85
Unrealized gain included in earnin (62
Unrealized gain included in other comprehensivetne from basis swe (1,367
Unrealized loss included in other comprehensivernme 5,69z
Transfers out of Level (37,326
Balance at December 31, 2C $ —
Gain arising from ineffectiveness included in iestrexpens $ 107
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The change in the fair value of the derivativeprisnarily a result of a change in market expectatifor future intere
rates.

We have not elected the fair value option for ahgur financial assets or liabilities. The carryimglue of other financi
instruments, including cash, accounts receivalidepants payable and accrued liabilities approxinfatevalue due to the
short maturities or variablete nature of the respective balances. The foligwable presents the other financial instrurr
that are not carried at fair value but which reguiair value disclosure as of December 31, 20092208.

As of December 31, 200 As of December 31, 20(
(In thousands Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Valu Fair Value
Investments, equity bas $ 49,58¢ na $ 46,817 n/e
Investments, at co $ 47,36: na $ 47,06 n/e
Long-term debi $ 880,00 $ 880,000 $ 880,00( $ 880,00(

The Companys investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008 acmbdmit under both the equity and cost methods si
of minority positions in various cellular telepholiraited partnerships. These investments are rewbting either the equity
cost methods, and it is not practical to estimdtgravalue for these non-publicly traded entities.

Our longterm debt allows us to select a one month LIBORicam option, which we have elected. As such,fdievalue
of this debt approximates its carrying value.

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with the applicable accounting guidargoodwill and tradenames are not amortized baitsabject t
impairment testing—no less than annually or moegdiently if circumstances indicate potential imesint.

In 2008 and the preceding years, we consideredeparting units to be the Telephone Operationsisesvin our lllinoi
ILEC territory, Telephone Operations services in dexas ILEC territories, Telephone Operationsisessin our Pennsylvar
ILEC territory, Pennsylvania CLEC Operations andheaf the companies in our Other Operations Segnvenith include
Prison Systems, Business Systems, Operator Seafice€EMR.

Beginning in 2009, after undergoing an internablegntity restructuring and completing the finages of the integratis
of our Texas, lllinois and Pennsylvania operatioms,reevaluated our reporting units based on how ournassi is current
being managed. Segment management evaluates thatiopg of the telephone operations segment onnactidlated bas
rather than at a geographic level. In general, ycbdnanagers and cost managers are responsibiadoaging costs a
services across territories rather than treatirey téhritories as separate business units. As dtrebuhe integration, tt
operations of our lllinois, Texas and Pennsylvaniaperties can no longer be easily separated. Togas&tions share netwt
operations monitoring, call routing, remittance sttumer service, billing systems and research angldement costs.
addition, the Pennsylvania territories receiverthi@eo programming from a video headed located in the lllinois territory a
all of the networks provide redundancy. As suclsubstantial portion of the assets could not be swdividually withou
incurring substantial cost to separate procesygsteras and technologies. As a result, beginnir2pdo, we have combined
Telephone Operations of our lllinois, Texas andrRgtvania territories and our Pennsylvania CLECrapens into a sing
reporting unit, Telephone Operations. Had the iidlial telephone operations territories been aggeegevhen goodwill we
tested in 2008, the results would not have changed.
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We complete our 2009 annual impairment test relyingooth a discounted cash flow valuation techniguel to a less
extent, a market approach. The discount rate, gatesth and profitability assumptions are mateaissumptions utilized in ¢
discounted cash flow model. The discount rate isafier-tax, weighted-average cost of capital (“WALCrhe WACC it
calculated based on observable market data. Sortésafata (such as the risk free or treasury aatkthe pretax cost of de
are based on the market data at a point in timeiQtata (such as beta and the equity risk premauembased upon market ¢
over time. Sales growth rates and profitabilityumsptions are aligned with our lorigrm strategic planning process and re
the best estimate of future results based on falirimation available to us at the assessment date.

We also evaluated the carrying value of our repgrtinits using a markétased approach. In applying this methodol
we looked at recent transactions involving othanparable RLECs and the market multiples being paliative to enterpris
value. This approach confirmed the indicative failues indicated under the discounted cash flowasuh.

The impairment testing in 2009 indicated no impa&intof goodwill. In 2008, our annual impairmenttitgg determine
that goodwill was impaired in our CMR reporting uwiithin the Other Operations segment because d#ddine in fair valu
due to underperformance of the business unit. Aesalt, we recorded an impairment charge of $6llamiin 2008. Testing ¢
goodwill in 2007 resulted in no impairment of goadlilw

The following table presents the carrying amourgaddwill by segment:

Telephone Other
(In thousands Operations Operations Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 519,35 $ 7,08 $ 526,43¢
Adjustment to purchase of North Pittsbui 17z — 17z
Impairment — (6,050 (6,050
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 519,52 $ 1,034 $ 520,56.
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 519,52 $ 1,034 $ 520,56.

Our most valuable tradename is the federally regist mark CONSOLIDATED, which is used in assocratiath ou
telephone communication services and is a desigm@flocking circles. The Comparsytorporate branding strategy lever:
a CONSOLIDATED naming structure. All of the Compasipusiness units and several of our products awites incorporat
the CONSOLIDATED name. These tradenames are initidfinrenewable intangibles. The carrying valuettod tradenami
was $13.4 million at December 31, 2009 and $14IBomiat December 31, 2008. For the years endece®éer 31, 2009 al
2008, we completed our annual impairment test usiisgounted cash flows based on a relief from tgyatethod an
determined that there was no impairment of ourenadgnes. However, as part of the sale of CMR (sde Rl), we agreed
allow the buyer to use the name Consolidated MaRextponse. As a result, we reduced the value ofrétenames by t
amount which had previously been allocated to CMR.

The Companys customer lists consist of an established baseusfomers that subscribe to its services. The icay
amount of customer lists at December 31 is asvalio

Telephone Operatior Other Operation
(In thousands 2009 2008 2009 2008
Gross carrying amoul $ 193,12 $ 193,12 $ 11,71: $ 12,52+
Less: accumulated amortizati (92,35§) (70,660) (10,390 (10,739
Net carrying amour $ 100,76t $ 122,46¢ $ 1,327 $ 1,78¢
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Amortization associated with customer lists totaggmproximately $22.2 million in 2009 and 2008, &i®.9 million ir
2007. The weighteaverage remaining period over which customer hstsbeing amortized is 3.3 years. The estimatade
amortization expense is as follows:

(in thousands

2010 $ 22,13¢
2011 22,13¢
2012 22,13¢
2013 8,32:
2014 8,32
2015 8,32
2016 8,32:
2017 2,37¢
Total $ 102,08t

10. Deferred Debt Issuance Costs, Net and Other Asts

Deferred financing costs, net and other assetee¢mber 31 are as follows:

(in thousands 2009 2008

Deferred debt issuance costs, $ 6,46/ $ 7,76
Other asset 16¢ 24C
Total $ 6,637 $ 8,00¢

Deferred debt issuance costs are subject to aratoiiz Remaining deferred debt issuance costs & iB@lion related t
our secured credit facility will be amortized wilig a method which approximates the effective rege method over tl
remaining life of 5 years, resulting in amortizatiexpense of $1.3 million yearly unless the fagikt extinguished earlier.

11. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December 31 are as follows:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Salaries and employee bene $ 11,727 $ 9,45:%
Taxes payabl 7,76¢€ 6,00
Accrued interes 1,177 78t
Other accrued expens 5,59¢ 8,342
Totals $ 26,26¢ $ 24,58¢
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12. Debt

Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the fofig:

(In thousands 2009 2008
Senior secured credit facili— revolving loan $ = $ =
Senior secured credit facili— term loan 880,00t 880,00t
Obligations under capital lea 344 1,26¢€
880,34« 881,26t
Less: current portio (344) (922)
Total lon¢-term debt $ 880,00( $ 880,34«

Future maturities of long-term debt as of Decen@ier2009, are as follows:

(In thousands

2010 $ —
2011 —
2012 —
2013 —
2014 880,00(

$ 880,00(

Credit Agreement

On December 31, 2007, the Company, through cedfits wholly owned subsidiaries, entered into adir agreeme
with several financial institutions, providing far $50 million revolving credit facility (including $10 million sulimit for
letters of credit), a $760 million term loan fawiland $140 million delayed draw term loan (“DDTLgcility. The DDTL'’s sol¢
purpose was for the funding of the redemption aof tenoutstanding senior notes plus any associated feesdemptio
premium. As described more fully below, we borrowgt20 million under the DDTL on April 1, 2008, atigh time th
commitment for the remaining $20 million that wagmally available under the DDTL expired. The ettborrowings und
the credit facility were used to retire a previgusutstanding $464 million credit facility and torfd our acquisition of Nor
Pittsburgh. Borrowings under the credit facilite @ecured by substantially all of the assets ofsGlidated with the excepti
of Illinois Consolidated Telephone Company. Thentéwan and DDTL require no principal reductionsopto maturity and tht
mature in full on December 31, 2014. The revolvimgdit facility matures on December 31, 2013. Theege no borrowing
outstanding under the revolving credit facilitydDecember 31, 2009.

At our election, borrowings under the credit fa@k bear interest at a rate equal to an applicabigin plus either aljast
rate” or LIBOR. As of December 31, 2009, the apgldie margin for interest rates was 2.50% per yeathe LIBORbase!
term loans and 1.50% for alternative base rateslodhe applicable margin for our $880 million tetoan is fixed for th
duration of the loan. The applicable margin forrbaings on the revolving credit facility is detemed via a pricing grid. Bas
on our leverage ratio of 4.71:1 at December 3192060rrowings under the revolving credit facilityivbe priced at a margin
2.75% for LIBOR-based borrowings and 1.75% forralative base rate borrowings for the threenth period ending March :
2010. The applicable borrowing margin for the reirgg credit facility is adjusted quarterly to reftehe leverage ratio from t
prior quarter-end.

The weighted-average interest rate incurred oncoedit facilities during the thremonth periods ended December
2009 and 2008, including the effect of intereserawaps and the applicable margin, was 5.96% aB@%®.per annur
respectively. Interest is payable at least quarterl

The credit agreement contains various provisiomsavenants, including, among other items, restriston the ability t
pay dividends, incur additional indebtedness, issaapEtal stock, and commit to future capital expemds. We have agreed
maintain certain financial ratios, including intsreoverage, and total net leverage ratios, alledi:ied in the credit agreeme
As of December 31, 2009, we were in compliance wighcredit agreement covenants.
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Covenant Compliance

In general, our credit agreement restricts ouiitglid pay dividends to the amount of our Availallash accumulated af
October 1, 2005, plus $23.7 million and minus thgragate amount of dividends paid after July 2D52®vailable Cash fi
any period is defined in our credit facility as Golidated EBITDA (a) minus, to the extent not dadddn the determination
Consolidated EBITDA, (i) nomash dividend income for such period; (ii) consat@t interest expense for such period n
amortization of debt issuance costs incurred (Agannection with or prior to the consummation of tcquisition of Nort
Pittsburgh or (B) in connection with the redemptioh our theneutstanding senior notes; (iii) capital expendisurfeor
internally generated funds; (iv) cash income tafcessuch period; (v) scheduled principal paymerftdnoebtedness, if an
(vi) voluntary repayments of indebtedness, mangaprepayments of term loans and net increases tstaouwling revolvin
loans during such period; (vii) the cash costsnyf extraordinary or unusual losses or chargesjaiifall cash payments ma
on account of losses or charges expensed prioudb period (b) plus, to the extent not includedCionsolidated EBITD/
(i) cash interest income; (ii) the cash amountizedl in respect to extraordinary or unusual gaarg] (iii) net decreases
revolving loans. Based on the results of operatimosy October 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009, after taking int
consideration dividend payments (including the $Itillion dividend declared in December 2009 andd pan February :
2010), we continue to have $98.9 million in divideavailability under the credit facility covenant.

Under our credit agreement, if our total net legeraatio (as such term is defined in the credieagrent), as of the end
any fiscal quarter, is greater than 5.10:1.00, vilkhe required to suspend dividends on our comrstmtk unless otherwi
permitted by an exception for dividends that maypbal from the portion of proceeds of any sale aqpiiy not used to mal
mandatory prepayments of loans and not used to dendisitions, capital expenditures or make otheestments. During a
dividend suspension period, we will be requiredepay debt in an amount equal to 50.0% of any as@én available cash
such term is defined in our credit agreement) dusuach dividend suspension period, among othegshim addition, we wi
not be permitted to pay dividends if an event dadk under the credit agreement has occurred suwedritinuing. Among oth
things, it will be an event of default if our inést coverage ratio as of the end of any fiscaltquas below 2.25:1.00. As
December 31, 2009, our total net leverage ratio4a$:1.00, and our interest coverage ratio was:B.Q0.

The description of the covenants above and forcoedit agreement in this Report are summaries drilgy do not conta
a full description, including definitions, of theqvisions summarized. As such, these summarieguaiified in their entirety t
these documents, which are filed as exhibits toAnurual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports annr 10Q and Curret
Reports on Form 8-K.

Senior notes

On April 1, 2008, we redeemed all of the then @uding senior notes. The total amount of the redempwvas
$136.3 million, including a call premium of $6.3llain. The senior note redemption and payment afw@ed interest throu
the redemption date was funded using $120 milliobbosrowing on the DDTL together with cash on hawé recognized a lo
on extinguishment of debt of $9.2 million relatedhe redemption premium and the writé-of unamortized deferred financi
costs.

Capital lease
The Company has a capital lease, which expire®1® 2for certain equipment used in its operatidrsof December 3

2009, the present value of the minimum remainiggéecommitments was $0.3 million, all of which idand payable with
the next 12 months.
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13. Derivatives

In order to manage the risk associated with chamgesaterest rates, we maintain interest rate swgpeements th
effectively convert a portion of our floating-radebt to a fixedate basis, thereby reducing the impact of intewst changes
future cash interest payments. During the fourtargar of 2009, the amount of our floatingte term debt that was fixed &
result of the interest rate swap agreements averdg80 million or 77.3% of our outstanding debt. December 31, 2009, t
notional amount of outstanding floating to fixedeirest rate swap agreements was $605 million. Waps expire at vario
times from December 2010 through March 2013. Thapsnare designated as cash flow hedges of our texpkdure intere
payments. Under our interest rate swap agreemamsteceive 3nonth LIBOR based interest payments from the :
counterparties and pay a fixed rate.

In September 2008, due to the larger than norma&asbbetween 1-month LIBOR andn®nth LIBOR, we added ba
swaps, under which we make 3-month LIBO&sed payments, less a fixed percentage to the basip counterparties ¢
receive 1-month LIBOR. At the same time, we begtlizing 1-month LIBOR resets on our credit facility. To fugthreduc
potential future income statement impacts from leeidgffectiveness, we diesignated the original interest rate swap cors
and redesignated them, in conjunction with theshasiaps, as of September 4, 2008 as a cash flogehdbigned to mitige
the changes in cash flows on our credit facilitheTeffect of the swap portfolio is to fix the caskerest payments on t
floating portion of $605 million of debt at a weigh-average LIBO rate of 4.42% exclusive of the appliedborrowing margi
on the loans.

We report the gross fair market value of our déives in either Other Assets or Other Liabilities the balance sheet ¢
do not net swaps in an asset position against simagsiability position. The table below shows th@lance sheet classificat
and fair value of our interest rate swaps desighaschedging instruments under the applicable attmpguidance:

Fair Value
December 31
(In thousands 2009 2008
Current portion of derivative liabilit $ 6,07 $ 4,44:
Other liabilities 26,10¢ 43,46

In a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of ttteange in the fair value of the hedging derivativerecorded i
accumulated other comprehensive income and is qubady reclassified into earnings during the sgragod in which th
hedged item affects earnings. At December 31, 22® 2008, the pretax deferred losses related tointerest rate swi
agreements included in other comprehensive incataet $31.9 million and $47.5 million, respectixelhe change in fe
value of any ineffective portion of the hedgingidative is recognized immediately in earnings. Hifect of the interest re
swaps on our financial performance for the perjp@ésented was:

For the Twelve Month
Ended December 3

(In thousands 2009 2008
Loss reclassified from OCI into interest expengte(tive portion) $ 11,05( $ 6,371
Loss (gain) arising from ineffectiveness includedniterest expens (207 39t

We expect to reclassify approximately $4.7 millivom Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income torégieExpens
during the next 12 months.
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In total, we have 16 interest rate swaps. The @patties to the various swaps are 5 major U.S.Eamdpean bank
None of the swap agreements provide for either Glatated or the counterparties to post collatexal do the agreemel
include any covenants related to the financial @¢@dof Consolidated or the counterparties. Thagsvof any counterparty tl
is a “Lender”as defined in our credit facility are secured alarith the other creditors under the credit faciliBach of the swz
agreements provides that in the event of a bangyufiling by either Consolidated or the countergadny amounts ows
between the two parties would be offset in ordedetermine the net amount due between parties. grbigsion allows us 1
partially mitigate the risk of non-performance bgaunterparty.

14. Interest Expense
The following table summarizes interest expense:

Year Ended December 3

(in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Interest expens— credit facility $ 25,44 $  49,65¢ $  33,48¢
Interest expens— high-yield debt — 3,20¢ 12,67¢
Payments on swap liabilities, r 29,91¢ 10,52 (2,629
Other interes 1,47¢ 2,07z 804
Amortization of deferred financing fe: 1,273 1,431 3,12¢
Capitalized interes (11§ (228) (127)
Total interest expens $ 57,99: $ 66,65¢ $ 47,35(

15. Retirement and Pension Plans

We have 401(k) plans covering substantially alloaf employees. We provide, at our discretion, acmaf employe
salaries contributed to the plans. We recorded resgpavith respect to these plans of $2.6 million2609 and 2008, al
$2.4 million in 2007.

Qualified Retirement Plan

We sponsor a defined-benefit pension plan (“RetimeinPlan”) that is nogentributory covering substantially all of «
hourly employees who fulfill minimum age and seeviequirements. Certain salaried employees are aisered by th
Retirement Plan although these benefits have pusisidbeen frozen. We contribute amounts necessaryeiet the minimu
funding requirements as set forth in employee beanfl tax laws.

The average asset allocations for our Retiremeat 8 December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
Equity securitie: 61.6% 52.2%
Debt securitie! 35.C 44.2
Cash and equivalen 3.2 3.6
Total 100.(% 100.(%
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We have established a Pension Committee thatpemnsible for overseeing the investments of the ipengan assets. T
Pension Committee is responsible for determinindyraonitoring the appropriate asset allocationsfandelecting or replacir
investment managers, trustees, and custodiansinVastment portfolio contains a diversified blerfdcommon stocks, bonc
cash equivalents, and other investments, which nefbgct varying rates of return. The investmentsfarther diversified withi
each asset classification. The portfolio diversificn provides protection against a single securitglass of securities havin
disproportionate impact on aggregate performanbe.Retirement Plan’s current investment targetations are 50% —60%
equities, with the remainder in fixed income furatsd cash equivalents. The Pension Committee revibesactual ass
allocation in light of these targets periodicallydarebalances investments as necessary. They\whmte the performance
investment managers as compared to the perfornafragecified benchmarks and peers, and monitomthestment manage
to ensure adherence to their stated investmem ahd to the Retirement Plan’s investment guidsline

The fair values of the Comparsypension plan assets at December 31, 2009, ngjlikie fair value hierarchy discusse
Note 8, is as follows

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date U

Quoted Price Significant
In Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservabl
December 3. Identical Assel Inputs Inputs

(in thousands 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash equivalent:
Money marke $ 450¢ $ 4,50¢ — —
Equities:
U.S. common stock 51,86¢ 51,86¢ — —
International stock 25,00: 25,00: — —
Stock funds 10,84: — 10,84: —
Fixed Income
Government agenc 8,72¢ 8,72¢ — —
U.S. corporate bonc 41,03« 41,034 — —
Total $ 14198 $ 131,13t 10,84 —

On December 31, 2009, the annual measurement dateRetirement Plan had a projected benefit olibgaif
$184.9 million while the fair value of the RetirentePlans assets were $142.0 million. In accordance with dpplicabl
accounting guidance, we recognized the unfundedsstd the plan by recording an accrued pensiduilifia of $42.9 million.

Items not yet recognized as a component of neb@ierpension cost and amounts recognized in thes@iolated Balanc
Sheets are as follows at December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008
Funded (Unfunded) stati $ (42,929  $ (68,61¢)
Amounts recognized i
Long-term liabilities (42,929 (68,61¢)
Deferred taxe 10,45¢ 18,62¢
Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
Unamortized prior service cre( (260) (28¢)
Unamortized net actuarial lo 17,82 31,59¢
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The amount of unamortized prior service credit thiditbe recognized as a component of net peripaicsion cost in 20:
is expected to be $43 thousand. The amount of urtee®d net actuarial losses that will be recogniasca component of «
periodic pension cost in 2010 is expected to beag@mately $0.8 million.

A summary of the components of net periodic pensist for the Retirement Plan for the years endedeimber 31 is .

follows:

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Service cos $ 2,10¢ $ 2,12( $ 1,80z
Interest cos 11,09¢ 11,00¢ 7,324
Expected return on plan ass (9,427 (22,690 (8,03%)
Net amortization los 2,67: — —
Prior service credit amortizatic (43) (13) (13)
Net periodic pension co $ 6,41¢ $ 421 $ 1,07¢

Certain assumptions utilized in determining the petiodic benefit cost and the benefit obligation the years end
December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Discount rate 6.22% 6.12% 6.3(%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 7.7C% 8.0(% 8.0(%
Rate of compensation/salary incre 3.1e% 3.7%% 3.5(%

The following table sets forth a reconciliationtbé projected benefit obligation for the years ehbDecember 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the y: $ 187,06! $ 181,19
Service cost 2,10¢ 2,12(
Interest cost 11,09¢ 11,004
Actuarial (gain) los: (3,189 3,44¢
Termination benefits and settleme — 49
Service cost adjustment to retained earn — 20z
Interest cost adjustment to retained earn — 97€
Plan amendmen — (320
Benefits paic (12,186) (11,617)
Benefit obligation at the end of the ye $ 184,90« $ 187,06

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the projected bemdfigation exceeded the accumulated benefit abbg by
$5.7 million and $7.2 million, respectively.

The actuarial gain and loss for the year ended bee 31, 2009 and 2008 results primarily from deraphic experienc
including assumption changes, and from investmesmirns differing from assumptions during the pyiear.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliationtbé plan assets for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of tar $  118,44¢ $ 166,63
Employer contribution: 10,441 21F
Actual return on plan asse 25,27: (36,799
Benefits paic (12,186 (11,61)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the $ 141,98: $ 118,44¢

We are not required to make a contribution to awalifjed pension plan in 2010.
The expected future benefits payments for the ataras follows:

(in thousands

2010 $ 12,40«
2011 12,47:
2012 12,63
2013 12,65¢
2014 12,64¢
2015— 2019 64,79

Non-qualified Pension Plan

The Company also has a non-qualified supplememastipn plan (“Restoration Plan\vhich it acquired as part of
North Pittsburgh and TXUCV acquisitions. The Restimn Plan covers certain former employees of cemrBylvania ar
Texas operations. The Restoration Plan restoresfitethat were precluded under the Retirement Blahnternal Revent
Service limits on compensation and benefits appleto qualified pension plans, and by the exclusibbonus compensati
from the Retirement Plan’s definition of earnings.2008, we paid lumgum settlements of $5.9 million to all former N¢
Pittsburgh employees, except for one participant whntinues to receive an annuity payment of apgprately $4 thousar
annually. The remaining participants, with the gt of the lone Pennsylvania annuity, are alifer employees of our Te»
properties.

On December 31, 2009, the annual measurement dateRestoration Plan had a projected benefit otitigaof
$1.0 million. The Restoration Plan is unfunded had no assets, and the benefits paid under ther&esh Plan come from t
general operating funds of the Company.

In accordance with the applicable accounting guidamve recognized the underfunded status of the Ipfarecording &
accrued pension liability of $1.0 million.

Items not yet recognized as a component of neb@ierpension cost and amounts recognized in thes@iolated Balanc
Sheets are as follows at December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008
Funded (Unfunded) stati $ (9549 $ (967)
Amounts recognized i
Current liabilities (53 (52
Long-term liabilities (907) (915)
Deferred taxe 151 16¢
Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
Unamortized net actuarial lo 261 293
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The amount of unamortized net actuarial losseswilbbe recognized as a component of net peripaicsion cost in 20:
is expected to be $30 thousand.

A summary of the components of net periodic pensiust for the Restoration Plan for the years eridecember 31 is .

follows:

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Service cos $ — $ — $ —
Interest cos 57 21C 55
Special termination benefits char — 2 —
Net amortization los 33 32 34
Net periodic pension co $ 90 $ 244 $ 89

Certain assumptions utilized in determining the petiodic benefit cost and the benefit obligation the years end
December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Discount rate 6.2:% 6.0&% 6.3(%

The following table sets forth a reconciliationtbé projected benefit obligation for the years ehbDecember 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the y: $ 967 $ 6,65¢
Service cost — —
Interest cost 57 21C
Actuarial (gain) los: a7 26
Benefits paic (53 (5,927)
Benefit obligation at the end of the ye $ 954 $ 967

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the projected bienlgfigation equaled the accumulated benefit oltiligea

The actuarial gain and loss for the years ende@ibber 31, 2009 and 2008 results primarily from ¢learin demograpt
experience, including assumption changes.

The following table sets forth a reconciliationtbé plan assets for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of e $ = $ =
Employer contribution: 53 5,92:¢
Benefits paic (53 (5,929
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the $ — $ —

In 2010, we anticipate making contributions to nan-qualified pension plans totaling approximatkyl million.
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The expected future benefits payments for the ataras follows:

(in thousands

2010 $ 53
2011 53
2012 53
2013 53
2014 53
2015— 2019 27C

Other Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Agreement

We also are liable for deferred compensation agee¢snwith former members of the board of direcamd certain othi
former employees of a subsidiary of TXUCV, whichsaecquired in 2004. The benefits are payable fotouthe life of th
participant and may begin as early as age 65 on tipe death of the participant. Participants accrueew benefits as the
plans had previously been frozen by TXUG\gredecessor company prior to our acquisition X)TV. Payments related
the deferred compensation agreements totaled aippaigely $0.5 million in 2009 and $0.6 million in @®. The net prese
value of the remaining obligations was approximat$8.1 million and $3.4 million as of December 2009, and 200
respectively, and is included in pension and ptistraent benefit obligations in the accompanyiniabee sheets.

We also maintain 40 life insurance policies on aiariof the participating former directors and enyples. We did ni
recognize any proceeds in other income in 20090882ue to the receipt of life insurance procedéti® excess of the ce
surrender value of the remaining life insuranceqed over the notes payable balances relateceetholicies is determined
an independent consultant, and totaled $1.8 milabrboth December 31, 2009 and 2008. These amauatsncluded i
investments in the accompanying balance sheet$. @awipal payments for the policies and any pedlsefrom the policies &
classified as operating activities in the statemeffitcash flows. The aggregate death benefit payafdier these policies tota
$8.1 million and $8.0 million as of December 3102@&nd 2008, respectively.

16. Postretirement Benefit Obligation

We sponsor a healthcare plan and life insuranae Rostretirement Planthat provides postretirement medical ben
and life insurance to certain groups of retired layges. Retirees share in the cost of healthcamefiie®, making contributior
that are adjusted periodicallyeither based upon collective bargaining agreemantsecause total costs of the program
changed. We generally pay the covered expense®tioge health benefits as they are incurred. Btisgment life insuran:
benefits are fully insured.

On December 31, 2009, the annual measurement datePostretirement Plan had a projected benefiigatibn o
$36.2 million, which is less than the projecteddf@robligation at December 31, 2008 of $37.7 roilli The Postretirement P
is unfunded and has no assets, and the benefitaupder the Postretirement Plan come from the géperating funds of tl
Company.
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Items not yet recognized as a component of neb@ierpension cost and amounts recognized in thes@iolated Balanc
Sheets are as follows at December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008
Unfunded statu $ (36,21) % (37,729
Amounts recognized ir
Current liabilities (2,856 (2,909)
Long-term liabilities (33,359 (34,81Y
Deferred taxe 1,64t 1,48¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (income) |
Unamortized prior service crec (2,430 (2,047
Unamortized net actuarial g (1,129 (107

We expect to recognize an amortization of net g@wice credit of approximately $0.4 million in12D

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for thargeended December 31 includes the following coraptm

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007

Service cos $ 812 $ 90C $ 80¢
Interest cos 2,14¢ 2,421 1,52
Net prior service cost amortizati (963) (63¢) (7173)
Special termination benefits char 40 —
Net loss (gain) amortizatic (22) — 44
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 1,974 $ 2,72% $ 1,66¢

The change in benefit obligation for the years endecember 31 includes the following components:

(In thousands 2009 2008

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the y: $ 37,72: $ 40,89t
Service cos 813 90C
Interest cos 2,14¢ 2,42(
Service cost adjustment to retained earn — 72
Interest cost adjustment to retained earn — 162
Pos-measurement date contributic — (339
Plan participant contributior 50C 37t
Special termination benefits and settleme — 41
Plan amendmen — (3,729
Actuarial loss (gain (1,642 (207)
Benefits paic (3,326 (2,877)
Benefit obligation at the end of the ye $ 36,21« $ 37,72¢

The weightedaverage discount rate used to determine net perjpabtretirement benefit cost and the benefit aibiy
was 6.1% at December 31, 2009 and 6.15% at Dece3db@008.
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The expected future benefits payments for the ataras follows:

(in thousands

2010 $ 2,94z
2011 3,11¢
2012 3,09¢
2013 2,98¢
2014 3,031
2015— 2019 14,59(

For purposes of determining the cost and obligafiwrpreMedicare postretirement medical benefits, a 9% ahrate o
increase in the per capita cost of covered bengfids healthcare trend rate) was assumed foplde in 2009, declining to
rate of 5.00% in 2016. Assumed healthcare costitrates have a significant effect on the amoumgerted for healthcare plal
A one percent change in the assumed healthcarérendtrate would have had the following effects:

(In thousands 1% Increast 1% Decreas
Effect on total of service and interest cost congmis $ 251 $ (319
Effect on postretirement benefit obligati $ 3,097 $ (2,702)

17. Stock-based Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2009, we maintained one stimded compensation plan, the Amended and Restatesolate
Communications Holdings, Inc. 2005 Long-term IneentPlan (the “Plan”)The Plan was initially approved by stockholt
effective July 21, 2005, and was amended on Ma30B9. The Plan provides for the grant of awardshia form of stoc
options, stock appreciation rights, stock grantsgcks unit grants and other equitgsed awards to eligible directors
employees at the discretion of the Compensationrfittee of the Board of Directors. The term of theaeds granted under {
Plan is determined by the Compensation CommittekedBoard of Directors and cannot exceed 10 yieans the date of grar
Shares generally vest at the rate of 25% per yerahe anniversary of their grant date. The maximmumber of shares
common stock that may be issued under the Plamiietl to 750,000 provided that no more than 300 §lfares may be gran
in the form of stock options or stock appreciatiights to any eligible employee or director in arglendar year. Unle
terminated sooner, the Plan will continue in efigttil May 5, 2019.

Beginning in 2007, the Company commenced an ongpirormancedased incentive program under the Plan.
performancebased incentive program provides for regular anmgrahts of performance shares. Performance shae
restricted stock that is issued, to the extentedrat the end of each performance cycle. Undepéhrmancesased incentiy
program, each participant is given a target awaplessed as a number of shares, with a payout tyrityrranging from 0% |
120% of the target, depending on performance weath predetermined goals. In accordance with fhaieable accountir
guidance, an accounting estimate of the numbehede shares that are expected to vest is madehese shares are tt
expensed utilizing the grant-date fair value ofghares from the grant date through the end of¢lséng period.

Pretax stock-based compensation expense for thie gaded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 wasi@asdo

Year Ended December 2

(in millions) 2009 2008 2007

Restricted stoc $ 1.1 $ 1.1 $ 3.6
Performance shart 0.8 0.8 0.4
Total $ 1.9 $ 1. $ 4.0
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Stock-based compensation expense is included ilintpegeneral and administrative expens@s’the accompanyir
statements of operations.

As of December 31, 2009, we had not yet recognipadpensation expense on the following non-vesteat@sv

Average Remainir
Non-recognize Recognition Perio

(in millions) Compensatiol (years)

Restricted stoc $ 0.¢ 14
Performance shart 0.9 2.5
Total $ 1.8 1.8

The following table presents restricted stock digtily year:

2009 2008 2007
# of # of # of
Shares Price (1) Shares Price®® Shares Price®®

Non-vested restricted shares

outstandinc— January ! 74,39: $ 16.62 122,36 $ 17.0% 248,74! $ 12.9:
Shares grante 96,44 9.0t 14,75( 14.9; 127,33« 19.9¢
Shares veste (64,499 12.6¢ (48,016 16.9¢ (237,79) 18.0¢
Shares forfeited, cancelled or

retired (23,964 12.4¢ (14,710 17.57 (15,920 13.6¢
Non-vested restricted shares

outstandin— December 3: 82,37¢ $ 12.0¢ 74,39. $ 16.6- 122,36 $ 17.0%

(1) Represents the weigh—average fair value on date of gre

The following table presents performance-basedeshetivity by year:

2009 2008 2007
# of # of # of
Shares Price @ Shares Price®) Shares Price®

Non-vested performance shares

outstandinc— January ! 31,13: $ 15.6¢ 6,93¢ $ 20.01 — $ —
Shares grante 61,54 9.0t 56,711 14.9: 9,25( 20.01
Shares veste (32,32) 10.8¢ (23,579 15.3¢ (1,88¢) 20.01
Shares forfeited, cancelled or

retired (13,787 10.67 (8,93¢6) 15.1¢ (429 20.01
Non-vested performance shares

outstandin— December 3: 46,57¢ $ 11.7¢ 31,13: $ 15.6¢ 6,93¢ $ 20.01

(1) Represents the weigh—average fair value on date of gre
18. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision forythars ended December 31 are as follows:

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Current:
Federal $ 9,77¢ $ 12,51¢ $ 7,79(C
State 2,56¢ 6,152 1,15¢
Deferred:
Federal 2,26¢ (9,650 (1,529
State (2,209 (2,382) (2,74%)

Total income tax expen: $ 12,39¢ $ 6,63¢ $ 4,674
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We adopted the accounting guidance applicable mecoatrolling interests effective January 1, 2009 Pinesentation ai
disclosure requirements were applied retrospegtitébwever, the income tax provision was not adidsiThe result is a low
effective income tax rate due to the inclusionn@fome attributable to noncontrolling interestsnoame before the provision-
income taxes. The effective rate prior to adopti@s 55.8% for 2008 and 29% for 2007.

The following is a reconciliation between the staty federal income tax rate and the Compargyerall effective tax ra
for the years ended December 31:

(In percentages 2009 2008 2007
Statutory federal income tax re 35.C 35.C 35.C
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.8 27.C 2.5
Other permanent differenc 0.1 4.3 1.9
Change in tax lav — — (10.7)
Change in deferred ra 2.7 (9.9 (5.4
Other (2.9 (4.4 4.6
32.4 52.C 27.€

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes wa®$iillion during 2009, $13.5 million during 200&8nd $14.0 millio
2007.

Deferred Taxe

Net deferred taxes consist of the following compdaat December 31:

(In thousands 2009 2008
Current deferred tax asse
Reserve for uncollectible accoul $ 76E $ 862
Accrued vacation pay deducted when [ 1,16(C 1,20¢
Accrued expenses and deferred reve 4,04¢ 1,53¢
5,97( 3,60(
Non-current deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,72C 1,99¢
Pension and postretirement obligatis 30,95: 40,18¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 297 251
Derivative instrument 11,64¢ 17,321
State tax credit carryforwart 2,32 2,45(
46,94t 62,20¢
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:
Goodwill and other intangible (39,827 (44,487
Partnership investmen (22,147 (22,207
Property, plant and equipme (59,697 (53,649
(121,656 (120,339
Net nor-current deferred taxe (74,717) (58,139
Net deferred income tax liabilitie $ (68,74)  $ (54,539
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Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempodiferences between assets and liabilities reizeghfor financic
reporting purposes and assets and liabilities m@zed for tax purposes. The ultimate realizatiomeferred tax assets depe
upon taxable income during the future periods inctvhihose temporary differences become deductifdedetermine wheth
deferred tax assets can be realized, managemesgsasswhether it is more likely than not that sguosion or all of th
deferred tax assets will not be realized, taking iconsideration the scheduled reversal of defetaadliabilities, projecte
future taxable income, and tax-planning strategies.

Based upon historical taxable income and projestfon future taxable income over the periods thatdeferred tax ass
are deductible, management believes it is mordylikean not that the Company will realize the bésedf these tempora
differences. However, management may reduceatheunt of deferred tax assets it considers redéizebthe near term
estimates of future taxable income during the d¢arward period are reduced. The amount of projefittute taxable income
expected to allow for the full utilization of thetoperating loss (“NOL") carryforwards as descdifselow.

ETFL, a nonconsolidated subsidiary for federal inedax return purposes, estimates it has availd@le carryforwards ¢
December 31, 2009, of approximately $3.1 milliom federal income tax purposes to offset future béxancome. ETFLS
federal NOL carryforwards expire from 2010 to 2024.

We estimate that we have available state NOL camwdrds at December 31, 2009, of approximately #i#lBon anc
related deferred tax assets of approximately $@l&m The state NOL carryforwards expire from 20® 2027.

We estimate that we have available state tax coadiyforwards at December 31, 2009, of approxitga#8.6 million ant
related deferred tax assets of approximately $2l®m During 2009, approximately $0.1 million dhe state tax cre(
carryforward was utilized. The state tax creditrgfmrward is limited annually and expires in 2027.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

We adopted the accounting guidance applicable terinty in income taxes effective January 1, 280 no impact o
its results of operations or financial conditiomdahave analyzed filing positions in all of the deal and state jurisdictio
where it is required to file income tax returnsveal as all open tax years in these jurisdictiofBis accounting guidan
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in a compasyinancial statements; prescribes a recogr
threshold and measurement attribute for the firrstatement recognition and measurement of adakipn taken or expect
to be taken in a tax return; and provides guidamtealescription, classification, interest and pees|taccounting in interi
periods, disclosure, and transition.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the amount cfaagnized tax benefits was approximately $5.7 amlliSubseque
to the adoption of the accounting guidance applecdb business combinations on January 1, 2009,tdted amount ¢
unrecognized benefits that, if recognized, woufdcitfthe effective tax rate is approximately $5.iliom.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, there wast adecrease of approximately $0.1 million to thdabee o
unrecognized tax benefits reported at DecembePBQ@8. This net decrease is due to the expiratioRO6% state statutes
limitations.

We are continuing our practice of recognizing iegtrand penalties related to income tax mattenstémest expense a
general and administrative expense, respectivelyeMive adopted the accounting guidance applicabl@dertainty in incor
taxes, we had no accrual balance for interest asmhblpies. For the 12 months ended December 31, ,2@@9accrue
approximately $0.5 million of net interest and géea and in total have recognized a liability foterest and penalties
approximately $1.1 million. For the 12 months en&@&tember 31, 2008, we accrued approximately $dl@mof net interes
and penalties and in total had recognized a ltgkfitir interest and penalties of approximately $di6ion.

F-36




Table of Contents

The only periods subject to examination for ourefedl return are years 2006 through 2008. The peribject t
examination for our state returns are years 20afgh 2008. We are not currently under examinabiprither federal or ste
taxing authorities.

A decrease in unrecognized tax benefits of $5.4aniland $1.0 million of related accrued interessekpected in the thi
quarter of 2010 due to the expiration of a fedstatue of limitation. The tax benefit attributabdethe $5.4 million decrease
unrecognized tax benefits will have a significaffiée& on the Company’ effective tax rate. There were no material charig
any of these amounts during 2009.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofninrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Liability for
Unrecognize
(In thousands Tax Benefits
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 5,74(
Additions (reductions) for tax positions in the i@nt yeal —
Additions for tax positions of prior yea —
Additions (reductions) relating to settlements wéking authoritie: —
Reduction for lapse of federal statute of limitas —
Reductions for lapse of 2004 state statute of &itihs (81)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 5,65¢
19. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at Decembéer &mprised of the following components:
(In thousands 2009 2008
Fair value of cash flow hedg $ (3189) $ (47,519
Prior service credits and net losses on postre@iremplans (24,229 (46,599
(56,12() (94,11))
Deferred taxe 20,58( 34,63:
Totals $ (35540 % (59,479

20. Environmental Remediation Liabilities

Environmental remediation liabilities were $0.3linit and $0.5 million at December 31, 2009, and&086spectively, ar
are included in other liabilities. These liabilgieclate to anticipated remediation and monitodasgts with respect to two s
vacant sites and are undiscounted. The Compangvieslithe amount accrued is adequate to cover thainmimg anticipate
costs of remediation.
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21. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal proceeding

On July 10, 2009, we entered into a settlementeageat with Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. resolvingcibgnplaint, recurrin
access rates and any liability issues. As a readtreduced the previously recorded reserve weelstablished down to t
settlement amount and recognized a gain of appiateiiyn $1.8 million during the second quarter 2009.

On April 15, 2008, Salsgiver Inc., a Pennsylvaésed telecommunications company, and certairsddfftliates filed .
lawsuit against us and our subsidiaries North Rittgsh Telephone Company and North Pittsburgh System in the Court «
Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvaniggallg that we have prevented Salsgiver from commgdts fiber opti
cables to North Pittsburgh’utility poles. Salsgiver seeks compensatory amditipe damages as the result of alleged
projected profits, damage to its business reputatamd other costs. It claims to have sustainedebof approximate
$125 million, but does not request a specific dadlamount in damages. We believe that these claimsvihout merit and th
the alleged damages are completely unfounded. ¥¥edrto defend against these claims vigorouslyhérthird quarter of 200
we filed preliminary objections and responses tts@eer's complaint; however, the court ruled against orglipinary
objections. On November 3, 2008, we responded tsglar's amended complaint and filed a courdkaim for trespas
alleging that Salsgiver attached cables to ourgpwi¢hout an authorized agreement and in an unsafener. We are curren
in the discovery and deposition stage. In additivme, have asked the FCC Enforcement Bureau to asldetsgiver
unauthorized pole attachments and safety violatimmthose attachments. We believe that these atatioins of an FCC ord
regarding Salsgives’ complaint against North Pittsburgh. We do noievel that these claims will have a material ad\
impact on our financial results.

We are from time to time involved in various legabceedings and regulatory actions arising outunfaperations. We a
not involved in any legal or regulatory proceedingslividually or in the aggregate (other than thdescribed herein), that
believe would have a material adverse effect uporbasiness, operating results or financial coaoditi

Operating leases

The Company has entered into several operatinggdeasvering buildings, office space and equipmBent expens
totaled $4.2 million in 2009, $4.2 million in 2008nd $3.8 million in 2007. Future minimum lease rpants under existir
agreements are as follows: 2010—$3.1 million, 20%1-7 million, 2012—%$0.6 million, 2013—%$0.4 million2014—
$0.3 million, and thereafter—$0.4 million.

Other commitments

The Company has entered into four operational stigystems contracts. Should we terminate anyettntracts prior-
their expiration, we would be liable for minimumnemitment payments as defined in the contractshferémaining term of tl
contracts. In addition, we have a contractual @biggn for network maintenance. The total of the @any’s other commitmen
are due as follows: 2010—$1.4 million, 2011—$0.9iom, 2012—$0.1 million, 2013—$0.1 million, 2014-84 million, an
thereafter—$0.1 million.
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22. Net Income per Common Share

We adopted the FASB’authoritative guidance on the treatment of pigdting securities in the calculation of earnings
share on January 1, 2009, and began using thelags-method to compute basic and diluted earrprgshare for all perio
presented. The following illustrates the earnin@cation method utilized in the calculation of lraand diluted earnings f
share for the years ended December 31:

(In thousands, except per share amou 2009 2008 2007
Basic Earnings Per Share Using T-class Method
Net income $ 25,93t $ 13,36" $ 12,05(
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiest 1,03( 863 627
Net income attributable to common shareholdersreedtiocation of
earnings to participating securiti 24,90t 12,50« 11,42
Less: earnings allocated to participating secs 30¢ 241 264
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 24,59 $ 12,26: $ 11,15¢
Weightec-average number of common shares outstar 29,39¢ 29,32: 25,76¢

Net income per common share attributable to comstoeckholder—
basic $ 0.84 $ 0.42 $ 0.4:

Diluted Earnings Per Share Using T-class Method

Net income $ 25,93t $ 13,36" $ 12,05(
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiest 1,03( 863 627
Net income attributable to common shareholdersreedtiocation of
earnings to participating securiti 24,90¢ 12,50« 11,42
Less: earnings allocated to participating secs 30¢ 241 264
Net income attributable to common stockholc $  24,59¢ $ 12,26: $ 11,15¢
Weightec-average number of common shares outstandin 29,39¢ 29,32: 25,76¢

Net income per common share attributable to comsteckholder—
diluted $ 0.84 $ 0.4z $ 0.4:

(1) to the extent that restricted shares arediluiive, they have been excluded from the caléoabf diluted earnings p
share in accordance with the applicable accoumfiridance

We had additional potential dilutive securitiesstanding representing 0.2 million common shares weae not include
in the computation of potentially dilutive secuetiat December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, becausevére anti-dilutive.
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23. Business Segments

The Company is viewed and managed as two sepdmatidhighly integrated, reportable business segméitalephon
Operations” and “Other Operations'€lephone Operations consists of a wide rangeletdenmunications services, includ
local and long-distance service, VOIP service, austalling features, private line services, dipland DSL Internet acce
IPTV, carrier access services, network capacityises over a regional fiber optic network, mobikrdces and directo
publishing. The Company also operates a numbemofptementary non-core businesses that compriseetGilperations,”
including CMR, telephone services to county jailed astate prisons, equipment sales and operatoicesrvManageme
evaluates the performance of these business segni@sed upon net revenue, operating income, anommcbefor
extraordinary items.

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Telephone operatior $ 364,54 $ 379,02 $ 288,17
Other operation 41,61¢ 39,39" 41,074

Total net revenu 406,16° 418,42 329,24t
Operating expens— telephone operatior 211,06¢ 214,51¢ 154,99¢
Operating expens— other operation 39,16¢ 37,81 41,95:¢
Operating expens— impairment charg — 6,05(

Total operating expen: 250,23 258,38: 196,95:
Depreciation and amortization expel— telephone operatior 84,01¢ 90,39 63,21
Depreciation and amortization expel— other operation 1,20¢ 1,28¢ 2,44¢

Total depreciation expen: 85,227 91,67¢ 65,65¢
Operating incom— telephone operatior 69,46 74,11« 68,56:
Operating incom— other operation 1,24¢ (5,750 (1,925

Total operating incom 70,70¢ 68,36¢ 66,63’
Interest incomt 56 367 89¢
Interest expens (57,99) (66,659 (47,350
Investment incom 25,77( 20,49¢ 7,03¢
Loss on extinguishment of de — (9,22¢9) (20,327
Other, ne (207) (577) (167)
Income before taxes and extraordinary i $ 38,33¢ $ 12,76¢ 16,724

Capital expenditure:

Telephone operatior $  41,85: $ 47,18: $ 32,24¢

Other operation 49¢ 84¢€ 1,25C
Total $ 42,35 $ 48,02 $ 33,49
Goodwill:

Telephone operatior $ 519,42 $ 519,42 $ 519,25

Other operation 1,13¢ 1,13¢ 7,18¢
Total $ 520,56: $ 520,56. $ 526,43¢

Total assets

Telephone operations ( $ 1,210,76! $ 1,227,32 $ 1,281,01.
Other operation 12,27¢ 14,30¢ 23,58(
Total $ 1,223,04. $ 1,241,622 $ 1,304,59.

(1) Included within the telephone operations segmesetasare our equity method investments totaling.@d8llion,
$46.8 million and $44.8 million at December 31, 20P008 and 2007, respective
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24. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amou March 31 June 3( September 3 December 3
2009:
Net revenue $ 101,71 $ 102,04. $ 101,59 $ 100,82
Operating expense

Cost of services and produt 36,10( 36,34+ 36,15 36,86¢

Selling, general and administrative exper 27,87 25,85( 25,60( 25,44,

Depreciation and amortizatic 21,67 20,98! 21,34: 21,22¢
Total operating expen: 85,65 83,17¢ 83,09: 83,54(
Operating incom: 16,05¢ 18,86 18,49¢ 17,28¢
Other expenses, n 9,97: 6,022 8,721 7,65¢€
Income before income tax 6,08: 12,84¢ 9,771 9,62¢
Income tax expens 2,38€ 5,18¢ 2,494 2,33t
Net Income 3,697 7,65¢ 7,28: 7,29¢
Less: Income attributable to noncontrolling inte| 407 13€ 22€ 261
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 3,29( $ 7,52¢ $ 7,057 $ 7,03t
Net income per share attributable to Consolid

Communications Holdings, Inc. common

stockholder:

Basic $ 0.11 $ 0.2t $ 0.24 $ 0.2¢

Diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.2t $ 0.24 $ 0.24
2008:
Revenue: $ 105,41 $ 106,44 $ 103,82 $ 102,74
Operating expense

Cost of services and produt 33,86: 36,10¢ 37,77¢ 35,81«

Selling, general and administrative exper 28,14« 26,911 26,16 27,55:

Intangible asset impairme — — — 6,05(

Depreciation and amortizatic 22,87 22,35( 22,84: 23,61¢
Total operating expen: 84,87¢ 85,36¢ 86,78 93,03:
Income from operatior 20,53¢ 21,07 17,04: 9,71(
Other expenses, n 13,675 11,26¢ 7,66¢ 13,76¢
Loss on extinguishment of de — 9,224 —
Income (loss) before income tax 6,85¢ 583 9,37¢ (4,059
Income tax expense (benel 2,87¢ 27C 4,26 (777)
Net Income before extraordinary ite 3,981 313 5,11¢ (3,287
Extraordinary item ( net of income tax of $4,1! — — — 7,24(C
Net income 3,981 31z 5,11¢ 3,957
Less: Income attributable to noncontrolling inte 272 13¢ 14t 318
Net income attributable to common sharehols $ 3,70¢ $ 18C $ 4,971 $ 3,64¢
Net income per share attributable to Consolid

Communications Holdings, Inc. common

stockholder:

Income per common share before extraordinary $ 0.1: % 001 $ 017  $ (0.19)

Extraordinary item per sha — — — $ 0.24
Net income per common she— basic $ 0.1: % 001 $ 017  $ 0.11

Income per common share before extraordinary $ 01: % 001 % 017  $ (0.19)

Extraordinary item per sha — = — $ 0.24
Net income per common she— diluted $ 0.1z $ 0.01 $ 0.17 $ 0.11
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25. Subsequent Events

In early 2010, we sold the assets of our CMR répgmnit. The sales price, assets and revenuesvii® &re noneore tc
our ongoing business and are immaterial to theativassets and revenues of Consolidated. The divesis expected to |
slightly accretive to our overall results of op@as going forward.

On February 12, 2010, we announced plans to phaiseur operator services unit. Our operator sesvigeit provide
directory assistance and call completion servicesu$ and several other telecommunications prosideis expected that tt
business will be phased out by June 30, 2010. $kets and revenues of operator services areo@nto our business and
immaterial to the overall assets and revenues afs@aated. The phase out of operator servicexpeaed to be slight
accretive to our overall results of operations gdimrward.

Both CMR and operator services were part of oue©@perations segment.
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Schedule II—Valuation Reserves is set forth below.

(In thousands 2009 2008 2007
Allowance for doubtful account

Balance at beginning of ye $ 1,90¢ $ 2,44( $ 2,11C
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — — 471
Provision charged to expen 4,812 4,81¢ 4,73¢
Write-offs, less recoverie (4,929 (5,35)) (4,87%)
Balance at end of ye $ 1,79¢ $ 1,90¢ $ 2,44(
Inventory reserve

Balance at beginning of ye $ 87¢ $ 40c $ 42¢
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — — 171
Provision charged to expen 542 597 12t
Write-offs, less recoverie (719 (119) (325)
Balance at end of ye $ 701 $ 87¢ $ 40C
Income tax valuation allowanc

Balance at beginning of ye $ — $ 2,871 $ 5,34¢
North Pittsburgh acquisitio — — 1,53(C
North Pittsburgh adjustment to goodv — (1,530 —
Reduction of related deferred tax as — (1,347 (3,989
Provision charged to expen — — (249)
Release of valuation allowan — — —
Balance at end of ye $ — $ — $ 2,871
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of Pennsylvania RSA 6 (Il) LimiRattnership:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheétsrofsylvania RSA 6 () Limited Partnership (thaffdership”)as o
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statsroEoperations, changes in partneapital, and cash flows for eack
the three years in the period ended December 319.20hese financial statements are the resporgilofi the Partnership’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBlo(Unite(
States). Those standards require that we plan arfdrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancatafoether the financi
statements are free of material misstatement. Bnm&rship is not required to have, nor were weagad to perform, an au
of its internal control over financial reportingu©audits included consideration of internal cohtneer financial reporting as
basis for designing audit procedures that are qgjate in the circumstances but not for the purpifsxpressing an opinion
the effectiveness of the Partnershifternal control over financial reporting. Acciomgly, we express no such opinion.
audit also includes examining, on a test basigjende supporting the amounts and disclosures irfinlacial statement
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignif estimates made by management, as well asisia) the overe
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such financial statements presaityf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Partnership
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the resulttsafderations and its cash flows for each of thmeetlyears in the peri
ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with acciognprinciples generally accepted in the Unitede@f America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, GA
March 8, 2010
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $184 a2k $ 8,62 $ 7,96¢
Unbilled revenu 873 784
Due from affiliate 9,741 6,412
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 20 17
Total current asse 19,26: 15,177
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN—Net 11,99: 12,41¢
OTHER ASSETS 10¢ 14C
TOTAL ASSETS $ 31,36: $ 27,73t
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS ' CAPITAL
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 2,37z $ 2,17:
Advance billings and customer depo: 2,50¢ 2,392
Total current liabilities 4,881 4,56¢
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 202 187
Total liabilities 5,08¢ 4,752
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Notes 6 and
PARTNERS CAPITAL 26,27¢ 22,98:
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL $ 31,36: $ 27,73t

See notes to financial statements.
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Service revenues, n
Equipment, net and other reveni
Total operating revenut

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSE:!

Cost of service (excluding depreciation and amatitin related to

network assets included belo
Cost of equipmer
Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic

Total operating costs and expen
OPERATING INCOME
INTEREST INCOME, NET

NET INCOME

Allocation of Net Income
Limited Partner:
General Partne

See notes to financial statements.
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2009 2008 2007
$ 92,05/ $ 83,80° 72,775
23,61¢ 24,65 23,33:
115,67( 108,45¢ 96,10¢
32,87¢ 31,27¢ 26,72¢
23,18¢ 25,32¢ 22,71¢
28,39¢ 26,56¢ 24.,64¢
2,37¢ 2,17 2,35¢€
86,83( 85,34¢ 76,44
28,84( 23,11 19,66¢
45t 23t 27C
$ 29,29¢ $ 23,34¢ 19,93
$ 11,81: $ 9,41 8,04z
$ 17,47¢ $ 13,92¢ 11,89:
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007

(Dollars in Thousands)

BALANCE—January 1, 200
Distributions
Net income
BALANCE—December 31, 200
Distributions
Net income
BALANCE—December 31, 200
Distributions

Net income
BALANCE—December 31, 200

See notes to financial statements.

General
Partner Limited Partners
Consolidated Venus
Communications Cellular
of Pennsylvania Telephone Total
Cellco Company Services, Partners’
Partnership (Note 1) Inc. Capital
$ 10,56: $ 419C $ 2951 $ 17,70
(9,54¢€) (3,78%) (2,667%) (16,000
11,89: 4,71¢ 3,328 19,93¢
12,90¢ 5,122 3,607 21,637
(13,12 (5,207) (3,66%) (22,000
13,92¢ 5,52¢ 3,89: 23,34¢
13,71: 5,44( 3,831 22,98:
(15,517 (6,159 (4,339 (26,000
17,47¢ 6,93¢ 4,88:¢ 29,29t
$ 15,67¢ $ 6,22( % 438 $  26,27¢
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 29,29 $  23,34¢ $ 19,93«
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,37¢ 2,171 2,35¢
Provision for losses on accounts receiv: 391 483 27¢
Changes in certain assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (1,059 (1,809 (1,149
Unbilled revenue (89 (57 40¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: ©)] — (D)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 212 58 (390
Advance billings and customer depo: 117 29t 30z
Other long term liabilitie: 16 27 11
Net cash provided by operating activit 31,26. 24,52( 21,75(
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures from affiliates, r (2,939 (2,457 (3,20€)
Purchase of Customers from an affili — (182) —
Change in due from affiliate, n (3,329 11E (2,549
Net cash used in investing activiti (5,26)) (2,520 (5,750
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner (26,000 (22,000 (16,000
Net cash used in financing activiti (26,000 (22,000 (16,000
CHANGE IN CASH — — —
CASH—Beginning of yea — — —
CASH—ENd of yeal $ — $ — $ —
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCINC
ACTIVITIES:
Accruals for capital expenditur: $ 2 $ 15 $ 14

See notes to financial statements.
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PENNSYLVANIA RSA 6 (Il) LIMITED Partnership

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

1.

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

Pennsylvania RSA 6 (Il) Limited Partnershi—Pennsylvania RSA 6 (ll) Limited Partnership (thHeaftnership”)was
formed on January 31, 1991. The principal actigitythe Partnership is providing cellular servicetlie Pennsylvania
(1) rural service area. Under the terms of thenpenship agreement, the partnership expires onadgriy 2091

The partners and their respective ownership peagestas of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 $oHags:

General Partne

Cellco Partnership* General Partn”) 59.6€%
Limited Partners

Consolidated Communications of Pennsylvania Comffa 23.61%

Venus Cellular Telephone Services, 16.67%

*%

Cellco Partnershig“Cellcc”) doing business as Verizon Wirele

On January 1, 2008 North Pittsburgh Telephone Compzhanged its name to Consolidated Communicatiof
Pennsylvania Compan

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimate—The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepte
the United States of America requires managementake estimates and assumptions that affect trategbamounts |
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of cgetin assets and liabilities at the date of thenfire statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duringeporting period. Actual results may differ frahose estimate
Estimates are used for, but not limited to, theoaoting for: allocations, allowance for uncollet#itaccounts receivab
unbilled revenue, depreciation and amortizationefuls lives and impairment of assets, accrued exgEnsn
contingencies. Estimates and assumptions are pealydreviewed and the effects of any materialis®ns are reflected
the financial statements in the period that theydatermined to be necess:

Revenue Recognitio— The Partnership earns revenue by providing accesartnetwork (access revenue) and for u
of our network (usage revenue), which includes @#@od data revenue. Customers are associated heitpartnersh
based upon mobile identification number. In genexatess revenue is billed one month in advancesamdognized whe
earned; the unearned portion is classified in adednillings in the balance sheet. Usage revenuedsgnized whe
service is rendered and included in unbilled reeenatil billed. Equipment sales revenue associatgd the sale ¢
wireless devices is recognized when the produetsielivered to and accepted by the customer, asstisonsidered to be
separate earnings process from the sale of wiredesgices. Customer activation fees are considemditiona
consideration, and to the extent that we incurcivsexcess of fees, these fees are recorded gsresnt and other reven
at the time of customer acceptance. For agreenmerdt/ing the resale of thirgarty services in which we are conside
the primary obligor in the arrangements, we reaeksnue gross. The roaming rates charged by thadPsinip to Cellc
do not necessarily reflect current market rateg Fartnership will continue to mraluate the rates on a periodic basis
Note 5).
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The Partnership reports, on a gross basisstamposed by governmental authorities on revgmoeelucing transactiol
between us and our customers that are within tbpesof the accounting standard related to how taxdected fror
customers and remitted to governmental authorgtesuld be presented in the statement of operationke financie
statements

Cellular service revenues and expenses resultorg frell site agreements with affiliates of Cellae aecognized bas
upon a rate per minute of use. See no

Operating Costs and Expens—Operating expenses include expenses incurred Wifegtthe Partnership, as well as

allocation of certain selling, general and admmaigte, and operating costs incurred by Cellca®affiliates on behalf «

the Partnership. Employees of Cellco provide sewviperformed on behalf of the Partnership. Thesglames are n

employees of the Partnership and therefore, opgratipenses include direct and allocated chargealafy and employ

benefit costs for the services provided to the rieaship. Cellco believes such allocations, printjphased on th

Partnerships percentage of total customers, customer grossi@ddor minutes of use, are reasonable. The nogurdte

charged to the Partnership by Cellco do not nedéssaflect current market rates. The Partnershilb continue to re-
evaluate the rates on a periodic basis (see No

Retail Store— The daily operations of all retail stores locateithim the Partnershig’ operating area are manage«
Cellco. However all income and expenses incurrecaby fixed assets and liabilities related to thesail stores al
recorded on the books of the Partners

Income Taxes—The Partnership is not a taxable entity for fedaral state income tax purposes. Any taxable incon
loss is apportioned to the partners based on thgjirective partnership interests and is reportettiday individually.

Inventory —Inventory is owned by Cellco and is not recordedtive Partnership’ financial statements. Upon sale,
related cost of the inventory is transferred to Bratnership at Cellcs’cost basis and included in the accompar
statements of operatior

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Partnership maintains allowances for uncoldetiaccounts receivable
estimated losses resulting from the inability o$touners to make required payments. Estimates aedhben the aging
theaccounts receivable balances and the historicé-off experience, net of recoverie

Property, Plant and Equipmen—Property, plant and equipment primarily represemsts incurred to construct ¢
expand capacity and network coverage on mobilphelee switching offices and cell sites. The cogtraperty, plant ar
equipment is depreciated over its estimated uséfel using the straightine method of accounting. Leaseh
improvements are amortized over the shorter ofrthstimated useful lives or the term of the relakealse. Majc
improvements to existing plant and equipment apitalized. Routine maintenance and repairs thatatoextend the lif
of the plant and equipment are charged to expengearred

Upon the sale or retirement of property, plant agdipment, the cost and related accumulated degi@tior amortizatio
is eliminated from the accounts and any related gailoss is reflected in the statements of openati All property, plai
and equipment purchases are made through an t&ffiiaCellco. Transfers of property, plant and pment betwee
Cellco and affiliates are recorded at net book ez

Network engineering and interest costs incurrednduthe construction phase of the Partner's network and real est:
properties under development are capitalized ak qfaproperty, plant and equipment and recorded@sstruction-in-
progress until the projects are completed and dlade service

Other Asset— Other assets consist of a customer list acquiré2D08. The Partnership amortizes the customeovisi
its expected useful life of 6 years using a methodsistent with historical customer turnover rates.of December 3
2009, the gross carrying value is $182 and theraatated amortization is $74. As of December 31,92@8e schedule
amortization of the customer list for the next fgears is $27 for the years 2010 through 2!
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FCC Licenses— The Federal Communications Commission (“FC@3ues licenses that authorize cellular carrie
provide service in specific cellular geographicvemr areas. The FCC grants licenses for terms dbdpn years. In 19€
the FCC adopted specific standards to apply taleelrenewals, concluding it will reward a licermemewal to a celluli
licensee that meets certain standards of pastmeaifice. Historically, the FCC has granted licemsgwals routinely ar
at nominal costs, which are expensed as incurrbdvifeless licenses issued by the FCC that autleattie Partnership
provide cellular services are recorded on the badk3ellco. The current term of the Partners®ipCC license expires
October 2010 and April 2017. Cellco believes itlv# able to meet all requirements necessary toreaenewal of tt
Partnershi’'s cellular license

Valuation of Asset<— Long4ived assets, including property, plant and equipiraand intangible assets with finite liv
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or gharin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarnof the ass
may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of ragdived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sf the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fromube and eventual disposition of the asset. Thaimmegnt loss,
determined to be necessary, would be measureceaaibunt by which the carrying amount of the aszeeeds the fz
value of the asse

Cellco reevaluates the useful life determination for wirsldisenses at least annually to determine whetlients an
circumstances continue to support an indefinitefuldde. Moreover, Cellco has determined that thare currently r
legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, ecoimor other factors that limit the useful life dfet Partnershig wireles
licenses

Cellco tests its wireless licenses for potentigb@énment annually, and more frequently if indicasoof impairment exis
Cellco evaluates its licenses on an aggregate,hasisy a direct incombased value approach. This approach estir
fair value using a discounted cash flow analysiggtimate what a marketplace participant would fiéng to pay tc
purchase the aggregated wireless licenses as wvhthation date. If the fair value of the aggredatareless licenses is le
than the aggregated carrying amount of the wirdlesases, an impairment is recognized. In addjt©ellco believes th
under the Partnership agreement it has the riglatlleeate, based on a reasonable methodology, mpgiiment los
recognized by Cellco for all licenses included iell€o’s national footprint. Cellco does not charge therfeaship for th
use of any FCC license recorded on its books (¢Xcephe annual cost of $30 related to the spectiease, as discuss
in Note 5).Cellco evaluated its wireless licensaspotential impairment as of December 15, 2009 @ecdember 15, 20C
These evaluations resulted in no impairment of ieg®licenses

Fair Value Measurement— In accordance with the accounting standard reggrfdim value measurements, fair valu
defined as an exit price, representing the amdattwould be received to sell an asset or paidatoster a liability in a
orderly transaction between market participantss Becounting standard also establishes a tlieedierarchy for inpu
used in measuring fair value, which prioritizes itmguts used in the valuation methodologies in meag fair value:
Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities

Level 2— Observable inputs other than quoted prices in actiarkets for identical assets and liabili

Level 3— No observable pricing inputs in the mar

Financial assets and financial liabilities are sifiesd in their entirety based on the lowest levkinput that is significant -
the fair value measurements. Our assessment ofiimficance of a particular input to the fair valuneasuremer

requires judgment, and may affect the valuatiothefassets and liabilities being measured and pi@tement within tt
fair value hierarchy
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Concentrations—To the extent the Partnerstgpiustomer receivables become delinquent, colleeativities commenc
No single customer is large enough to present rifgignt financial risk to the Partnership. The tRarship maintains i
allowance for losses based on the expected cdiifgstiof accounts receivabli

Cellco and the Partnership rely on local ampidistance telephone companies, some of whom ar&edefzarties, ar
other companies to provide certain communicationrvises. Although management believes altern
telecommunications facilities could be found inmdly manner, any disruption of these servicesa@attentially have ¢
adverse impact on the Partner¢s operating result:

Although Cellco attempts to maintain multiple versldor its network assets and inventory, which amportan
components of its operations, they are currentyuaed from only a few sources. Certain of thesadpcts are in tul
utilized by the Partnership and are important comepts of the Partnershgbperations. If the suppliers are unable to
Cellco’s needs as it builds out its network infrastructamd sells service and equipment, delays and isedceosts in tt
expansion of the Partnerstgphetwork infrastructure or losses of potentiateoers could result, which would advers
affect operating result

Financial Instruments—The Partnership’s trade receivables and payabéeshortterm in nature, and accordingly, tt
carrying value approximates fair vall

Due from affiliate —Due from affiliate principally represents the Parships cash position. Cellco manages, on beh:
the Partnership, all cash, inventory, investing findncing activities of the Partnership. As suttte change in due frc
affiliate is reflected as an investing activity afinancing activity in the statements of cash 8adepending on whethe
represents a net asset or net liability for therfeaship.

Additionally, administrative and operating costsurred by Cellco on behalf of the Partnership, a#f as property, pla
and equipment transactions with affiliates, arergbd to the Partnership through this account. ésteincome or intere
expense is based on the average monthly outstatdilagice in this account and is calculated by apglyhe Cellcog
average cost of borrowing from Verizon Global Fungdia whollyewned subsidiary of Verizon Communications, |
which was approximately 5.8%, 4.0%, and 5.4% far ylears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 20(Q%ctasly
Included in net interest income is interest incavh&460, $240, and $273 for the years ended Decefihe2009, 20C
and 2007, respectively, related to the due frontiatt.

Distributions — Distributions are made to partners at the disanetibthe General Partner based upon the Partnégship
operating results, cash availability and finanamegds as determined by the General Partner attbefldistribution

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncemei— The adoption of the following accounting standaadd updates durii
2009 did not result in a significant impact to Partnership financial statemer

On January 1, 2009, the Partnership adopted theuating standard regarding the determination of ukeful life o
intangible assets that removes the requiremenonsider whether an intangible asset can be renawitbdut substantii
cost or material modifications to the existing teramd conditions, and replaces it with a requirdrtteat an entity consid
its own historical experience in renewing similaraagements, or a consideration of market partigipgsumptions in tl
absence of historical experience. This standaml r@lguires entities to disclose information thaaldas users of financ
statements to assess the extent to which the exppédure cash flows associated with the asseaféeeted by the entity’
intent and/or ability to renew or extend the aremgnts
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On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atingustandard regarding the general standardsadfumting for, an
disclosure of, events that occur after the balahest date but before the financial statementsaued. This standard v
effective prospectively for all annual reportingipds ending after June 15, 20(

On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atogustandard that amends the requirements fetodisres about fe
value of financial instruments This standard waeatfve prospectively for all annual reporting pels ending aft
June 15, 200¢

On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atingistandard regarding estimating fair value messents when tl
volume and level of activity for the asset or liapi has significantly decreased which also prosgidguidance fc
identifying transactions that are not orderly. Thtandard was effective prospectively for all anmegporting period
ending after June 15, 20(C

On August 28, 2009, the Partnership adopted theuating standard update regarding the measurenfidéiabiities at fail
value. This standard update provides techniquasséoin measuring fair value of a liability in cimatances in which
quoted price in an active market for the identizdility is not available. This standard updateffective prospectively fi
all annual reporting periods upon issuar

Other Recent Accounting Standar— In September 2009, the accounting standard regardinltiple deliverabl
arrangements was updated to require the use otlhtive selling price method when allocating rayxein these types
arrangements. This method allows a vendor to ssédst estimate of selling price if neither vendpecific objectiv
evidence nor third party evidence of selling progsts when evaluating multiple deliverable arrangets. This standa
update is effective January 1, 2011 and may betadqmospectively for revenue arrangements entietedor materiall
modified after the date of adoption or retrospestjivfor all revenue arrangements for all periodspreed. The Partners
is currently evaluating the impact this standardaip will have on our consolidated financial statats.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foillmnas of December 31, 2009 and 2C

Useful Lives 2009 2008

Buildings and improvemen 1C-40 years $ 6,321 $ 5,91¢
Cellular plant equipmet 3-15 years 20,40 22,04:
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 2-5 years 55C 34¢€
Leasehold improvemen 5 years 1,38: 1,06¢

28,65¢ 29,37
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 16,66 16,95¢
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 11,99: $ 12,41¢

Capitalized network engineering costs of $89 arieb3iere recorded during the years ended Decemb@088 and 20(
respectively. Construction-iprogress included in certain of the classificatiah®wn above, principally cellular pl:
equipment, amounted to $207 and $154 at Decemh&@08D and 2008 respective

4. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing as of December 31, 2009 and 2(

2009 2008
Accounts payabl $ 1,98: $ 1,784
Accrued liabilities 38¢ 38¢
Accounts payable and accrued libilit $ 2,372 $ 2,17:

Advance billings and customer deposits consisheffbllowing as of December 31, 2009 and 2(

2009 2008
Advance billings $ 2,351 $ 2,22(
Customer deposit 152 172
Advance billings and customer depo: $ 2,50¢ $ 2,392

5. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED PARTIES

Affiliate transactions include, but are not itied to, allocations, intraempany roaming, the salaries and related exp
of employees of Cellco, PCS spectrum lease paynagtslirect payments to a related party of thenReship, such as re
or commissions. Revenues and expenses were alfotat®ed on the Partnerstippercentage of customers or g
customer additions or minutes of use, where applcaCellco believes the allocations are reasonabhe affiliate
transactions are not necessarily conducted &'s length.
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Significant transactions with affiliates (Cellcodaits related entities) and other related partiesluding allocations ar
direct charges, are summarized as follows for #ayyended December 31, 2009, 2008 and -

2009 2008 2007
Service revenues (. $ 17,61( $ 15,72 $ 13,707
Equipment and other revenues 35C 1,06¢€ 1,08¢
Cost of service (c 31,51 29,43¢ 25,80:
Cost of equipment (c 1,35¢ 1,35¢ 1,08¢
Selling, general and administrative 19,38¢ 17,04( 15,88¢

(&) Service revenues include roaming revenuestimgl to customers of other affiliated markets,gialistance, data a
allocated conti-revenues including revenue concessi

(b) Equipment and other revenues include celfkisharevenues, sales of handsets and accessornitslEtated contra-
revenues including equipment concessions and corglaties

(c) Cost of service includes roaming costs relatingustomers roaming in other affiliated markets, slitosts, cell sharil
costs and allocated cost of telecom, -distance, and handset applicatic

(d) Cost of equipment includes allocated handsets saocies, warehousing and freig

(e) Selling, general and administrative expenses imcladlaries, commissions and billing, and allocatéfite telecorr
customer care, sales and marketing, advertisirdjcammissions

On January 1, 2008, the Partnership purchased&it8roers from an affiliate for $18

The Partnership is involved in several cell shamggeements with related affiliates in which thetfReship receive
revenues from affiliates for the use of the Pashigrs cell sites and incurs costs for the useffiliaedes’ cell sites. Ce
sharing revenues were $1,126, $1,419 and $1,44théoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 268§pectively
Cell sharing costs were $1,794, $2,240 and $1,88the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 andr28p&éctively

On January 1, 2007, the Partnership entered iaelagreements for the right to use additionaltaproowned by Cellc
The initial term of these agreements is ten yekns. 2009, 2008 and 2007 annual lease commitme®B@f $30 and $:
respectively represents the costs of financingsgpectrum, and does not necessarily reflect the auomnvalue of th
services received. No additional spectrum purchasésase commitments have been entered into bfPanmership as
December 31, 200!

6. COMMITMENTS

Cellco, on behalf of the Partnership, and the Rastrip itself have entered into operating leaseddailities, equipmel
and spectrum used in its operations. Lease coatiadiude renewal options that include rent expejestments based
the Consumer Price Index as well as annual andétehse term adjustments. Rent expense is recandedstraightine
basis. The noncancelable lease term used to cedhkaamount of the straiglite rent expense is generally determine
be the initial lease term, including any optiorethewal terms that are reasonably assured. Leasehptdvements relat
to these operating leases are amortized over treeshof their estimated useful lives or the noredable lease term. F
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2B67Partnership recognized a total of $1,188, $1,480 $85:
respectively, as rent expense related to paymardsrithese operating leases, which was includexbst of service ar
general and administrative expenses in the accoyimpgastatements of operatior
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Aggregate future minimum rental commitments undemaancelable operating leases, excluding renew#drapthat ar
not reasonably assured, for the years shown ddlaws:

Years Amount

2010 $ 1,11:
2011 1,06
2012 99C
2013 94z
2014 79C
2015 and thereaftt 7,79(C
Total minimum payment $ 12,69(

From time to time Cellco enters into purchase comits, primarily for network equipment, on belaflthe Partnershij
7. CONTINGENCIES

Cellco is subject to various lawsuits and otheilintdaincluding class actions, product liability, @at infringemen
antitrust, partnership disputes, and claims invajvielations with resellers and agents. Cellcolss defending lawsui
filed against itself and other participants in thigeless industry alleging various adverse effextsa result of wirele
phone usage. Various consumer class action lawnaliggge that Cellco breached contracts with conssnwviolated certa
state consumer protection laws and other statutels defrauded customers through concealed or misigalkilling
practices. Certain of these lawsuits and othemdamay impact the Partnership. These litigationtensitmay involv
indemnification obligations by third parties andéadfiliated parties covering all or part of any potial damage awar
against Cellco and the Partnership and/or insurangerage. All of the above matters are subjechémy uncertaintie
and outcomes are not predictable with assur:

The Partnership may be allocated a portion of tamabes that may result upon adjudication of thea#ens if thi
claimants prevail in their actions. Consequenthg ultimate liability with respect to these mattatdDecember 31, 20
cannot be ascertained. The potential effect, if, amythe financial statements of the Partnersighé period in whic
these matters are resolved, may be matt

In addition to the aforementioned matters, Cel&slbject to various other legal actions and claintee normal course

business. While Cellco’s legal counsel cannot gissurance as to the outcome of each of these mattananagemers’
opinion, based on the advice of such legal couiselultimate liability with respect to any of tieeactions, or all of the
combined, will not materially affect the financ&thtements of the Partnerst
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8.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

2009
2008
2007

RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Balance at Additions Write -offs Balance at

Beginning Charged to Net of End

of the Year Operations Recoveries of the Year

$ 22t $ 391 $ 432 $ 184
154 48¢ (412) 22t
20z 27¢ (32€) 154

*kkkkk
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Partners of GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limifartnership:

We have audited the accompanying balance she&3 BfMobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership (tRartnership)
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the reltéshsents of operations, changes in partreagital, and cash flows for et
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@®19. These financial statements are the respbtysdf the Partnershifg
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBlo(Unite(
States). Those standards require that we plan arfdrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancatafoether the financi
statements are free of material misstatement. Bnm&rship is not required to have, nor were weagad to perform, an au
of its internal control over financial reportingufaudit included consideration of internal contwekr financial reporting as
basis for designing audit procedures that are qgjate in the circumstances but not for the purpifsxpressing an opinion
the effectiveness of the Partnershifternal control over financial reporting. Acciomgly, we express no such opinion.
audit also includes examining, on a test basigjende supporting the amounts and disclosures irfinlacial statement
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignif estimates made by management, as well asisia) the overe
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such financial statements presaityf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of the Partnership
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the resulttsafderations and its cash flows for each of thmeetlyears in the peri
ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with acciognprinciples generally accepted in the Unitede@f America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, GA
March 8, 2010
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2008
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $480 aB8k $ 3,73¢ $ 3,38¢
Unbilled revenue 1,521 1,051
Due from affiliate 14,46¢ 6,32(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 16 20
Total current asse 19,74: 10,77¢
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN—Net 54,67: 50,71¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 74,41 $ 61,49¢
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 2,58¢ $ 1,89¢
Advance billings and customer depo: 997 94C
Total current liabilities 3,58¢ 2,83¢
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 37C 33E
Total liabilities 3,95¢ 3,171
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Notes 6 and
PARTNERY CAPITAL 70,457 58,327
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL $ 74,41 $ 61,49¢

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
OPERATING REVENUES
Service revenues, n $ 69,84« $  55,37¢ $  48,09¢
Equipment, net and other reveni 4,381 5,081 4,341
Total operating revenut 74,22t 60,45’ 52,435
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSE
Cost of service (excluding depreciation and amatitin related to
network assets included belo 18,90¢ 17,321 15,02¢
Cost of equipmer 7,53 6,60¢ 5,08t
Selling, general and administrati 16,92¢ 16,13: 14,14
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,36 6,01: 5,02(
Total operating costs and expen 50,73: 46,08 39,27t
OPERATING INCOME 23,49: 14,37¢ 13,16:
OTHER INCOME:
Interest income, ne 637 142 55C
Total other incomi 637 14z 55C
NET INCOME $ 24,13( $ 14,51¢ $ 13,71
Allocation of Net Income
Limited partners $ 19,30¢ $ 11,61« $ 10,97(
General Partne $ 4,82 $ 2,90¢ $ 2,742

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

General
Partner Limited Partners
San Eastex Consolidated ALLTEL San
Antonio  Telecom Telecomr Communications Communications Antonio  Total
MTA, Investments Supply, Transport Investments, MTA, Partners’
L.P. L.P. Inc. Company Inc. L.P. Capital
BALANCE—January 1,200 $ 9,22( $ 7,84¢ $ 7,84€ $ 7,84¢ $ 7,84¢ $ 549: $ 46,09
Distributions (2,200 (1,872) (1,877) (1,877) (1,872 (1,319 (11,000
Net income 2,742 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 2,33¢ 1,634 13,71:
BALANCE—December 31, 20( 9,76- 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 8,30¢ 5,81¢ 48,80¢
Distributions (2,000 (851) (851) (851) (851) (59¢) (5,000
Net income 2,90 2,471 2,471 2,471 2,471 1,73( 14,51¢
BALANCE—December 31, 20( 11,66¢ 9,92¢ 9,92¢ 9,92¢ 9,92¢ 6,94¢ 58,327
Distributions (2,407 (2,042 (2,042 (2,042 (2,042 (1,430 (12,000
Net income 4,827 4,107 4,107 4,107 4,107 2,87¢ 24,13(
BALANCE—December 31, 20($14,09: $ 11,99 $11,99: $ 11,99: $ 11,99 $ 8,39 $ 70,45

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $  24,13( $ 14,51¢ $ 13,71:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 7,362 6,01: 5,02(
Provision for losses on accounts receiv 1,01¢ 93¢ 887
Changes in certain assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (1,367 (1,319 (1,297
Unbilled revenu 470 (99 95
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4 (12 5
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 64t 542 (149
Advance billings and customer depo: 57 167 152
Long term liabilities 35 65 24
Net cash provided by operating activit 31,41¢ 20,81: 18,45¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures from affiliates, r (11,267 (16,895 (20,799
Change in due from affiliate, n (8,149 1,08: 3,34
Net cash used in investing activiti (19,416 (15,817 (7,455
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions to partner (12,000 (5,000 (11,000
Net cash used in financing activiti (12,000 (5,000 (11,000
CHANGE IN CASH — — —
CASH—Beginning of yea — — —
CASH—ENd of yeal $ —  $ — $ —
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCINC
ACTIVITIES:
Accruals for capital expenditur: $ 24¢ $ 17¢ $ 242

See notes to financial statements.
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GTE MOBILNET OF TEXAS #17 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 AND 2007
(Dollars in Thousands)

1.

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT

GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Parthersh—GTE Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership (tfartnership)
was formed on June 13, 1989. The principal actieftyhe Partnership is providing cellular servinettie Texas #17 rui
service aree

The partners and their respective ownership peagestas of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 $oHags:

General Partne

San Antonio MTA, L.P.* 20.0000%0
Limited Partners

Eastex Telecom Investments, L 17.021%

Telecom Supply, Inc 17.021%

Consolidated Communications Transport Comg 17.021%

ALLTEL Communications Investments, Inc 17.0219%

San Antonio MTA, L.P.* 11.9140%

San Antonio MTA, L.P. (“General Partner”) andLBTEL Communications Investments, Inc. are whadlynec
subsidiaries of Cellco Partnersh”Cellcc”) doing business as Verizon Wirele

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally accepte
the United States of America requires managementake estimates and assumptions that affect tretezgbamounts
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of coetirt assets and liabilities at the date of thenfifed statements and |
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duringeporting period. Actual results may differ frahose estimate
Estimates are used for, but not limited to, theoaating for: allocations, allowance for uncolle&titaccounts receivab
unbilled revenue, depreciation and amortizationefuls lives and impairment of assets, accrued exmnan
contingencies. Estimates and assumptions are pealydreviewed and the effects of any materialisi®ns are reflected
the financial statements in the period that theydmtermined to be necesss

Revenue Recognitio— The Partnership earns revenue by providing accesartnetwork (access revenue) and for u
of our network (usage revenue), which includes #@nd data revenue. Customers are associated heitRPartnersh
based upon mobile identification number. In genexetess revenue is billed one month in advancesamtognized whe
earned; the unearned portion is classified in adednillings in the balance sheet. Usage revenuedegnized whe
service is rendered and included in unbilled reeenatil billed. Equipment sales revenue associatgd the sale ¢
wireless devices is recognized when the produetsialivered to and accepted by the customer, asstisonsidered to bt
separate earnings process from the sale of wiredesgices. Customer activation fees are considexdditiona
consideration, and to the extent that we incursimsexcess of fees, these fees are recorded gsvezqt and other reven
at the time of customer acceptance. For agreenmerdlv/ing the resale of thirgarty services in which we are conside
the primary obligor in the arrangements, we regeseénue gross. The roaming rates charged by thadpship to Cellc
do not necessarily reflect current market rateg Fartnership will continue to ealuate the rates on a periodic basis
Note 5).
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The Partnership reports, on a gross basisstamposed by governmental authorities on revgmoeelucing transactiol
between us and our customers that are within tbpesof the accounting standard related to how taxdected fror
customers and remitted to governmental authorgtesuld be presented in the statement of operationke financie
statements

Operating Costs and Expens—Operating expenses include expenses incurred Wifegtthe Partnership, as well as
allocation of certain selling, general and admmaiste and operating costs incurred by Cellco sifiliates on behalf
the Partnership. Employees of Cellco provide sewviperformed on behalf of the Partnership. Thesglames are n
employees of the Partnership and therefore, opgrattpenses include direct and allocated chargealafy and employ
benefit costs for the services provided to the rieaship. Cellco believes such allocations, prinbjphased on th
Partnership’s percentage of total customers, cust@ross additions or minutes-o$e, are reasonable. The roaming
charged to the Partnership by Cellco do not nedéssaflect current market rates. The Partnershilb continue to re-
evaluate the rates on a periodic basis (see No

Income Taxes—Except for the Texas Franchise Tax the Partneiishimt subject to any domestic federal, state oal
taxes based on income. Any taxable income or lesgpportioned to the partners based on their régpegartnershi
interests and is reported by them individue

Inventory —Inventory is owned by Cellco and is not recordedtive Partnership’ financial statements. Upon sale,
related cost of the inventory is transferred to Bratnership at Cellcs’cost basis and included in the accompar
statements of operatior

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—The Partnership maintains allowances for uncoldetiaccounts receivable
estimated losses resulting from the inability o$touners to make required payments. Estimates @edhben the aging
the accounts receivable balances and the histavigi@-off experience, net of recoverie

Property, Plant and Equipmen—Property, plant and equipment primarily represemsts incurred to construct ¢
expand capacity and network coverage on mobilphelee switching offices and cell sites. The cogtraperty, plant ar
equipment is depreciated over its estimated uséfel using the straighline method of accounting. Leaseh
improvements are amortized over the shorter ofrthstimated useful lives or the term of the relakealse. Majc
improvements to existing plant and equipment apitalized. Routine maintenance and repairs thatatoextend the lif
of the plant and equipment are charged to expenhsearred

Upon the sale or retirement of property, plant agdipment, the cost and related accumulated degi@tior amortizatio
is eliminated from the accounts and any related gailoss is reflected in the statements of openati All property an
equipment purchases are made through an affiliat@etico. Transfers of property, plant and equiptriaetween Cellic
and affiliates are recorded at net book va

Network engineering and interest costs incurrednduthe construction phase of the Partner's network and real est:
properties under development are capitalized as qfaproperty, plant and equipment and recordeda@sstruction-in-
progress until the projects are completed and dlade service

FCC Licenses— The Federal Communications Commission (“FC@3ues licenses that authorize cellular carrie
provide service in specific cellular geographicvemr areas. The FCC grants licenses for terms dbudpn years. In 19€
the FCC adopted specific standards to apply taleelrenewals, concluding it will reward a licemmemewal to a celluli
licensee that meets certain standards of pastmpeafce. Historically, the FCC has granted licersewals routinely ar
at nominal costs, which are expensed as incurrbdvifeless licenses issued by the FCC that autledttie Partnership
provide cellular services are recorded on the badk3ellco. The current term of the Partners®ipCC license expires
December 2019. Cellco believes it will be able teetnall requirements necessary to secure renewleolPartnershig’
cellular license

Valuation of Asset—— Long4ived assets, including property, plant and equipiraand intangible assets with finite liv
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or ghann circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof the ass
may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of ragdived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sf the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fromube and eventual disposition of the asset. Thaimmegnt loss,
determined to be necessary, would be measuredeanibunt by which the carrying amount of the asgeeeds the fe
value of the asse
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Cellco reevaluates the useful life determimatior wireless licenses at least annually to deireenwhetherevents an
circumstances continue to support an indefinituldde. Moreover, Cellco has determined that there currently r
legal, regulatory, contractual, competitive, ecoimor other factors that limit the useful life dfet Partnershig wireles
licenses

Cellco tests its wireless licenses for potentigbaimment annually, and more frequently if indicagaof impairment exis
Cellco evaluates its licenses on an aggregate,hasisy a direct incombased value approach. This approach estir
fair value using a discounted cash flow analysiggtimate what a marketplace participant would fiéng to pay tc
purchase the aggregated wireless licenses as wghlhation date. If the fair value of the aggredatareless licenses is le
than the aggregated carrying amount of the wirdlesases, an impairment is recognized. In addjt@elico believes th
under the Partnership agreement it has the riglatlleeate, based on a reasonable methodology, mpgiiment los
recognized by Cellco for all licenses included iell€o’s national footprint. Cellco does not charge therfeaship for th
use of any FCC license recorded on its books (éxXcefhe annual cost of $76 related to the spectiease, as discuss
in Note 5). Cellco evaluated its wireless liceneggpotential impairment as of December 15, 2008 Becember 15, 20(
These evaluations resulted in no impairment of ieg®licenses

Fair Value Measurement— In accordance with the accounting standard reggrfdiim value measurements, fair valu
defined as an exit price, representing the amdattwould be received to sell an asset or paidatoster a liability in a
orderly transaction between market participantss Hecounting standard also establishes a tlieedierarchy for inpu
used in measuring fair value, which prioritizes itguts used in the valuation methodologies in meag fair value:

Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities
Level 2— Observable inputs other than quoted prices in actiarkets for identical assets and liabili
Level 3— No observable pricing inputs in the mar

Financial assets and financial liabilities are sifisd in their entirety based on the lowest levkeinput that is significant
the fair value measurements. Our assessment ofiimficance of a particular input to the fair valuneasuremer
requires judgment, and may affect the valuatiothefassets and liabilities being measured and pi@tement within tt
fair value hierarchy

Concentrations—To the extent the Partnerstgptustomer receivables become delinquent, colleeativities commenc
No single customer is large enough to present rifgignt financial risk to the Partnership. The tRarship maintains i
allowance for losses based on the expected cdiifggtiof accounts receivabli

Cellco and the Partnership rely on local ampidistance telephone companies, some of whom ar&edefzarties, ar
other companies to provide certain communicationrvises. Although management believes altern
telecommunications facilities could be found irimdly manner, any disruption of these servicesa@alttentially have ¢
adverse impact on the Partner¢s operating result:

Although Cellco attempts to maintain multiple versldor its network assets and inventory, which amportan
components of its operations, they are currentyuaed from only a few sources. Certain of thesadpcts are in tul
utilized by the Partnership and are important comepts of the Partnershgbperations. If the suppliers are unable to
Cellco’s needs as it builds out its network infrastructamd sells service and equipment, delays and isedceosts in tt
expansion of the Partnerstephetwork infrastructure or losses of potentiatoo®rs could result, which would advers
affect operating result

Financial Instruments—The Partnership’s trade receivables and payabéeshortterm in nature, and accordingly, tt
carrying value approximates fair vall

Due from affiliate —Due from affiliate principally represents the Parships cash position. Cellco manages, on beh:
the Partnership, all cash, inventory, investing financing activities. As such, the change in dwenf affiliate is reflecte
as an investing activity or a financing activitytive statements of cash flows depending on whéthepresents a net as
or net liability for the Partnershi

F-65




Table of Contents

Additionally, administrative and operating costsurred by Cellco on behalf of the Partnership, ai as property, plar
and equipment transactions with affiliates, arergbd to the Partnership through this account. ésteincome or intere
expense is based on the average monthly outstabdiagce in this account and is calculated by apglZellco’s averag
cost of borrowing from Verizon Global Funding, aailiz-owned subsidiary of Verizon Communications, Inchjch wa:
approximately 5.8%, 4.0% and 5.4% for the yearsedridecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectivaljuded in ne
interest income is interest income of $644, $148 &B54 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 20@B82007
respectively, related to the due from affilic

Distributions — The Partnership is required to make distributiangts partners based upon the Partnershg@eratin
results, cash availability and financing needsetsrhined by the General Partner at the date adigtgbution.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncemei— The adoption of the following accounting standaadd updates durii
2009 did not result in a significant impact to Partnershi’s financial statement

On January 1, 2009, the Partnership adopted theuating standard regarding the determination of ukeful life o
intangible assets that removes the requiremenonsider whether an intangible asset can be renawitbdut substantii
cost or material modifications to the existing teramd conditions, and replaces it with a requirdrtteat an entity consid
its own historical experience in renewing similamagements, or a consideration of market partigipgasumptions in tl
absence of historical experience. This standaml r@iguires entities to disclose information thaaldas users of financ
statements to assess the extent to which the exppédure cash flows associated with the asseaféeeted by the entity’
intent and/or ability to renew or extend the aremgnts

On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atingustandard regarding the general standardsafumting for, an
disclosure of, events that occur after the balahest date but before the financial statementsaned. This standard v
effective prospectively for all annual reportingipds ending after June 15, 20(

On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atiogistandard that amends the requirements fatadigres about fe
value of financial instruments. This standard wéective prospectively for all annual reporting jeels ending afte
June 15, 200¢

On June 15, 2009, the Partnership adopted the atingistandard regarding estimating fair value messents when tl
volume and level of activity for the asset or lidapi has significantly decreased which also prosidguidance fc
identifying transactions that are not orderly. Thtandard was effective prospectively for all anmeporting period
ending after June 15, 20(C

On August 28, 2009, the Partnership adopted thewating standard update regarding the measurenfidéiabdities at fail
value. This standard update provides techniquasséoin measuring fair value of a liability in cimatances in which
quoted price in an active market for the identlzdility is not available. This standard updatefective prospectively fi
all annual reporting periods upon issuar

Other Recent Accounting Standar— In September 2009, the accounting standard regardinltiple deliverabl
arrangements was updated to require the use otlhiive selling price method when allocating rayein these types
arrangements. This method allows a vendor to ssédst estimate of selling price if neither vendpecific objectiv
evidence nor third party evidence of selling progsts when evaluating multiple deliverable arrangets. This standa
update is effective January 1, 2011 and may betadqmospectively for revenue arrangements entietedor materiall
modified after the date of adoption or retrospestiivfor all revenue arrangements for all periodspreed. The Partners
is currently evaluating the impact this standardaip will have on the financial statemel
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foillmnas of December 31, 2009 and 2C

Useful lives 2009 2008

Buildings and improvemen 1C-40 years $ 20,32] $ 18,79(
Cellular plant equipmet 3-15 years 62,32« 54,39¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 2-10 years 76 75
Leasehold improvemen 5 years 3,71 3,56:

86,44 76,82¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 31,77: 26,10¢
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 54,67 $  50,71¢

Capitalized network engineering costs of $641 af@5$were recorded during the years ended Decenhe2@®9 an
2008, respectively. Constructionqpmegress included in certain of the classificatiah®wn above, principally cellu
plant equipment, amounted to $5,096 and $3,57GaemMber 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiv

4. CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing as of December 31, 2009 and 2(

2009 2008
Accounts payabl $ 787 $ 551
Non-income based taxes and regulatory 1,081 60C
Texas margin tax payab 37C 52C
Accrued commission 351 22E
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 2,58¢ $ 1,89¢

Advance billings and customer deposits consisheffbllowing as of December 31, 2009 and 2(

2009 2008
Advance billings $ 81¢ $ 73z
Customer deposit 17¢ 20¢
Advance billings and customer depo: $ 997 $ 94C
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES AND RELATED PARTIES

Affiliate transactions include, but are not ilied to, allocations, intraempany roaming, the salaries and related exp
of employees of Cellco, PCS spectrum lease paynagtslirect payments to a related party of thenReship, such as re
or commissions. Revenues and expenses were alfotat®ed on the Partnershippercentage of customers or g
customer additions or minutes of use, where applcaCellco believes the allocations are reasonabhe affiliate
transactions are not necessarily conducted &'s length.

Significant transactions with affiliates (Cellcodaits related entities) and other related parfiesluding allocations ar
direct charges, are summarized as follows for #ayended December 31, 2009, 2008 and :

2009 2008 2007
Service revenues (i $ 26,92( $ 15,45¢ $ 13,03t
Equipment and other revenues (81€) (289) (259)
Cost of service (c 16,017 13,517 11,90¢
Cost of equipment (c 1,48¢ 1,14( 1,037
Selling, general and administrative 10,61 9,18( 8,33(

() Service revenues include roaming revenuetirg) to customers of other affiliated markets glalistance, paging, data ¢
allocated conti-revenues including revenue concessi

(g) Equipment and other revenues include salémofisets and accessories and allocated cantestues including equipme
concessions and coupon reba

(h) Cost of service includes roaming costs relatingustomers roaming in other affiliated markets, pggswitch usage a
allocated cost of telecom, lo-distance and handset applicatic

(i) Cost of equipment includes allocated handsets saocies, warehousing and freig

() Selling, general and administrative expenses ircli@mmissions and billing, and allocated officedeim, customer ca
salaries, sales and marketing, advertising, andrdesions.

On January 1, 2005, the Partnership entered inEase agreement for the right to use additionattspe owned b
Cellco. The initial term of this agreement was gmear, with annual renewal terms. The Partnershigwed the lea:
through June 23, 2015. The annual lease commitofe®16 represents the costs of financing the spectand does n
necessarily reflect the economic value of the sesvireceived. No additional spectrum purchasesasel commitmer
have been entered into by the Partnership as cérbleer 31, 200¢

6. COMMITMENTS

Celico, on behalf of the Partnership, and the Rastrip itself have entered into operating leasedailities, equipmel
and spectrum used in its operations. Lease coatiadiuide renewal options that include rent expejestments based
the Consumer Price Index as well as annual andétehse term adjustments. Rent expense is recandedstraightine
basis. The noncancelable lease term used to ceddhkaamount of the straiglite rent expense is generally determine
be the initial lease term, including any optioretiewal terms that are reasonably assured. Leasematdvements relat:
to these operating leases are amortized over ihreeshof their estimated useful lives or the noredable lease term. F
the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2h87Rdrtnership recognized a total of $2,563, $2&1d $1,81:
respectively, as rent expense related to paymemntsrithese operating leases, which was includedsh of service in tt
accompanying statements of operatic
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Aggregate future minimum rental commitments undemaancelable operating leases, excluding renew#drapthat ar
not reasonably assured, for the years shown ddlaws:

Years Amount

2010 $ 2,41¢
2011 2,18¢
2012 2,144
2013 2,09¢
2014 2,01z
2015 and thereaftt 17,69:
Total minimum payment $ 28,550

From time to time Cellco enters into purchase comits, primarily for network equipment, on belaflthe Partnershij
7. CONTINGENCIES

Cellco is subject to various lawsuits and otheilintdaincluding class actions, product liability, @at infringemen
antitrust, partnership disputes, and claims invajvielations with resellers and agents. Cellcolss defending lawsui
filed against itself and other participants in thigeless industry alleging various adverse effextsa result of wirele
phone usage. Various consumer class action lawnaliggge that Cellco breached contracts with conssnwviolated certa
state consumer protection laws and other statutels defrauded customers through concealed or misigalkilling
practices. Certain of these lawsuits and othemdamay impact the Partnership. These litigationtensitmay involv
indemnification obligations by third parties andéadfiliated parties covering all or part of any potial damage awar
against Cellco and the Partnership and/or insurangerage. All of the above matters are subjechémy uncertaintie
and outcomes are not predictable with assur:

The Partnership may be allocated a portion of tamabes that may result upon adjudication of thea#ens if thi
claimants prevail in their actions. Consequenthg ultimate liability with respect to these mattatdDecember 31, 20
cannot be ascertained. The potential effect, if, amythe financial statements of the Partnersighé period in whic
these matters are resolved, may be matt

In addition to the aforementioned matters, Cel&slbject to various other legal actions and claintee normal course

business. While Cellco’s legal counsel cannot gissurance as to the outcome of each of these mattananagemers’
opinion, based on the advice of such legal couiselultimate liability with respect to any of tieeactions, or all of the
combined, will not materially affect the financ&thtements of the Partnerst
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8. RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Accounts Receivable Allowance

2009
2008
2007

Balance at Additions Write -offs Balance at
Beginning Charged to Net of End

of the Year Operations Recoveries of the Year
$ 38t $ 1,01¢ $ 919 % 48C
$ 378 $ 93€ $ 929 $ 38t
$ 32¢ $ 887 $ (843) 378

*kkkkk
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EXHIBIT 21.1

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS HOLDINGS, INC AND SUBSI DIARIES
EXHIBIT 21 — SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Unless otherwise noted, all subsidiaries are 100#ted (directly or indirectly) by Consolidated Commuation:
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”).

Name State of Incorporatio
Consolidated Communications, Ir lllinois

Consolidated Communications of Texas Comg Texas

Consolidated Communications of Fort Bend Comg. Texas

Consolidated Communications Services Comg. Texas

Consolidated Communications Enterprise Services, Delaware

Consolidated Communications of Pennsylvania, | Delaware

East Texas Fiber Line, Incorporated (63% owners Texas

lllinois Consolidated Telephone Compe lllinois

Multi, Inc. (50% ownership Pennsylvani:

The Company indirectly owns 49.5% of Boulevard Caminations, L.L.P., a Pennsylvania limited lialyilppartnershi
(“Boulevard”). Multi, Inc., a 50% subsidiary of tli&mpany, is the general partner of Boulevard.



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (i) on Form S-8 (No. 233440) pertaining
the Consolidated Communications, Inc. 401(k) Plad &onsolidated Communications 401(k) Plan for BeBargainin
Associates and (ii) on Form S-8 (No. 333-128934}gieing to the Consolidated Communications Holdingne. 2005 Long-
Term Incentive Plan of our reports dated March@,® with respect to the consolidated financialesteents and schedule
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. anddffectiveness of internal control over financigbogting of Consolidate
Communications Holdings, Inc. included in the AnnRaport (Form 10-K) for the year ended December28D9.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
March 8, 2010



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegiion Statements No. 333-135440 and 333-12&®8Form S8 of
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. of ogjparts dated March 8, 2010, relating to the finalnstatements of G1
Mobilnet of Texas #17 Limited Partnership, Pennagia RSA 6(l) Limited Partnership, and PennsylvaR&A 6(11) Limitec
Partnership as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, anadch of the three years in the period ended iDbee31, 200!
appearing in this Annual Report on FormK@f Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc.tfoe year ended December

2009.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March 8, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Robert J. Currey, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. &ubsidiaries

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corstajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements wame, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered ly tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, itssaf operations and cash flows of the registeenbf, and for, the peric
presented in this repol

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible @&stablishing and maintaining disclosure contres
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Xnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresauwsed such disclosure controls and procedurbs ttesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipogy, or caused such internal control over finaheéporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéuis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered b
this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrarg’internal control over financial reportii
and

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbravel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorsdahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or pers¢
performing the equivalent function:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkio¥inancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information, ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

March 8, 2010

/sl Robert J. Currey

Robert J. Curre
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Steven L. Childers, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc. &ubsidiaries

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corstajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements wame, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered ly tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, itssaf operations and cash flows of the registeenbf, and for, the peric
presented in this repol

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible @&stablishing and maintaining disclosure contres
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Xnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresauwsed such disclosure controls and procedurbs ttesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipogy, or caused such internal control over finaheéporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigtsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéuis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered b
this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrdgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrarg’internal control over financial reportii
and

The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal cbravel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorsdahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or pers¢
performing the equivalent function:

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controkio¥inancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information, ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

March 8, 2010

/sl Steven L. Childers

Steven L. Childer

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officel
(Principal Financial Officer and
Chief Accounting Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedignir$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @220Section 906},
Robert J. Currey and Steven L. Childers, President Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i©df, respectively,
Consolidated Communications Holdings, Inc., eadtifgethat to his knowledge (i) the Annual Report Borm 10K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 fully comphiéh the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchan
Act of 1934, as amended and (ii) the informationtamed in such report fairly presents, in all mialerespects, the financ
condition and results of operations of Consolida&@edhmunications Holdings, Inc.

/s/ Robert J. Currey

Robert J. Currey

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 8, 201(

s/ Steven L. Childers

Steven L. Childers

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Oft
(Principal Financial Officer and

Chief Accounting Officer)

March 8, 201(




